
 

 

 

Public Notice – Board of Education Online Public Meeting 

 

A public meeting of the Board of Education for School District 62 (Sooke) will be held on September 26, 2023, at 

7:00 pm. 

 

Please note that all Public Board and Committee meetings are now held in person at the District School Board 

Office, located at 3143 Jacklin Road, Victoria.   

 

Furthermore, the meeting will be livestreamed via MS teams, to encourage more public participation. 

To join the in meeting please click here:  Public Board Meeting | Sooke School District (sd62.bc.ca) 
and click Follow Link. 

 

To guide you, the following is information on how to join a live event in MS Teams. 

https://support.office.com/en-us/article/attend-a-live-event-in-teams-a1c7b989-ebb1-4479-b750-c86c9bc98d84 

 Anyone who has the link can attend the online meeting without logging in to MS Teams.  

 Members of the public have the opportunity to ask questions related to agenda items discussed at the 

meeting: 

o Select the Q&A function on the right side of the screen. 

o When asking a question using the Q&A function, please identify yourself.  Anonymous 

questions will not be responded to. 

 A reminder for Stakeholder groups to use the Q&A function. 

o Members of the media can direct their questions to the Communications Manager at School 

District 62 for response following the meeting. 

 

 

If you have questions regarding the meeting and how to access it that aren’t answered in the link above please 

email info@sd62.bc.ca.  See link for upcoming and previous Board and Committee meetings Public Meetings | 

Sooke School District (sd62.bc.ca) materials. 

 

Page 1 of 271

https://www.sd62.bc.ca/board-education/public-meetings/public-board-meeting-19
https://support.office.com/en-us/article/attend-a-live-event-in-teams-a1c7b989-ebb1-4479-b750-c86c9bc98d84
mailto:info@sd62.bc.ca
https://www.sd62.bc.ca/board-education/public-meetings
https://www.sd62.bc.ca/board-education/public-meetings


 

 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 

PUBLIC MEETING 
By Live Event 

September 26, 2023 – 7:00 p.m.  
 

AGENDA 

 
1. 

2. 

CALL TO ORDER AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF FIRST NATIONS TERRITORIES 

We are honoured to be meeting on the traditional territories of the Coast Salish, specifically 
Esquimalt Nation, Songhees Nation, and acknowledge the three nations SD62 works with 
directly in our schools:  Sc’ianew Nation, and T’Sou-ke Nation; including the West Coast 
Pacheedaht Nation, Nuu-chah-nulth. (words gifted by the three nations SD62 works with) 
 

AGENDA (page 2) 

2.1  Call for amendments and additional items 

Motion Requested: That the Board of Education of School District 62 (Sooke) 

adopt the public meeting agenda of September 26, 2023, as presented (or as 

amended). 

3. 

 

MINUTES (page 6) 

3.1  Call for amendments to minutes 

Motion Requested: That the Board of Education of School District 62 (Sooke) 

adopt the public meeting minutes of the August 29, 2023, as presented (or as 

amended). 

4. 

5. 

6. 

 

INFORMATION ITEMS AND ANNOUCEMENTS 

4.1  Board Chair Update – Amanda Dowhy 

 

EDUCATIONAL PRESENTATIONS 

5.1  Student Exchange Trip, Tokyo, Japan 2024 – Journey Middle School - Kelly Dvorak 

(page 12) 

Motion Requested:  That the Board of Education of School District 62 (Sooke) approve 

the Journey Middle School Trip to Tokyo, Japan from March 17, 2024, to March 26, 

2024, subject to the oversight and direction of the Superintendent’s Office. 

 

CORRESPONDENCE & DELEGATIONS 

6.1  Correspondence 

Page 2 of 271



 

 

 

7. 

 

 

 

 

8. 

a.  Email from Dominque Jacobs RE: Welcome to the 2023/24 School Year, dated 

September 5, 2023. (page 21) 

 

6.2  Standing Delegations (STA, CUPE, PVP, SPEAC) – 5 minutes each 

FINANCE, FACILITIES AND SERVICES 

7.1  Resources Committee – Meeting of September 19, 2023 – Ebony Logins (page 23) 

Motion Requested:  That the Board of Education of School District 62 (Sooke) approve 

the 24/25 Minor Capital Plan submission as presented to the Resources Committee on 

September 19, 2023. 

 

Motion Requested:  That the Board of Education of School District 62 (Sooke)  

receive the report from the Resources Committee Meeting of September 19, 2023. 

 

7.2  22/23 Financial Statements Approval – Cendra Beaton (page 26) 

Motion Requested:  That the Board of Education of School District 62 (Sooke) approve 

the 22/23 financial statements as presented at the Audit Committee meeting of 

September 20, 2023. 

7.3  Amended Capital Plan Bylaw No. 2023/24-CPSD62-02 – Harold Cull (page 88) 

Motion Requested: That the Board of Education of School District 62 (Sooke) allow all 

three readings of the 2023/24 Amended Capital Plan Bylaw No. 2023/24 CPSD62-02 at 

its meeting of September 26, 2023. 

 

Motion Requested:  That the Board of Education of School District 62 (Sooke) give 

first, second and third readings to the 2023/24 Amended Capital Plan Bylaw No. 

2023/24 CPSD62-02. 

EDUCATION PROGRAM 

8.1  Education-Policy Committee – Meeting of September 12, 2023 – Allison Watson (page 96) 

Motion Requested:  That the Board of Education of School District 62 (Sooke) direct 

the Governance Committee to review Administration Regulation A-340 for the purpose 

of updating context and language. 

 

Motion Requested:  That the Board of Education of School District 62 (Sooke) give 

Notice of Motion to draft new Policy and Regulations B-335 “Communicating Student 

Learning and Reporting”.  
 

Page 3 of 271



 

 

Motion Requested:  That the Board of Education of School District 62 (Sooke) receive

 the report from the Education-Policy Committee Meeting of September 12, 2023. 

 

9. 

8.2  Adoption of Policy & Regulations – Scott Stinson (page 112) 

Motion Requested:  Given that the required period for Notice of Motion has been 

served, that the Board of Education of School District 62 (Sooke) adopt revised Policy 

B-133 “Online Learning”.  

 

STUDENTS 

9.1  Ukrainian Student Visit – Scott Stinson (page 115) 

Motion Requested:  That the Board of Education for School District 62 (Sooke) 

authorize staff to provide homestay costs (estimated at $2000) for a two-week period 

for four student visitors from the Ukraine. 
 

10.  FOUNDATIONS AND GOVERNANCE 

10.1  22/23 Strategic Plan Annual Report – Scott Stinson (page 116) 

Motion Requested:  That the Board of Education of School District 62 (Sooke) approve 

the 22/23 Strategic Plan Annual Report as presented. 
 

 

10.2  22/23 Framework for Enhancing Student Learning Report to the Ministry – Paul Block 

(page 195) 

Motion Requested:  That the Board of Education of School District 62 (Sooke) approve 

the 22/23 Framework for Enhancing Student Learning Report and submit it to the 

Ministry of Education and Child Care. 

10.3  23/24 Board Work Plan – Amanda Dowhy (page 262) 

Motion Requested:  That the Board of Education of School District 62 (Sooke) adopt 

the 23/24 Board and Committee Meeting Schedule and the 23/24 Board of Education 

Work Plan as presented. 
 

11.  ADMINISTRATION 

11.1  Superintendent’s Report – Scott Stinson (page 270) 

 

12.  PERSONNEL 

 

13.  UPCOMING EVENTS 

 

14.  FUTURE ITEMS 

 

Page 4 of 271



 

 

15. QUESTION PERIOD 

Members of the public have the opportunity to ask questions related to agenda items 

discussed at tonight’s meeting using the QA function in MS Teams.  Individuals must identify 

themselves and ask questions directed to the Chair. Members of the media can direct their 

questions to the Manager, Communications for response following the meeting. 

 

16. ADJOURNMENT 

Page 5 of 271



 

 

MINUTES 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
PUBLIC MEETING 

August 29, 2023 – 7:00 p.m. 
 
TRUSTEES:  Amanda Dowhy   Cendra Beaton    

Russ Chipps (virtual)   Ebony Logins 

Trudy Spiller    Allison Watson 

 

STAFF:  Scott Stinson, Superintendent 

  Harold Cull, Secretary-Treasurer 

Paul Block, Deputy Superintendent 

Monica Braniff, Associate Superintendent 

David Strange, Associate Superintendent 

Fred Hibbs, Executive Director, HR 

Farzaan Nusserwanji, Executive Director, IT 

  Steve Tonnesen, Manager, IT Operations 

 

REGRETS:   

 

SECRETARY: Kristina Ross 

 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF FIRST NATIONS TERRITORIEIS 

The meeting was called to order at 7:01 p.m. by the Secretary-Treasurer. Harold Cull 

acknowledged the traditional territories of the First Nations. 

 

1.1 TRUSTEE ELECTIONS 

Trustee Elections 

 

Chair 

The Secretary-Treasurer thanked the Board of Education for their service and called 

for nominations for Board Chair.  Amanda Dowhy was nominated and acclaimed as  

Board Chair.  Chair Dowhy then assumed the Chair and continued the election 

process. 

 

Vice-Chair 

Page 6 of 271



 

 

Ebony Logins and Cendra Beaton were nominated for the position of Vice-Chair.  A 

ballot count was conducted and was Ebony Logins declared elected. 

 

BCSTA 

Amanda Dowhy was nominated and acclaimed for the position of BCSTA 

Representative.  

 

135. MOVED Trudy Spiller/Russ Chipps 

That the Board of Education of School District 62 (Sooke) direct the Secretary-

Treasurer to destroy the ballots.  

CARRIED 

 

2. AGENDA  

2.1 Call for amendments and additional items 

 

136. MOVED Allison Watson/Ebony Logins 

That the Board of Education of School District 62 (Sooke) adopt the public 

meeting agenda of August 29, 2023, as presented. 

CARRIED 

 

3. MINUTES  

3.1 Call for amendments to minutes 

 

137. MOVED Allison Watson/Ebony Logins 

That the Board of Education of School District 62 (Sooke) adopt the 

public meeting minutes of June 27 and July 25, 2023, as presented. 

CARRIED 

 

4. INFORMATION ITEMS AND ANNOUCEMENTS 

4.1 Board Chair Update – Amanda Dowhy 

The Board Chair thanked the Board of Education for its support and congratulated 

Trustee Logins on her appointment as Vice Chair.  She thanked B.C. firefighters for 

their contributions while battling wildfires across B.C. and spoke of the affected 

families arriving in our communities.  She also acknowledged that September 9th is 

international Fetal Alcohol Spectrum Disorders (FASD) Awareness day. 

 

 4.2 CUPE 60th Anniversary – Scott Stinson 

CUPE was founded in 1963 through the merger of two unions representing public 

sector employees, and this year it is celebrating its 60th anniversary.  Scott Stinson 

Page 7 of 271



 

 

thanked CUPE 459 members and President Amber Leonard for their ongoing support 

and dedication to this school district.  He acknowledged their commitment to the 

students, families, and community. 

 

Amber Leonard thanked the Superintendent/CEO and spoke about CUPE 459’s 

connection to the District and community. 

 

5. EDUCATIONAL PRESENTATIONS 

 

6. CORRESPONDENCE & DELEGATIONS 

6.1 Correspondence 

a. Letter from the staff of Ruth King Elementary School dated June 26, 2023, RE:  

Changes to School 

b. Letter from the STA dated June 27, 2023, RE: Revised Policy and Regulations B-330 

Learning Assessment 

c. Letter from MLA Elect Ravi Parmar, dated July 12, 2023: RE: Resignation 

d. Email request from Michelle Vingo RE: Request for Implementation of Academy   

Programs at CML, dated July 25, 2023 

e. Letter from the Minster of Education and Child Care, dated August 1, 2023, RE: 

Purchase of Portables for Growing Districts. 

f. Letter from the Minister of Education and Child Care, dated August 1, 2023, RE: 

School Trustee Codes of Conduct Criteria 

 

138. MOVED Cendra Beaton/Allison Watson 

That the Board of Education of School District 62 (Sooke) receive the above 

noted correspondence items a through e. 

CARRIED 

 

139 MOVED Cendra Beaton/Allison Watson 

That the Board of Education of School District 62 (Sooke) receive the above 

noted correspondence item f and refer it to the Governance Committee. 

CARRIED 

 

6.2 Standing Delegations (STA, CUPE, PVP, SPEAC) – 5 minutes each 

  STA – Jennifer Anderson 

Jennifer Anderson congratulated the Board Chair and Vice Chair on their elections.  

She reminded the Board of Education that while many teachers are at the schools 

preparing for the September 5th start, STA members are not being compensated for 

their work until the first day.  Further, she spoke regarding the reporting structure 

Page 8 of 271



 

 

that the Ministry of Education and Child Care requires for student report cards and 

hoped there was some flexibility with the Employer. 

 

  CUPE 459 – Amber Leonard 

Amber Leonard thanked CUPE members for their hard work over the summer 

period and welcomed staff and students back to school.  She acknowledged the 

efforts of the members working outside of their regular positions during the 

summer and indicated that as the District continues to grow so does the CUPE 459 

membership.   

 

  PVP 

  No delegation. 

 

  SPEAC 

  No delegation. 

 

7. FINANCE, FACILITIES AND SERVICES 

7.1 Feeding Futures Program Capital Funds Request – David Strange 

David Strange provided an overview of the capital submission to the Ministry of 

Education and Child Care. 

 

140. MOVED Allison Watson/Ebony Logins 

That the Board of Education of School District 62 (Sooke) endorse the capital 

submission to the Ministry of Education and Child Care Food Infrastructure 

Capital Fund in the amount of $113, 500.  

CARRIED 

 

7.2 Transportation Update – Harold Cull 

A transportation update was provided to the Board of Education by staff.  Registration 

opened up in early March and closed on April 30, 2023, to allow staff adequate time to 

plan, create routes and assign riders.  Presently, 3,798 riders have been assigned to 41 

routes, with 315 students remaining awaiting placement.  Further, additional clerical 

staff have been added the startup to answer families’ questions and concerns. 

 

7.3 Capital Projects Update – Harold Cull 
Staff provided capital project updates to the Board of Education indicating that 
portables at Ruth King Elementary, David Cameron Elementary, Royal Bay Secondary, 
and Journey Middle School should be in place for September 5th, while the portable at 

Edward Milne Community School will have a delivery date of mid-September.  Final 

Page 9 of 271



 

 

deficiencies at Centre Mountain Lellum, and PEXSISEN Elementary continue as does 

the civil work at SĆIȺNEW̱ SṮEȽIṮḴEȽ Elementary School.  Mass timber for the new 
school is expected to be delivered in January 2024, for an opening date of September 
2025. 

 

8. EDUCATION PROGRAM 

 

9. STUDENTS 

9.1 2023/24 Enrolment Update – Paul Block 

 Paul Block provided an initial enrolment update to the Board of Education.  To date 

there are 12,748 students registered in the District, an increase of 702 students or 

5.87%.  The Ministry of Education and Child Care is seeing a 17% increase in enrolment 

with the District accounting for 12% of that growth.  The Board of Education will need 

to monitor registration after September 30, 2023, as students registering after this 

date are unfunded, and the School District may need to reallocate its funding or use 

the financial reserve. 

 

10.  FOUNDATIONS AND GOVERNANCE 

10.1 Board Work Plan 90 Day Outlook – Amanda Dowhy 

The Board Chair provided the Board of Education with a review of the next 90-day 

draft work plan.  The Board of Education was asked to review and provide feedback to 

staff. 

 

11.  ADMINISTRATION  

 11.1 Superintendent’s Report – Scott Stinson 

Scott Stinson welcomed staff, students, and their families back to the 23/24 school 

year; he thanked the facilities staff for all their hard workover the summer preparing 

our schools for students.  The District of Metchosin created a safe road crossing on 

Rocky Point Road outside Hans Helgesen Elementary School, that will be staffed 

through peak hours by a crossing guard.  SD 62 is pleased to announce that the new 

elementary school in South Langford has been named SĆIȺNEW̱ SṮEȽIṮḴEȽ which 

translates to ‘salmon children’. 

 

12. PERSONNEL 

 

13. UPCOMING EVENTS 

CUPE BBQ – September 24, 2023 

SD 62 By Election – October 14, 2023 

 

Page 10 of 271



 

 

14. FUTURE ITEMS 

 

15. QUESTION PERIOD 

 Members of the public have the opportunity to ask questions related to agenda items 

discussed at tonight’s meeting using the QA function in MS Teams.  Individuals must identify 

themselves and ask questions directed to the Chair. Members of the media can direct their 

questions to the Manager, Communications for response following the meeting. 

 

16. ADJOURNMENT 

 The meeting was adjourned at 8:01 p.m. 

 

Certified Correct: 

 

 

 

____________________________  _________________________________ 

Chairperson of the Board   Secretary-Treasurer 

Page 11 of 271



Page 12 of 271



Page 13 of 271



Page 14 of 271



Page 15 of 271



Page 16 of 271



Page 17 of 271



Page 18 of 271



Page 19 of 271



Page 20 of 271



Page 21 of 271



Page 22 of 271



 

 

Committee Report of  

Resources Committee Meeting of September 19, 2023 

via MS Teams 
 

Present: Ebony Logins, Trustee (Committee Chair) 

Trudy Spiller, Trustee (Committee Member) 

Amanda Dowhy, Trustee (A/Committee Member) 

Russ Chipps, Trustee 

Cendra Beaton, Trustee 

Scott Stinson, Superintendent 

Harold Cull, Secretary Treasurer 

Paul Block, Deputy Superintendent 

Ed Berlando, STA 

Trudy Court, CUPE 

Tom Davis, SPEAC 

Mhairi Bennett, Director, Facilities 

David Lee-Bonar, Assistant Secretary Treasurer 

Randy Cobb, Manager, Transportation 

 Aaron Foster, Manager, Minor Capital 

 Nicole Gestwa, IT  

 

1. CALL TO ORDER AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF FIRST NATIONS TERRITORIES 

The meeting was called to order at 6:03 pm by the Committee Chair, who acknowledged that we 
are honoured to be meeting on the traditional territories of the Coast Salish, specifically Esquimalt 
Nation, Songhees Nation and acknowledge the three nation SD 62 works with directly in our 
schools; Scia’new Nation, Coast Salish, and T’Sou-ke Nation; including the West Coast Pacheedaht 
Nation Nuu-chah-nulth. (words gifted by the three Nations SD62 works with) 

 
2. COMMITTEE REPORT 

 The Board of Education of Sooke School District 62 (Sooke) received the Resources Committee 

Report dated June 13, 2023, at its Public Board Meeting dated June 27, 2023. 

 
3. PRESENTATIONS 
 

4. BUSINESS 

4.1 Minor Capital Plan Submission – Mhairi Bennett 

Page 23 of 271



 

 

The Minor Capital Plan Submission is due to the Ministry of Education and Child Care on 

September 30, 2023.  Staff provided an overview of the proposed projects and the 

Committee asked several questions before submitting the following motion going to the 

Board for consideration.  The Committee discussed the importance of the building envelope 

project at EMCS. 

Recommended Motion:  That the Board of Education of School District 62 (Sooke) approve the 24/25 Minor 

Capital Plan submission as presented to the Resources Committee on September 19, 2023. 

 

 

4.2 Transportation Update – Randy Cobb 

Staff provided the Committee with an update on the school year start-up for transportation 

and made a presentation highlighting the following areas: 

a) Key stats; 

b) Timing of route confirmations; 

c) Capacity planning moving forward; and 

d) Initial spending plan of the Transportation Safety Committee. 

The Committee discussed the points presented and thanked the Transportation Dept. for 

their efforts in a relatively smooth start to the school year.  The discussion included the 

impact of the growth has on the support staff for the Transportation Department and the 

environmental impacts of our electric buses. 

 

 

4.3 Initial 24/25 Enrolment Numbers & Space Challenges – Harold Cull 

Staff provided an initial overview of the 24/25 enrolment numbers, which then led 

discussion into the space challenges faced by the District. SD 62 expects that it will have 

13,100 students enrolled an increase of 850 students from last year.  This growth is expected 

to continue well into the future, thus the District has begun planning its spaces for 2024/25.  

Staff provided a high-level look at the proposed space plan for September 2024 and will 

bring great details to the October Committee meeting once actual enrolment is known for 

this school year. The Committee discussed the need for safe spaces for students and staff 

and the impacts that spaces have on student success and the overall mental wellness of the 

system. 

 

 

Page 24 of 271



 

 

 

 

4.4 Inflation Financial Framework – David Lee Bonar 

As a follow up to the Committee’s June meeting, staff made a presentation outlining the 

erosion of the District’s purchasing power due to on-going inflation.  For modelling 

purposes, staff are using an inflation factor of 2% which creates an annual $300,000 

(compounding) impact on the budget although the actual inflation amount may be greater.  

Staff presented 3 mitigation approaches and is looking for Board support to provide details 

of revenue generating ideas to the Board during the 24/25 Budget Development process for 

their consideration.  The Committee supported recommending to the Board that staff 

pursue revenue options to address the inflationary impacts during the 24/25 budget 

development process. 

 

 

4.5 Professional Learning – Scott Stinson 

As per Board direction, the Superintendent requested feedback from CUPE 459 and the STA 

regarding professional learning opportunities with their members.  Suggestions were 

provided from the union executive to the Superintendent and have been included in the 

Committee package for tonight’s meeting.  Staff recommend that the union’s suggestions 

be considered during the 23/24 Amended Budget process to be completed in February of 

2024. 

 

5. ADJOURNMENT AND NEXT MEETING DATE: October 10, 2023 

Page 25 of 271



1  

 

 

Board Info Note 
Public Board Meeting  

September 26, 2023 
Agenda Item: 7.2 – 22/23 Audited Financial Statements 

 
 
Background 
 

• Attached are the District’s 2022/23 financial statements for review and consideration by the 
Board 
 

• These statements have been audited by KPMG and were presented to the Audit Committee at 
their meeting on September 20, 2023 

 

• At that meeting, staff made a presentation on the highlights of the financial statements as well 
as an overview of the Financial Statement Discussion and Analysis document (also attached) 
 

• The Financial Statement Discussion and Analysis (FSDA) provides an overall narrative review of 
the District’s financial activities for the year and its intent is to simplify the details contained in 
the financial statements 
 

• The School Act requires the Board to approve the financial statements by September 30th of 
each year.  
 

• At their meeting, the Audit Committee supported the following motion going forward to the 
Board for their review and consideration at the September 26, 2023 Board meeting: 

 
 

Motion Requested: That the Board of Education of School District 62 (Sooke) approve the 22/23 
financial statements as presented at the Audit Committee meeting of September 20, 2023 

Page 26 of 271



Audited Financial Statements of

School District No. 62 (Sooke)

June 30, 2023

 September 12, 2023  15:26

Page 27 of 271



School District No. 62 (Sooke)
June 30, 2023

Table of Contents

Management Report ...........................................................................................................................................................................................1

Independent Auditors' Report  ...........................................................................................................................................................................................2-3

Statement of Financial Position - Statement 1  ...........................................................................................................................................................................................4

Statement of Operations - Statement 2  ...........................................................................................................................................................................................5

Statement of Changes in Net Debt - Statement 4  ...........................................................................................................................................................................................6

Statement of Cash Flows - Statement 5  ...........................................................................................................................................................................................7

Notes to the Financial Statements  ...........................................................................................................................................................................................8-28

Schedule of Changes in Accumulated Surplus (Deficit) by Fund - Schedule 1 (Unaudited)  ..............................................................................................................29

Schedule of Operating Operations - Schedule 2 (Unaudited)  .................................................................................................................................................................30

Schedule 2A - Schedule of Operating Revenue by Source (Unaudited)  ............................................................................................................31

Schedule 2B - Schedule of Operating Expense by Object (Unaudited)  .........................................................................................32

Schedule 2C - Operating Expense by Function, Program and Object (Unaudited)  .....................................................................................33

Schedule of Special Purpose Operations - Schedule 3 (Unaudited)  ....................................................................................................................................................35

Schedule 3A - Changes in Special Purpose Funds and Expense by Object (Unaudited)  .......................................................................................................36

Schedule of Capital Operations - Schedule 4 (Unaudited)  .........................................................................................................................................40

Schedule 4A - Tangible Capital Assets (Unaudited)  .....................................................................................................................41

Schedule 4B - Tangible Capital Assets - Work in Progress (Unaudited)  ..............................................................................................................42

Schedule 4C - Deferred Capital Revenue (Unaudited)  ............................................................................................................................43

Schedule 4D - Changes in Unspent Deferred Capital Revenue (Unaudited)  .........................................................................................................44

 September 12, 2023  15:26

Page 28 of 271



School District No. 62 (Sooke)

MANAGEMENT REPORT

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements.

On behalf of School District No. 62 (Sooke)

Signature of the Chairperson of the Board of Education

Signature of the Superintendent

Signature of the Secretary Treasurer

Version: 8221-7476-5493

The external auditors, KPMG LLP, conduct an independent examination, in accordance with Canadian 
generally accepted auditing standards, and express their opinion on the financial statements.  The external 
auditors have full and free access to financial management of School District No. 62 (Sooke) and meet when 
required.  The accompanying Independent Auditors' Report outlines their responsibilities, the scope of their 
examination and their opinion on the School District's financial statements.

Date Signed

Date Signed

Date Signed

The accompanying financial statements of School District No. 62 (Sooke) have been prepared by management 
in accordance with the accounting requirements of Section 23.1 of the Budget Transparency and Accountability 
Act of British Columbia, supplemented by Regulations 257/2010 and 198/2011 issued by the Province of 
British Columbia Treasury Board, and the integrity and objectivity of these statements are management's 
responsibility.  Management is also responsible for all of the notes to the financial statements and schedules, 
and for ensuring that this information is consistent, where appropriate, with the information contained in the 
financial statements.

Management is also responsible for implementing and maintaining a system of internal controls to provide 
reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded, transactions are properly authorized and reliable financial 
information is produced.

The preparation of financial statements necessarily involves the use of estimates based on management's 
judgment particularly when transactions affecting the current accounting period cannot be finalized with 
certainty until future periods.

The Board of Education of School District No. 62 (Sooke) (called the ''Board'') is responsible for ensuring that 
management fulfills its responsibilities for financial reporting and internal control and exercises these 
responsibilities through the Board.  The Board reviews internal financial statements on a quarterly basis and 
externally audited financial statements yearly.

Page 1 September 12, 2023  15:26

Page 29 of 271



Statement 1

2023 2022
Actual Actual

(Restated - Note 25)

$ $
Financial Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents 29,775,667          34,092,985          
Accounts Receivable

Due from Province - Ministry of Education and Child Care 1,293,373            2,129,793            
Due from Province - Other 19,129                 12,830                 
Due from First Nations 216,663               254,865               
Other (Note 3) 557,779               979,299               

Total Financial Assets 31,862,611          37,469,772          

Liabilities
Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities

Due to Province - Other 20,942                 22,276                 
Other (Note 5) 10,191,663          17,343,066          

Unearned Revenue (Note 6) 5,129,573            5,342,608            
Deferred Revenue (Note 7) 1,877,812            1,626,020            
Deferred Capital Revenue (Note 8) 268,314,439        253,874,173        
Employee Future Benefits (Note 9) 6,105,411            5,525,440            
Asset Retirement Obligation (Note 21) 6,882,996            6,882,996            
Total Liabilities 298,522,836        290,616,579        

Net Debt (266,660,225)      (253,146,807)      

Non-Financial Assets
Tangible Capital Assets (Note 10) 396,669,255        380,970,944        
Restricted Assets (Endowments) (Note 12) 673,449               673,449               
Prepaid Expenses (Note 4) 3,075,752            3,453,917            
Other Assets 1,123,530            1,150,132            
Total Non-Financial Assets 401,541,986        386,248,442        

Accumulated Surplus (Deficit) (Note 23) 134,881,761        133,101,635        

Accumulated Surplus (Deficit) is comprised of:
Accumulated Surplus (Deficit) from Operations 134,881,761        133,101,635        
Accumulated Remeasurement Gains (Losses)

134,881,761        133,101,635        

Signature of the Chairperson of the Board of Education

Signature of the Superintendent

Signature of the Secretary Treasurer

School District No. 62 (Sooke)
Statement of Financial Position
As at June 30, 2023

Date Signed

Date Signed

Date Signed

Approved by the Board

Contractual Obligations (Note 16)

Contractual Rights (Note 17)

Contingent Assets (Note 18)

Contingent Liabilities (Note 19)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
Version: 8221-7476-5493
 September 12, 2023  15:26 Page 4

Page 30 of 271



Statement 2

2023 2023 2022
Budget Actual Actual
(Note 20) (Restated - Note 25)

$ $ $
Revenues

Provincial Grants
Ministry of Education and Child Care 163,941,392        164,420,963        144,462,411        
Other 30,599                730                     

Federal Grants 9,420                  
Tuition 6,899,749            6,361,744            6,637,195            
Other Revenue 5,036,317            5,967,097            4,587,609            
Rentals and Leases 502,500              492,358              393,661              
Investment Income 370,395              1,073,958            258,765              
Amortization of Deferred Capital Revenue 9,581,173            9,680,922            8,447,330            
Amortization of Deferred Capital Revenue - for lease 61,477                61,477                61,477                
Total Revenue 186,393,003        188,098,538        164,849,178        

Expenses (Note 22)
Instruction 151,717,077        151,016,310        132,751,010        
District Administration 6,870,183            6,997,503            5,841,891            
Operations and Maintenance 23,942,726          24,263,265          21,885,576          
Transportation and Housing 3,951,925            4,041,334            3,660,435            
Total Expense 186,481,911        186,318,412        164,138,912        

Surplus (Deficit) for the year (88,908)               1,780,126            710,266              

Accumulated Surplus (Deficit) from Operations, beginning of year 133,101,635        132,391,369        

Accumulated Surplus (Deficit) from Operations, end of year 134,881,761        133,101,635        

School District No. 62 (Sooke)
Statement of Operations
Year Ended June 30, 2023

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
Version: 8221-7476-5493
 September 12, 2023  15:26 Page 5

Page 31 of 271



Statement 4

2023 2023 2022
Budget Actual Actual
(Note 20) (Restated - Note 25)

$ $ $

Surplus (Deficit) for the year (88,908)               1,780,126            710,266              

Effect of change in Tangible Capital Assets
Acquisition of Tangible Capital Assets (23,751,808)        (26,300,809)        (44,830,659)        
Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets 10,461,149          10,602,498          9,313,576            
Total Effect of change in Tangible Capital Assets (13,290,659)        (15,698,311)        (35,517,083)        

Acquisition of Prepaid Expenses (1,103,366)          (1,420,054)          
Use of Prepaid Expenses 1,481,531            1,088,975            
Acquisition of Other Assets (890,899)             (1,150,132)          
Use of Other Assets 917,501              

Total Effect of change in Other Non-Financial Assets -                          404,767              (1,481,211)          

(Increase) Decrease in Net Debt, before Net Remeasurement Gains (Losses) (13,379,567)        (13,513,418)        (36,288,028)        

Net Remeasurement Gains (Losses)

(Increase) Decrease in Net Debt (13,513,418)        (36,288,028)        

Net Debt, beginning of year (253,146,807)      (216,858,779)      

Net Debt, end of year (266,660,225)      (253,146,807)      

School District No. 62 (Sooke)
Statement of Changes in Net Debt
Year Ended June 30, 2023

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
Version: 8221-7476-5493
 September 12, 2023  15:26 Page 6

Page 32 of 271



Statement 5

2023 2022
Actual Actual

(Restated - Note 25)

$ $
Operating Transactions

Surplus (Deficit) for the year 1,780,126          710,266             
Changes in Non-Cash Working Capital

Decrease (Increase)
Accounts Receivable 1,289,843          1,529,497          
Prepaid Expenses 378,165             (331,079)            

Increase (Decrease)
Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities (7,152,737)         4,814,310          
Unearned Revenue (213,035)            402,111             
Deferred Revenue 251,792             267,475             
Employee Future Benefits 579,971             488,492             

Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets 10,602,498        9,313,576          
Amortization of Deferred Capital Revenue (9,680,922)         (8,447,330)         
Recognition of Deferred Capital Revenue Spent on Sites (1,938,486)         (367,285)            
Deferred Capital Revenue Transferred to Revenue (1,205,490)         (935,069)            
Amortization of Deferred Capital Revenue - for lease (61,477)              (61,477)              
Total Operating Transactions (5,369,752)         7,383,487          

Capital Transactions
Tangible Capital Assets Purchased (3,591,445)         (551,766)            
Tangible Capital Assets -WIP Purchased (22,709,364)       (44,278,893)       
Use (Acquisition) of Other Assets 26,602               (1,150,132)         
Total Capital Transactions (26,274,207)       (45,980,791)       

Financing Transactions
Capital Revenue Received 27,326,641        47,708,492        
Total Financing Transactions 27,326,641        47,708,492        

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (4,317,318)         9,111,188          

Cash and Cash Equivalents, beginning of year 34,092,985        24,981,797        

Cash and Cash Equivalents, end of year 29,775,667        34,092,985        

Cash and Cash Equivalents, end of year, is made up of:
Cash 17,825,718        22,928,792        
Cash Equivalents 11,949,949        11,164,193        

29,775,667        34,092,985        

School District No. 62 (Sooke)
Statement of Cash Flows
Year Ended June 30, 2023

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
Version: 8221-7476-5493
 September 12, 2023  15:26 Page 7

Page 33 of 271



SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 62 (SOOKE) 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

 
 

 
 Page  8 

  
 

NOTE 1   AUTHORITY AND PURPOSE 
 
The School District, established on April 12, 1946 operates under authority of the School Act of British Columbia as a 
corporation under the name of "The Board of Education of School District No. 62 (Sooke)", and operates as "School 

-year term governs the School District.  The 
School District provides educational programs to students enrolled in schools in the district, and is principally funded by 
the Province of British Columbia through the Ministry of Education and Child Care. School District No. 62 (Sooke) is 
exempt from federal and provincial corporate income taxes. 
 
NOTE 2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
a) Basis of Accounting 
 

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Section 23.1 of the Budget Transparency and 
Accountability Act of the Province of British Columbia. This Section requires that the financial statements be prepared 
in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards except in regard to the accounting for government 
transfers as set out in Notes 2(g) and 2(o). 
 
In November 2011, Treasury Board provided a directive through Restricted Contributions Regulation 198/2011 
providing direction for the reporting of restricted contributions whether they are received or receivable by the School 
District before or after this regulation was in effect. 
 
As noted in Notes 2(g) and 2(o), Section 23.1 of the Budget Transparency and Accountability Act and its related 
regulations require the School District to recognize government transfers for the acquisition of capital assets into 
revenue on the same basis as the related amortization expense. As these transfers do not contain stipulations that 
create a liability, Canadian public sector accounting standards would require these grants to be fully recognized into 
revenue. 

 
b) Basis of Consolidation 
 

The School District does not control any significant external entities and accordingly no entities have been 
consolidated with the financial statements. 
 
The School District has entered into trust activities with some employees; these are described in Note 13. 

 
c) Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 

Cash and cash equivalents include cash and highly liquid securities that are readily convertible to known amounts of 
cash and that are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value. These cash equivalents generally have a maturity 
of three months or less at acquisition and are held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments rather 
than for investing. 

 
d) Accounts Receivable 
 
 Accounts receivable are measured at amortized cost and shown net of allowance for doubtful accounts. 
 
e) Portfolio Investments 
  

that have a maturity of greater than 3 months at the time of 
acquisition.  

 
 
 

 

Page 34 of 271



SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 62 (SOOKE) 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

 
 

 
 Page  9 

  
 

NOTE 2   SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
f) Unearned Revenue 
 

Unearned revenue includes tuition fees received for courses to be delivered in future periods and receipt of proceeds 
for services or products to be delivered in a future period. Revenue will be recognized in that future period when the 
courses, services, or products are provided. 

 
g) Deferred Revenue and Deferred Capital Revenue 
 

Deferred revenue includes contributions received with stipulations that meet the description of restricted contributions 
in the Restricted Contributions Regulation 198/2011 issued by Treasury Board. When restrictions are met, deferred 
revenue is recognized as revenue in the fiscal year in a manner consistent with the circumstances and evidence used 
to support the initial recognition of the contributions received as a liability as detailed in Note 2(o). 
 
Funding received for the acquisition of depreciable tangible capital assets is recorded as deferred capital revenue and 
amortized over the life of the asset acquired as revenue in the statement of operations. This accounting treatment is 
not consistent with the requirements of Canadian public sector accounting standards which require that government 
transfers be recognized as revenue when approved by the transferor and eligibility criteria have been met unless the 
transfer contains a stipulation that creates a liability in which case the transfer is recognized as revenue over the period 
that the liability is extinguished.  

 
h)   Employee Future Benefits 
 

The School District provides certain post-employment benefits including vested and non-vested benefits for certain 
employees pursuant to certain contracts and union agreements. 
 
The School District accrues its obligations and related costs including both vested and  
non-vested benefits under employee future benefit plans. Benefits include vested sick leave, accumulating non-
vested sick leave, retirement/severance, and death benefits. The benefits cost is actuarially determined using the 
projected unit credit method pro-
escalation, termination rates, retirement rates and mortality. The discount rate used to measure obligations is based 
on the cost of borrowing.  The cumulative unrecognized actuarial gains and losses are amortized over the expected 
average remaining service lifetime (EARSL) of active employees covered under the plan. 
 
The most recent valuation of the obligation was performed at March 31, 2022 and projected to March 31, 2025. The 
next valuation will be performed at March 31, 2025 for use at June 30, 2025.  For the purposes of determining the 
financial position of the plans and the employee future benefit costs, a measurement date of March 31 was adopted 
for all periods subsequent to July 1, 2004. 
 

Pension 
Plan.  The plans are multi-employer plans where assets and obligations are not separated. The costs are expensed as 
incurred. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 35 of 271



SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 62 (SOOKE) 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

 
 

 
 Page  10 

  
 

NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
i)   Asset Retirement Obligations 

A liability is recognized when, as at the financial reporting date: 

 there is a legal obligation to incur retirement costs in relation to a tangible capital asset; 

 the past transaction or event giving rise to the liability has occurred; 

 it is expected that future economic benefits will be given up; and 

 a reasonable estimate of the amount can be made. 

 

Liabilities are recognized for statutory, contractual or legal obligations associated with the retirement of tangible 
capital assets when those obligations result from the acquisition, construction, development or normal operation of 
the assets. The liability includes costs for the removal of asbestos and other hazardous material in several of the 
buildings owned by the School District. The estimate of the asset retirement obligation includes costs directly 
attributable to the asset retirement activities. The resulting costs have been capitalized into the carrying amount of 
tangible capital assets and are being amortized on the same basis as the related tangible capital asset (see note 2k). 
The carrying value of the liability is reviewed annually with changes to the timing or amount of the original estimate 
of cash flows recorded as an adjustment to the liability and related tangible capital asset. 

 
 
j) Liability for Contaminated Sites 

 
Contaminated sites are a result of contamination being introduced into air, soil, water or sediment of a chemical, 
organic or radioactive material or live organism that exceeds an environmental standard.  A liability for remediation 
of contaminated sites is recognized when a site is not in productive use and all the following criteria are met: 
 
 an environmental standard exists; 
 contamination exceeds the environmental standard; 
 the School District: 

 is directly responsible; or 
 accepts responsibility; 

 it is expected that future economic benefits will be given up; and 
 a reasonable estimate of the amount can be made. 

 
-remediation including operation, maintenance 

and monitoring that are an integral part of the remediation strategy for a contaminated site. The liability is recorded 
net of any expected recoveries. 
 
  

Page 36 of 271



SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 62 (SOOKE) 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

 
 

 
 Page  11 

  
 

NOTE 2   SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
k) Tangible Capital Assets 

 
The following criteria apply: 
 
 Tangible capital assets acquired or constructed are recorded at cost which includes amounts that are directly 

related to the acquisition, design, construction, development, improvement or betterment of the assets. Cost also 
includes overhead directly attributable to construction of the asset. 

 Donated tangible capital assets from non-related parties are recorded at their fair market value on the date of 
donation.  

 Work-in-progress is recorded as an acquisition to the applicable asset class at substantial completion. 
 Tangible capital assets are written down to residual value when conditions indicate they no longer contribute to 

the ability of the School District to provide services or when the value of future economic benefits associated 
with the sites and buildings are less than their net book value. The write-downs are accounted for as expenses in 
the Statement of Operations. 

 Buildings that are demolished or destroyed are written-off.   
 Works of art, historic assets and other intangible assets are not recorded as assets in these financial statements.  
 The cost, less residual value, of tangible capital assets (excluding sites), is amortized on a straight-line basis over 

the estimated useful life of the asset. It is managemen
for tangible capital assets. These useful lives are reviewed on a regular basis or if significant events initiate the 
need to revise. Estimated useful life is as follows: 

 
Buildings 40 years 
Furniture & Equipment 10 years 
Vehicles 10 years 
Computer Software   5 years 
Computer Hardware   5 years 

 
l) Capital Leases 
 

Leases that, from the point of view of the lessee, transfer substantially all the benefits and risks incident to ownership 
of the property to the School District are considered capital leases.  These are accounted for as an asset and an 
obligation. Capital lease obligations are recorded at the present value of the minimum lease payments excluding 
executory costs, e.g., insurance, maintenance costs, etc. The discount rate used to determine the present value of the 

lease.  
 
All other leases are accounted for as operating leases and the related payments are charged to expenses as incurred.  
 

m) Prepaid Expenses 
 

Payments for insurance, leases, subscriptions and maintenance contracts for use within the School District in the 
future period are included as a prepaid expense and stated at acquisition cost and are charged to expense over the 
periods expected to benefit from it.  
 

n) Funds and Reserves 
 
Certain amounts, as approved by the Board are set aside in accumulated surplus for future operating and capital 
purposes. Transfers to and from funds and reserves are an adjustment to the respective fund when approved (see Note 
14  Interfund Transfers and Note 23  Accumulated Surplus). 

  

Page 37 of 271



SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 62 (SOOKE) 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

 
 

 
 Page  12 

  
 

NOTE 2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
o) Revenue Recognition 

 
Revenues are recorded on an accrual basis in the period in which the transactions or events occurred that gave rise to 
the revenues, the amounts are considered to be collectible and can be reasonably estimated. 
 
Contributions received or where eligibility criteria have been met are recognized as revenue except where the 
contribution meets the criteria for deferral as described below. Eligibility criteria are the criteria that the School 
District has to meet in order to receive the contributions including authorization by the transferring government. 
 
For contributions subject to a legislative or contractual stipulation or restriction as to their use, revenue is recognized 
as follows: 

 
 Non-capital contributions for specific purposes are recorded as deferred revenue and recognized as revenue in 

the year related expenses are incurred, 
 Contributions restricted for site acquisitions are recorded as revenue when the sites are purchased, and 
 Contributions restricted for tangible capital assets acquisitions other than sites are recorded as deferred capital 

revenue and amortized over the useful life of the related assets.  
 
Donated tangible capital assets other than sites are recorded at fair market value and amortized over the useful life of 
the assets. Donated sites are recorded as revenue at fair market value when received or receivable. 
 
The accounting treatment for restricted contributions is not consistent with the requirements of Canadian public sector 
accounting standards which require that government transfers be recognized as revenue when approved by the 
transferor and eligibility criteria have been met unless the transfer contains a stipulation that meets the criteria for 
liability recognition in which case the transfer is recognized as revenue over the period that the liability is 
extinguished. 
 
Revenue related to fees or services received in advance of the fee being earned or the service is performed is deferred 
and recognized when the fee is earned or service performed. 
 
Investment income is reported in the period earned. When required by the funding party or related Act, investment 
income earned on deferred revenue is added to the deferred revenue balance. 

 

  

Page 38 of 271



SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 62 (SOOKE) 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

 
 

 
 Page  13 

  
 

NOTE 2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
p) Expenditures 

 
Expenses are reported on an accrual basis. The cost of all goods consumed and services received during the year is 
expensed.   
 
Categories of Salaries 
 
 Principals and Vice-Principals employed under an administrative officer contract are categorized as Principals 

and Vice-Principals. 
 Superintendents, Associate Superintendents, Secretary-Treasurers, Trustees and other employees excluded from 

union contracts are categorized as Other Professionals.  
 
Allocation of Costs 
 
 Operating expenses are reported by function, program, and object. Whenever possible, expenditures are 

determined by actual identification. Additional costs pertaining to specific instructional programs, such as special 
and aboriginal education, are allocated to these programs. All other costs are allocated to related programs.  

 Actual salaries of personnel assigned to two or more functions or programs are allocated based on the time spent 
in each function and program.  School-based clerical salaries are allocated to school administration and partially 
to other programs to which they may be assigned. Principals and Vice-Principals salaries are allocated to school 
administration and may be partially allocated to other programs to recognize their other responsibilities.  

 Employee benefits and allowances are allocated to the same programs, and in the same proportions, as the 
 

 Supplies and services are allocated based on actual program identification. 
 
q) Endowment Contributions  

 
Endowment contributions are reported as revenue on the Statement of Operations when received. Investment income 
earned on endowment principal is recorded as deferred revenue if it meets the definition of a liability and is recognized 
as revenue in the year related expenses (disbursements) are incurred. If the investment income earned does not meet 
the definition of a liability, it is recognized as revenue in the year it is earned. Endowment assets are reported as 
restricted non-financial assets on the Statement of Financial Position. 
 
 
  

Page 39 of 271



SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 62 (SOOKE) 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

 
 

 
 Page  14 

  
 

NOTE 2   SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
r) Financial Instruments  

 
A contract establishing a financial instrument creates, at its inception, rights and obligations to receive or deliver 
economic benefits. The financial assets and financial liabilities portray these rights and obligations in the financial 
statements. The School District recognizes a financial instrument when it becomes a party to a financial instrument 
contract.  
 
Financial instruments consist of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, portfolio investments, accounts 
payable and accrued liabilities.  The School District does not have any derivative financial instruments. 
 
All financial assets and liabilities are recorded at cost or amortized cost and the associated transaction costs are added 
to the carrying value of these investments upon initial recognition. Transaction costs are incremental costs directly 
attributable to the acquisition or issue of a financial asset or a financial liability. The School District has not invested 
in any equity instruments that are actively quoted in the market and has not designated any financial instruments to 
be recorded at fair value. The School District has no instruments in the fair value category and therefore no statement 
of remeasurement gains or losses is presented. 
 
All financial assets except derivatives are tested annually for impairment. When financial assets are impaired, 
impairment losses are recorded in the statement of operations. A write-down of a portfolio investment to reflect a loss 
in value is not reversed for a subsequent increase in value. 
 
For financial instruments measured using amortized cost, the effective interest rate method is used to determine 
interest revenue or expense.  

 
s) Measurement Uncertainty 

 
Preparation of financial statements in accordance with the basis of accounting described in Note 2 requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that impact reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of 
the financial statements and revenues and expenses during the reporting periods. Areas requiring the use of 
management estimates relate to the potential impairment of assets, asset retirement obligations, rates for amortization 
and estimated employee future benefits.  Actual results could differ from those estimates.  

 
 
NOTE 2   SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
t) Future Changes in Accounting Policies 
 

PS 3400 Revenue issued November 2018 establishes standards on how to account for and report on revenue and is 
effective July 1, 2023. Specifically, it differentiates between revenue arising from transactions that include 
performance obligations, referred to as "exchange transactions", and transactions that do not have performance 
obligations, referred to as "non-exchange transactions". 
 
Revenue from transactions with performance obligations should be recognized when (or as) the school district satisfies 
a performance obligation by providing the promised goods or services to a payor. 
 
Revenue from transactions with no performance obligations should be recognized when a school district: 

(a) Has the authority to claim or retain an inflow of economic resources; and 
(b) Identifies a past transaction or event that gives rise to an asset. 

 
This standard may be applied retroactively or prospectively.  Management is in the process of assessing the impact of 

 
 

Page 40 of 271



SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 62 (SOOKE) 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

 
 

 
 Page  15 

  
 

NOTE 3  ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE  OTHER RECEIVABLES 
 

 June 30, 2023 June 30, 2022 
   
Due from Federal Government $        123,924 $        472,425 
Payroll accounts receivable 3,009 785 
School site acquisition charges receivable 52,988 153,306 
Other accounts receivable 377,858 352,783 
   
 $        557,779  $        979,299  

 
 
NOTE 4  PREPAID LEASE 
 
The School District prepaid a long-term lease to the Federal Government for the use of the John Stubbs Memorial School 
site for 50 years.  This lease started on July 1, 2005 and ends on June 30, 2055. 
 
The unamortized balance of the lease represents $1,972,386 (2022: $2,033,863) of the prepaid expenses. 
 
 
NOTE 5   ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES 
 

 June 30, 2023 June 30, 2022 
   
Trade payables $     2,923,554 $   11,230,416 
Salaries and benefits payable 6,405,725 5,288,686 
Accrued vacation pay 862,384 823,964 
   
 $   10,191,663 $   17,343,066 

 
NOTE 6   UNEARNED REVENUE 
 

 June 30, 2023 June 30, 2022 
   
Balance, beginning of year $     5,342,608  $     4,940,497  
   
  Increase:   
    Tuition fees collected 6,148,709 7,039,307 
 6,148,709 7,039,307 
   
  Decrease:   
    Tuition fees recognized (6,361,744) (6,637,196) 
 (6,361,744) (6,637,196) 
   
  Net change for the year (213,035) 402,111 
   
Balance, end of year $     5,129,573  $     5,342,608  

 
 
 

Page 41 of 271



SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 62 (SOOKE) 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

 
 

 
 Page  16 

  
 

NOTE 7  DEFERRED REVENUE 
 
Deferred revenue includes unspent grants and contributions received that meet the description of a restricted contribution 
in the Restricted Contributions Regulation 198/2011 issued by Treasury Board, i.e., the stipulations associated with those 
grants and contributions have not yet been fulfilled. 
 

 June 30, 2023 June 30, 2022 
   
Balance, beginning of year $     1,626,020 $     1,358,545 
   
  Increase:   
    Provincial Grants - Ministry of Education and Child Care 24,998,689 20,649,732 
    Provincial Grants - Other 132,490 - 
    Federal Grants 9,420 - 
    Other revenue 4,505,196 3,375,948 
    Investment income 42,447 13,818 
 29,688,242 24,039,498 
   
  Decrease:   
    Transfers to revenue (29,436,450) (23,751,617) 
    Grants recovered  (20,406) 
 (29,436,450) (23,772,023) 
   
  Net change for the year 251,792 267,475 
   
Balance, end of year $     1,877,812  $     1,626,020  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 42 of 271



SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 62 (SOOKE) 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

 
 

 
 Page  17 

  
 

NOTE 8   DEFERRED CAPITAL REVENUE 
 
Deferred capital revenue includes grants and contributions received that are restricted by the contributor for the acquisition 
of tangible capital assets that meet the description of a restricted contribution in the Restricted Contributions Regulation 
198/2011 issued by Treasury Board. Once spent, the contributions are amortized into revenue over the life of the asset 
acquired. 
 

 June 30, 2023 June 30, 2022 
   
Deferred Capital Revenue Subject to Amortization   
Balance, beginning of year $ 185,951,836 $ 192,140,028 
   
  Increases:   
    Transfer from deferred capital revenue  capital additions 

 Transfer from deferred capital revenue  work in progress 
1,338,602 

80,523,795 
- 

2,320,615 
 81,862,397 2,320,615 
   
  Decreases:   
    Amortization of deferred capital revenue (9,680,922) (8,447,330) 
    Amortization of long term lease (61,477) (61,477) 
 (9,742,399) (8,508,807) 
   
  Net change for the year 72,119,998 (6,188,192) 
   
Balance, end of year $ 258,071,834  $ 185,951,836  

 
 
 

 June 30, 2023 June 30, 2022 
   
Deferred Capital Revenue - Work In Progress   
Balance, beginning of year $   63,318,024  $   21,595,619  
   
  Increases:   
    Transfer from deferred capital revenue - unspent 21,913,226 44,043,020 
 21,913,226 44,043,020 
   
  Decreases:   
    Transfer to deferred capital revenue subject to amortization  

(80,523,795) 
 

(2,320,615) 
 (80,523,795) (2,320,615) 
   
  Net change for the year (58,610,569) 41,722,405 
   
Balance, end of year $     4,707,455  $   63,318,024  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 43 of 271



SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 62 (SOOKE) 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

 
 

 
 Page  18 

  
 

NOTE 8   DEFERRED CAPITAL REVENUE (continued) 
 

 June 30, 2023 June 30, 2022 
   
Deferred Capital Revenue - Unspent   
Balance, beginning of year $      4,604,313   $      2,241,195   
   
  Increases:   
    Provincial Grants - Ministry of Education and Child Care 23,907,681 44,617,191 
    Provincial Grants  Other 890,899 1,150,132 
    Other 2,517,816 1,938,639 
    Investment income 10,245 2,530 
 27,326,641 47,708,492 
   
  Decreases:   
    Transfer to deferred capital revenue  capital additions (1,338,602) - 
    Transfer to deferred capital revenue  work in progress (21,913,226) (44,043,020) 
    Transfer to revenue  site purchases (1,938,486) (367,285) 
    Transfer to revenue  expensed costs (1,205,490) (935,069) 
 (26,395,804) (45,345,374) 
   
  Net change for the year 930,837 2,363,118 
   
Balance, end of year $      5,535,150     $      4,604,313    

   
Total Deferred Capital Revenue Balance, end of year $  268,314,439 $  253,874,173 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 44 of 271



SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 62 (SOOKE) 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

 
 

 
 Page  19 

  
 

NOTE 9  EMPLOYEE FUTURE BENEFITS 
 
Benefits include vested sick leave, accumulating non-vested sick leave, early retirement, retirement/severance, vacation, 
overtime and death benefits. Funding is provided when the benefits are paid and accordingly, there are no plan assets.  
Although no plan assets are uniquely identified, the School District has provided for the payment of these benefits.  
 

 June 30, 2023 June 30, 2022 
   
Reconciliation of Accrued Benefit Obligation   
Accrued benefit obligation - April 1 $     6,424,522  $     5,329,627  
Service cost 649,499 503,896 
Interest cost 218,202 139,605 
Benefit payments (526,372) (360,208) 
Increase (Decrease) in obligation due to Plan Amendment - 8,844 
Actuarial loss (gain) (1,063,266) 802,758 
Accrued benefit obligation - March 31 $     5,702,585  $     6,424,522  
   
Reconciliation of Funded Status at End of Fiscal Year   
Accrued benefit obligation - March 31 $     5,702,585   $     6,424,522   
Market value of Plan Assets - March 31 -  -  
Funded Status - Deficit (5,702,585) (6,424,522) 
Employer contributions after measurement date 1,287 82,234 
Benefits expense after measurement date (202,316) (216,925) 
Unamortized net actuarial loss (201,796) 1,033,773 
Accrued benefit liability - June 30 $   (6,105,410)  $   (5,525,440)  
   
Reconciliation of Change in Accrued Benefit Liability   
Accrued benefit liability - July 1 $     5,525,439  $     5,036,948  
Net expense for fiscal year 1,025,397 877,631 
Employer contributions (445,426) (389,139) 
Accrued benefit liability - June 30 $     6,105,410  $     5,525,440  
   
Components of Net Benefit Expense   
Service cost $        629,509  $        540,297  
Interest cost 223,583 159,254 
Immediate Recognition of Plan Amendment - 8,844 
Amortization of net actuarial loss 172,305 169,236 
Net benefit expense for fiscal year $     1,025,397  $        877,631  

 
 2023 2022 

 
 

 
Discount Rate  April 1 3.25% 2.50% 
Discount Rate  March 31 4.00% 3.25% 
Long Term Salary Growth  April 1 2.50% + seniority 2.50% + seniority 
Long Term Salary Growth  March 31 2.50% + seniority 2.50% + seniority 
EARSL  March 31 10.2 10.2 

 
 
 
 

Page 45 of 271



SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 62 (SOOKE) 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

 
 

 
 Page  20 

  
 

NOTE 10 TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS 
  

Net Book Value June 30, 2023 
June 30, 2022 

(restated see Note 25) 
   
Sites $ 119,985,376                  $  118,046,890 
Buildings 255,338,319 186,696,255 
Buildings  WIP 4,375,282 62,253,615 
Furniture & Equipment 12,441,725 10,047,251 
Furniture  WIP 668,765 1,064,409 
Vehicles 3,821,819 2,796,606 
Computer Software - - 
Computer Hardware 37,969 65,918 
   
Total $ 396,669,255 $  380,970,944 

 
June 30, 2023 
 

Cost: 
Balance at 

July 1, 2022 Additions Disposals Transfers (WIP) 
Balance at 

June 30, 2023 
      
Sites $ 118,046,890 $   1,938,486 $                  - $                   - $  119,985,376 
Buildings 306,191,905 - - 76,688,512 382,880,417 
Buildings  WIP 62,253,615 18,810,179 - (76,688,512) 4,375,282 
Furniture & Equipment 16,986,212 - (393,882) 4,294,829 20,887,159 
Furniture  WIP 1,064,409 3,899,185 - (4,294,829) 668,765 
Vehicles 5,693,759 1,643,629 (662,830) - 6,674,558 
Computer Software - - - - - 
Computer Hardware 264,859 9,330 (215,560) - 58,629 
Computer Hardware - WIP - - - - - 
      
Total $ 510,501,649 $ 26,300,809 $ (1,272,272) $                   - $  535,530,186 

 
 

Accumulated Amortization: 
Balance at 

July 1, 2022 Amortization Disposals 
Balance at 

June 30, 2023 
     
Sites $                      - $                    - $                   - $                    - 
Buildings 119,495,650 8,046,448 - 127,542,098 
Furniture & Equipment 6,938,961 1,900,355 (393,882) 8,445,434 
Vehicles 2,897,153 618,416 (662,830) 2,852,739 
Computer software - - - - 
Computer hardware 198,941 37,279 (215,560) 20,660 
     
Total $   129,530,705 $   10,602,498 $  (1,272,272) $ 138,860,931 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 46 of 271



SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 62 (SOOKE) 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

 
 

 
 Page  21 

  
 

NOTE 10 TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS (continued) 
 
June 30, 2022 
 

Cost: 
Balance at 

July 1, 2021 

ARO 
(see Note 25) 

Additions Disposals 
Transfers 

(WIP) 

Balance at 
June 30, 2022 

(restated see 
Note 25) 

       
Sites $ 117,679,605 $                - $      367,285 $               - $                   - $ 118,046,890 
Buildings 299,179,326 6,882,996 - - 129,583 306,191,905 
Buildings  WIP 21,398,399 - 40,984,799 - (129,583) 62,253,615 
Furniture & Equipment 14,959,274 - - (399,968) 2,426,906 16,986,212 
Furniture  WIP 197,221 - 3,294,094 - (2,426,906) 1,064,409 
Vehicles 5,610,053 - 135,182 (51,476) - 5,693,759 
Computer Software - - - - - - 
Computer Hardware 257,817 - 49,299 (42,257) - 264,859 
Computer Hardware - WIP - - - - - - 
       
Total $ 459,281,695 $ 6,882,996 $ 44,830,659 $ (493,701) $                   - $ 510,501,649 

 
 

Accumulated 
Amortization: 

Balance at 
July 1, 2021 

ARO 
(see Note 25) 

Amortization Disposals 

Balance at 
June 30, 2022 

(restated see 
Note 25) 

      
Sites $                    - $                 - $                  - $               - $                    - 
Buildings 105,528,788 6,870,016 7,096,846 - 119,495,650 
Furniture & Equipment 5,741,655 - 1,597,274 (399,968) 6,938,961 
Vehicles 2,383,438 - 565,191 (51,476) 2,897,153 
Computer Software - - - - - 
Computer Hardware 188,930 - 52,268 (42,257) 198,941 
      
Total $ 113,842,811 $   6,870,016 $   9,311,579 $ (493,701) $ 129,530,705 

 
Work in progress (WIP) includes buildings, furniture and equipment and computer hardware that have not been 
amortized.  Amortization of these assets will commence when the assets are put into service. 
 
Contributed tangible capital assets 
Contributed capital assets are recognized at fair market value at the date of contribution.  The value of contributed assets 
received during the year is $0 (2021 - $0). 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 47 of 271



SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 62 (SOOKE) 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

 
 

 
 Page  22 

  
 

NOTE 11  EMPLOYEE PENSION PLANS  
 
The School District and 
trusteed pension plans). The boards of trustees for these plans, representing plan members and employers, are 
responsible for administering the pension plans, including investing assets and administering benefits. The plans are 
multi-employer defined benefit pension plans. Basic pension benefits are based on a formula. As at December 31, 
2022 51,000 active members and approximately 41,000 retired members. As of 
December 31, 2022, the Municipal Pension Plan has about 240,000 active members, including approximately 30,000 
from school districts. 
  
Every three years, an actuarial valuation is performed to assess the financial position of the plans and adequacy of plan 
funding. The actuary determines an appropriate combined employer and member contribution rate to fund the plans. 

- age normal cost method, which produces the long-
term rate of member and employer contributions sufficient to provide benefits for average future entrants to the plans. 
This rate may be adjusted for the amortization of any actuarial funding surplus and will be adjusted for the 
amortization of any unfunded actuarial liability.  
 

20, indicated a $1,584 million 
surplus for basic pension benefits on a going concern basis. 
  
The most recent actuarial valuation for the Municipal Pension Plan as at December 31, 2021, indicated a $3,761 
million funding surplus for basic pension benefits on a going concern basis.  
 
The school district paid $12,164,474 for employer contributions to the plans for the year ended June 30, 2023 (2022: 
$11,110,448). 
  

3. The next valuation for the 
Municipal Pension Plan will be as at December 31, 2024, with results available in 2025.  
 
Employers participating in the plans record their pension expense as the amount of employer contributions made 
during the fiscal year (defined contribution pension plan accounting). This is because the plans record accrued 
liabilities and accrued assets for each plan in aggregate, resulting in no consistent and reliable basis for allocating the 
obligation, assets and cost to individual employers participating in the plans. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 48 of 271



SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 62 (SOOKE) 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

 
 

 
 Page  23 

  
 

 
NOTE 12 RESTRICTED ASSETS - ENDOWMENT FUNDS 
 
Donors have provided endowment contributions with a restriction that the original contribution should not be spent. These 
endowments have been invested in high interest savings accounts bearing interest at 4.64%.  
 
Other than the Victor Chen Memorial endowment, the endowments were established to provide scholarships and bursaries 
for one or more deserving graduate or undergraduate students in full time attendance at Edward Milne Community School.  
The Victor Chen Memorial endowment was established to provide annual scholarships in perpetuity to a student or 
students from the Westshore planning to study engineering. 
 
 

 
Name of Endowment 

Balance 
July 1, 2022 

 
Contributions 

Balance 
June 30, 2023 

    
Cal Meyer $        609,285 $                  - $        609,285 

 17,554 - 17,554 
Derochie 10,000 - 10,000 
STARR 6,000 - 6,000 
Victor Chen Memorial 30,610 - 30,610 
Total $        673,449 $                  - $        673,449 

 
NOTE 13 TRUSTS UNDER ADMINISTRATION 
 

summer savings plan. 
 
As at June 30, 2023, the District held the following funds in place, as directed by agreement with the employees. These 
amounts have not been included in the cash or accounts payable balances in the financial statements: 
 

 June 30, 2023 June 30, 2022 
   
Deferred Salary Leave Plan $        392,381 $        286,370 

Savings Plan 2,021,667 1,753,966 
Total $     2,414,048 $     2,040,336 

 
NOTE 14 INTERFUND TRANSFERS 
 
Interfund transfers between the operating, special purpose and capital funds for the year ended June 30, 2023, were as 
follows: 
 

 Transfer to the capital fund for tangible capital assets purchased from the operating fund $314,357 

 Transfer to the capital fund for tangible capital assets work in progress from the operating fund $432,348 

 Transfer to the capital fund for tangible capital assets work in progress from the special purpose fund $13,790 

 Transfer to the local capital fund for tangible capital assets work in progress from the operating fund $350,000 
 
NOTE 15 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 
 
The School District is related through common ownership to all Province of British Columbia ministries, agencies, school 
districts, health authorities, colleges, universities, and crown corporations.  Transactions with these entities, unless 
disclosed separately, are considered to be in the normal course of operations and are recorded at the exchange amount. 
  

Page 49 of 271



SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 62 (SOOKE) 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

 
 

 
 Page  24 

  
 

NOTE 16 CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS 
 
The School District has entered into a number of multiple-year contracts for the delivery of services and the construction 
of tangible capital assets. These contractual obligations will become liabilities in the future when the terms of the contracts 
are met. Disclosure relates to the unperformed portion of the contracts. 
 

 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 Thereafter 

Premises leases $  105,137 $    83,196 $    86,992 $    94,584 $    7,908 $             - 

Copier leases 130,167 93,340 78,482 73,298 27,650 - 

Total $  235,304 $  176,536 $  165,474 $  167,882 $  35,558 $             - 

 
The School District has entered into contracts related to capital projects with a remaining cost of approximately 
$38,704,599. 
 
NOTE 17 CONTRACTUAL RIGHTS 
 
Contractual rights are rights to economic resources arising from contracts or agreements that will result in revenues and 

ool 
District property. The following table summarizes the contractual rights of the School District for future assets. 
 

 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 Thereafter 

Future lease/rental revenue $ 314,670 $ 231,769 $ 223,335 $ 202,023 $ 75,520 $          - 

Total $ 314,670 $ 231,769 $ 223,335 $ 202,023 $ 75,520 $          - 

 
 
NOTE 18 CONTINGENT ASSETS 
 
Contingent assets are possible assets arising from existing conditions or situations involving uncertainty.  That uncertainty 

to occur.  Resolution of the uncertainty will confirm the existence or non-existence of an asset. 
 
At this time the School District has determined that there are no contingent assets. 
 
 
NOTE 19 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 
 

es is such that there is usually litigation pending or in process at any time.  With 
respect to unsettled claims at June 30, 2023, management believes the School District has valid defenses and appropriate 
insurance coverage in place.  In the event any claims are successful, management believes that such claims are not expected 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 50 of 271



SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 62 (SOOKE) 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

 
 

 
 Page  25 

  
 

NOTE 20 BUDGET FIGURES 
 
Budget figures included in the financial statements were approved by the Board through the adoption of an amended 
annual budget bylaw on February 28, 2023.  The original budget was adopted on May 24, 2022.  The original and amended 
budgets are presented below. 
 

   2023  
   Amended 2023 
   Annual Annual 
   Budget Budget 

Revenues  $ $ 
 Provincial Grants   

  Ministry of Education and Child Care 163,941,392  150,803,293 
 Tuition  6,899,749 6,899,749 
 Other Revenue 5,036,317 3,687,765 
 Rentals and Leases 502,500  502,500  
 Investment Income 370,395 363,875  
 Amortization of Deferred Capital Revenue 9,581,173 9,271,906 
 Amortization of Deferred Capital Revenue - for long term lease 61,477  61,477  

 Total Revenue 186,393,003 171,590,565 
     

Expenses  
  

 Instruction 151,717,077 138,904,388 
 District Administration 6,870,183 6,364,125 
 Operations and Maintenance 23,942,726 22,997,542 
 Transportation and Housing 3,951,925 3,302,851 

 Total Expense 186,481,911 171,568,906 
     

Net Revenue (Expense) (88,908) 21,659 
     

Budgeted Allocation (Retirement) of Surplus (Deficit) 3,111,224 1,023,234 
     

Budgeted Surplus (Deficit), for the year 3,022,316 1,044,893 

 
 
NOTE 21 ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATION 
 
Legal liabilities exist for the removal and disposal of asbestos and other environmentally hazardous materials such as lead 
pipes and lead paint within some district owned buildings that will undergo major renovations or demolition in the future.  
The timing of future settlement is unknown. 
 

 
2023 2022  

(restated see Note 25)  

Asset Retirement Obligation, beginning of year $    6,882,996 $    6,882,996 

Settlements during the year - - 

Asset Retirement Obligation, end of year $    6,882,996 $    6,882,996 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 51 of 271



SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 62 (SOOKE) 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

 
 

 
 Page  26 

  
 

 
NOTE 22 EXPENSE BY OBJECT 
 

 June 30, 2023 June 30, 2022 
   
Salaries and benefits $ 151,909,431 $ 135,058,442 
Services and supplies 23,806,483 19,766,894 
Amortization 10,602,498 9,311,579 
   
Total $ 186,318,412 $ 164,136,915 

 
 
NOTE 23 ACCUMULATED SURPLUS 
 
Accumulated surplus consists of surplus balances of operating, special purpose fund  endowments, and invested in 
tangible capital assets as follows: 
 

 June 30, 2023 June 30, 2022 
(restated see Note 

25) 
   
Operating surplus $     5,228,849 $     5,576,128 
Special Purpose Fund  endowments 673,449 673,449 
Invested in Tangible Capital Assets 128,979,463 126,852,058 
   
Total Accumulated Surplus $ 139,971,651 $ 133,101,635 

 
The operating surplus is categorized as follows: 
 

   
 June 30, 2023  
Internally Restricted Operating Surplus   
  Restricted due to the nature of constraints on the funds $       524,473  
  Restricted for operations spanning multiple school years 281,688  
  Restricted for anticipated unusual expenses identified by the Board 2,819,927  
Subtotal Internally Restricted Operating Surplus 3,626,088  
   
Unrestricted Operating Surplus - Contingency 1,602,761  
   
Total Operating Surplus $    5,228,849  

 

NOTE 24 ECONOMIC DEPENDENCE 

The operations of the School District are dependent on continued funding from the Ministry of Education and Child Care 
and various governmental agencies to carry out its programs.  These financial statements have been prepared on a going 
concern basis. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 52 of 271



SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 62 (SOOKE) 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

 
 

 
 Page  27 

  
 

 
 
 
NOTE 25 PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT  CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING POLICY 
 
On July 1, 2022 the School District adopted Canadian public sector accounting standard PS 3280 Asset Retirement 
Obligations. This new standard addresses the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of legal obligations 
associated with the retirement of certain tangible capital assets such as asbestos removal in buildings that will undergo 
major renovation or demolition in the future (see Note 21). This standard was adopted using the modified retroactive 
approach.  
 
 
The impact of the prior period adjustment on the June 30, 2022 comparative amounts is as follows: 
 

 
 

Increase 
(Decrease) 

  
Tangible Capital Assets  cost $   6,882,996 
Tangible Capital Assets  accumulated amortization 6,870,016 
Asset Retirement Obligation (liability) 6,882,996 
  
Accumulated Surplus, July 1, 2021 (6,868,019) 
  
Amortization Expense  1,997 
  
Annual Surplus for the year ending June 30, 2022 (1,997) 
  
  
Accumulated Surplus, June 30, 2022 $ (6,870,016) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 53 of 271



SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 62 (SOOKE) 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

 
 

 
 Page  28 

  
 

 
 
NOTE 26 RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
The School District has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments: credit risk, market risk and 
liquidity risk.  
 
The Board ensures that the School District has identified its risks and ensures that management monitors and controls 
them.  
 
a) Credit risk:  

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to an institution if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to 
meet its contractual obligations. Such risks arise principally from certain financial assets held consisting of cash, 
amounts receivable and investments. 
 
The School District is exposed to credit risk in the event of non-performance by a debtor. This risk is mitigated as 
most amounts receivable are due from the Province and are collectible.  
 
It is management
deposits and investments as they are placed in recognized British Columbia institutions and the School District invests 
solely in guaranteed investment certificates with a fixed maturity date. 

 
b) Market risk: 

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of 
changes in market prices. Market risk is comprised of currency risk and interest rate risk.  
 

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because 

significant currency risk, as amounts held and purchases made in foreign currency are insignificant.  
 

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because 
of changes in the market interest rates. The School District is exposed to interest rate risk through its investments. 

solely in Guaranteed Investment Certificates that have a fixed maturity and cash deposits with the Ministry of 
Finance. 

 
c) Liquidity risk  

Liquidity risk is the risk that the School District will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they become 
due.  
 
The School District manages liquidity risk by continually monitoring actual and forecasted cash flows from 
operations and anticipated investing activities to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient 
liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable 

 
 
Risk Management and insurance services for all School Districts in British Columbia are provided by the Risk 
Management Branch of the Ministry of Finance. There have been no changes to risk exposure from 2022 related to 
credit, market or liquidity risks. 
 

Page 54 of 271



Schedule 1 (Unaudited)

2023 2022
Operating Special Purpose Capital Actual Actual

Fund Fund Fund (Restated - Note 25)

$ $ $ $ $

Accumulated Surplus (Deficit), beginning of year 5,576,128            673,449               126,852,058        133,101,635        139,259,388        
Prior Period Adjustments (6,868,019)          

Accumulated Surplus (Deficit), beginning of year, as restated 5,576,128            673,449               126,852,058        133,101,635        132,391,369        

Changes for the year
Surplus (Deficit) for the year 749,426               13,790                 1,016,910            1,780,126            710,266               
Interfund Transfers

Tangible Capital Assets Purchased (314,357)              314,357               -                           
Tangible Capital Assets - Work in Progress (432,348)              (13,790)                446,138               -                           
Local Capital (350,000)              350,000               -                           

Net Changes for the year (347,279)              -                           2,127,405            1,780,126            710,266               

Accumulated Surplus (Deficit), end of year - Statement 2 5,228,849            673,449               128,979,463        134,881,761        133,101,635        

School District No. 62 (Sooke)
Schedule of Changes in Accumulated Surplus (Deficit) by Fund
Year Ended June 30, 2023

Version: 8221-7476-5493
 September 12, 2023  15:26 Page 29

Page 55 of 271



Schedule 2 (Unaudited)

2023 2023 2022
Budget Actual Actual
(Note 20) (Restated - Note 25)

$ $ $
Revenues

Provincial Grants
Ministry of Education and Child Care 135,536,363      136,376,916      122,740,094      
Other 22,599               730                   

Tuition 6,899,749          6,361,744          6,637,195          
Other Revenue 945,666             1,470,144          1,273,555          
Rentals and Leases 502,500             492,358             393,661             
Investment Income 353,875             1,051,952          241,165             
Total Revenue 144,238,153      145,775,713      131,286,400      

Expenses
Instruction 122,691,092      122,200,110      109,785,484      
District Administration 6,870,183          6,997,503          5,841,891          
Operations and Maintenance 12,407,348        12,405,756        11,488,295        
Transportation and Housing 3,376,336          3,422,918          3,095,244          
Total Expense 145,344,959      145,026,287      130,210,914      

Operating Surplus (Deficit) for the year (1,106,806)         749,426             1,075,486          

Budgeted Appropriation (Retirement) of Surplus (Deficit) 3,111,224          

Net Transfers (to) from other funds
Tangible Capital Assets Purchased (1,654,418)         (314,357)            (184,481)            
Tangible Capital Assets - Work in Progress (350,000)            (432,348)            (102,132)            
Local Capital (350,000)            
Total Net Transfers (2,004,418)         (1,096,705)         (286,613)            

Total Operating Surplus (Deficit), for the year -                        (347,279)            788,873             

Operating Surplus (Deficit), beginning of year 5,576,128          4,787,255          

Operating Surplus (Deficit), end of year 5,228,849          5,576,128          

Operating Surplus (Deficit), end of year
Internally Restricted 5,228,849          5,576,128          
Total Operating Surplus (Deficit), end of year 5,228,849          5,576,128          

School District No. 62 (Sooke)
Schedule of Operating Operations
Year Ended June 30, 2023

Version: 8221-7476-5493
 September 12, 2023  15:26 Page 30

Page 56 of 271



Schedule 2A (Unaudited)

2023 2023 2022
Budget Actual Actual
(Note 20) (Restated - Note 25)

$ $ $
Provincial Grants - Ministry of Education and Child Care

Operating Grant, Ministry of Education and Child Care 129,597,913      130,343,164      121,840,185      
ISC/LEA Recovery (515,866)            (572,717)            (515,866)            
Other Ministry of Education and Child Care Grants

Pay Equity 931,052             931,052             931,052             
Funding for Graduated Adults 40,000               66,648               103,744             
Student Transportation Fund 358,365             358,365             358,365             
FSA Scorer Grant 12,000               12,964               12,964               
Child Care Funding 6,482                
Early Learning Framework (ELF) Implementation 1,824                 3,168                
Labour Settlement Funding 5,112,899          5,235,616          

Total Provincial Grants - Ministry of Education and Child Care 135,536,363      136,376,916      122,740,094      

Provincial Grants - Other 22,599               730                   

Tuition
Continuing Education 110,000             80,180               95,598               
International and Out of Province Students 6,789,749          6,281,564          6,541,597          
Total Tuition 6,899,749          6,361,744          6,637,195          

Other Revenues
Funding from First Nations 515,866             645,443             515,866             
Miscellaneous

Grants for Crossing Guards 70,000               115,000             106,000             
Miscellaneous 108,800             107,111             122,573             
Rebates 51,000               60,323               77,971               
Reclassified from SGF Discretionary 200,000             337,151             174,691             
Careers Program 125,191             189,904             
Transportation Safety Enhancement Fees 79,925               86,550               

Total Other Revenue 945,666             1,470,144          1,273,555          

Rentals and Leases 502,500             492,358             393,661             

Investment Income 353,875             1,051,952          241,165             

Total Operating Revenue 144,238,153      145,775,713      131,286,400      

School District No. 62 (Sooke)
Schedule of Operating Revenue by Source
Year Ended June 30, 2023

Version: 8221-7476-5493
 September 12, 2023  15:26 Page 31

Page 57 of 271



Schedule 2B (Unaudited)

2023 2023 2022
Budget Actual Actual
(Note 20) (Restated - Note 25)

$ $ $
Salaries

Teachers 54,564,115        53,900,943        49,878,807        
Principals and Vice Principals 9,745,939          9,619,843          8,513,507          
Educational Assistants 13,552,784        13,651,316        11,477,073        
Support Staff 13,727,935        13,494,106        12,454,246        
Other Professionals 5,281,009          5,344,305          4,770,015          
Substitutes 5,437,225          6,091,382          5,215,605          
Total Salaries 102,309,007      102,101,895      92,309,253        

Employee Benefits 26,065,358        26,184,315        22,819,832        

Total Salaries and Benefits 128,374,365      128,286,210      115,129,085      

Services and Supplies
Services 7,631,049          7,110,704          6,604,171          
Professional Development and Travel 1,068,586          1,099,322          934,188             
Rentals and Leases 386,891             468,644             411,859             
Dues and Fees 153,156             172,174             161,730             
Insurance 467,651             493,447             429,514             
Supplies 5,456,617          5,410,031          4,770,322          
Utilities 1,780,844          1,958,813          1,770,045          
Bad Debt 25,800               26,942               
Total Services and Supplies 16,970,594        16,740,077        15,081,829        

Total Operating Expense 145,344,959      145,026,287      130,210,914      

School District No. 62 (Sooke)

Year Ended June 30, 2023
Schedule of Operating Expense by Object

Version: 8221-7476-5493
 September 12, 2023  15:26 Page 32

Page 58 of 271



Schedule 2C (Unaudited)School District No. 62 (Sooke)
Operating Expense by Function, Program and Object

Principals and Educational Support Other
Teachers Vice Principals Assistants Staff Professionals Substitutes Total
Salaries Salaries Salaries Salaries Salaries Salaries Salaries

$ $ $ $ $ $ $
1 Instruction

1.02 Regular Instruction 45,364,592          260,911               183,373               1,819,011            486,535               4,185,997            52,300,419          
1.03 Career Programs 304,019               161,469               19,626                 485,114               
1.07 Library Services 1,363,608            288,699               93,575                 1,745,882            
1.08 Counselling 2,243,217            15,963                 2,259,180            
1.10 Special Education 1,043,135            279,373               13,074,634          121,887               1,191,733            632,864               16,343,626          
1.30 English Language Learning 2,114,712            71,731                 42,082                 2,228,525            
1.31 Indigenous Education 548,806               276,996               393,309               96,158                 31,799                 1,347,068            
1.41 School Administration 8,366,604            2,611,145            293,791               11,271,540          
1.61 Continuing Education -                         
1.62 International and Out of Province Students 916,760               286,490               359,114               1,562,364            
Total Function 1 53,898,849          9,470,374            13,651,316          5,529,214            1,678,268            5,315,697            89,543,718          

4 District Administration
4.11 Educational Administration 148,894               998,189               1,147,083            
4.40 School District Governance 145,488               145,488               
4.41 Business Administration 2,094                   575                      622,361               2,073,312            48,896                 2,747,238            
Total Function 4 2,094                   149,469               -                          622,361               3,216,989            48,896                 4,039,809            

5 Operations and Maintenance
5.41 Operations and Maintenance Administration 122,109               152,002               274,111               
5.50 Maintenance Operations 4,865,538            189,328               496,761               5,551,627            
5.52 Maintenance of Grounds 552,962               552,962               
5.56 Utilities -                         
Total Function 5 -                          -                          -                          5,540,609            341,330               496,761               6,378,700            

7 Transportation and Housing
7.41 Transportation and Housing Administration 135,192               107,718               1,881                   244,791               
7.70 Student Transportation 1,666,730            228,147               1,894,877            
Total Function 7 -                          -                          -                          1,801,922            107,718               230,028               2,139,668            

9 Debt Services
Total Function 9 -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                         

Total Functions 1 - 9 53,900,943          9,619,843            13,651,316          13,494,106          5,344,305            6,091,382            102,101,895        

Year Ended June 30, 2023

Page 33
Version: 8221-7476-5493
 September 12, 2023  15:26

Page 59 of 271



Schedule 2C (Unaudited)School District No. 62 (Sooke)
Operating Expense by Function, Program and Object

1 Instruction
1.02 Regular Instruction
1.03 Career Programs
1.07 Library Services
1.08 Counselling
1.10 Special Education
1.30 English Language Learning
1.31 Indigenous Education
1.41 School Administration
1.61 Continuing Education
1.62 International and Out of Province Students
Total Function 1

4 District Administration
4.11 Educational Administration
4.40 School District Governance
4.41 Business Administration
Total Function 4

5 Operations and Maintenance
5.41 Operations and Maintenance Administration
5.50 Maintenance Operations
5.52 Maintenance of Grounds
5.56 Utilities
Total Function 5

7 Transportation and Housing
7.41 Transportation and Housing Administration
7.70 Student Transportation
Total Function 7

9 Debt Services
Total Function 9

Total Functions 1 - 9

Year Ended June 30, 2023
2023 2023 2022

Total Employee Total Salaries Services and Actual Budget Actual
Salaries Benefits and Benefits Supplies (Note 20) (Restated - Note 25)

$ $ $ $ $ $ $

52,300,419          14,231,390          66,531,809          3,784,980            70,316,789          70,213,743          64,664,021          
485,114               122,756               607,870               457,446               1,065,316            953,555               954,311               

1,745,882            430,569               2,176,451            63,188                 2,239,639            2,516,165            2,158,777            
2,259,180            535,321               2,794,501            6,529                   2,801,030            2,787,815            2,494,805            

16,343,626          4,120,713            20,464,339          762,627               21,226,966          21,585,936          18,539,943          
2,228,525            566,166               2,794,691            93,481                 2,888,172            2,635,688            1,547,842            
1,347,068            303,982               1,651,050            438,098               2,089,148            2,003,534            1,925,106            

11,271,540          2,605,671            13,877,211          575,202               14,452,413          14,375,962          12,469,199          
-                          -                          89,243                 89,243                 73,055                 121,067               

1,562,364            385,373               1,947,737            3,083,657            5,031,394            5,545,639            4,910,413            
89,543,718          23,301,941          112,845,659        9,354,451            122,200,110        122,691,092        109,785,484        

1,147,083            220,042               1,367,125            631,015               1,998,140            1,825,090            1,760,976            
145,488               8,468                   153,956               247,585               401,541               314,088               246,238               

2,747,238            629,186               3,376,424            1,221,398            4,597,822            4,731,005            3,834,677            
4,039,809            857,696               4,897,505            2,099,998            6,997,503            6,870,183            5,841,891            

274,111               60,745                 334,856               397,296               732,152               1,100,108            575,892               
5,551,627            1,325,723            6,877,350            1,755,081            8,632,431            8,502,817            8,101,564            

552,962               127,583               680,545               401,815               1,082,360            1,023,579            1,040,794            
-                          -                          1,958,813            1,958,813            1,780,844            1,770,045            

6,378,700            1,514,051            7,892,751            4,513,005            12,405,756          12,407,348          11,488,295          

244,791               55,180                 299,971               88,278                 388,249               432,446               339,204               
1,894,877            455,447               2,350,324            684,345               3,034,669            2,943,890            2,756,040            
2,139,668            510,627               2,650,295            772,623               3,422,918            3,376,336            3,095,244            

-                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                         

102,101,895        26,184,315          128,286,210        16,740,077          145,026,287        145,344,959        130,210,914        

Page 34
Version: 8221-7476-5493
 September 12, 2023  15:26

Page 60 of 271



Schedule 3 (Unaudited)

2023 2023 2022
Budget Actual Actual
(Note 20) (Restated - Note 25)

$ $ $
Revenues

Provincial Grants
Ministry of Education and Child Care 25,255,691        24,900,071        20,419,963        
Other 8,000                 

Federal Grants 9,420                 
Other Revenue 4,090,651          4,496,953          3,314,054          
Investment Income 16,520               22,006               17,600               
Total Revenue 29,362,862        29,436,450        23,751,617        

Expenses
Instruction 29,025,985        28,816,200        22,965,526        
Operations and Maintenance 336,877             606,460             652,350             
Total Expense 29,362,862        29,422,660        23,617,876        

Special Purpose Surplus (Deficit) for the year -                        13,790               133,741             

Net Transfers (to) from other funds
Tangible Capital Assets - Work in Progress (13,790)              (133,741)            
Total Net Transfers -                        (13,790)              (133,741)            

Total Special Purpose Surplus (Deficit) for the year -                        -                        -                        

Special Purpose Surplus (Deficit), beginning of year 673,449             673,449             

Special Purpose Surplus (Deficit), end of year 673,449             673,449             

Special Purpose Surplus (Deficit), end of year
Endowment Contributions 673,449             673,449             
Total Special Purpose Surplus (Deficit), end of year 673,449             673,449             

School District No. 62 (Sooke)

Year Ended June 30, 2023
Schedule of Special Purpose Operations

Version: 8221-7476-5493
 September 12, 2023  15:26 Page 35

Page 61 of 271



Schedule 3A (Unaudited)School District No. 62 (Sooke)
Changes in Special Purpose Funds and Expense by Object

Annual Learning Scholarships School Ready, Classroom
Facility Improvement and Generated Strong Set, Enhancement
Grant Fund Bursaries Funds Start Learn OLEP CommunityLINK Fund - Overhead

$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $
Deferred Revenue, beginning of year -                          -                          5,320                  704,624              19,777                34,385                88,669              29,666                   -

Add: Restricted Grants
Provincial Grants - Ministry of Education and Child Care 336,877              444,917              192,000              41,650                518,610            776,820                 1,483,350           
Provincial Grants - Other
Federal Grants
Other 3,229,145           34,761                   
Investment Income 31,376                1,500                  

336,877              444,917              31,376                3,229,145           192,000              43,150                518,610            811,581                 1,483,350           
Less: Allocated to Revenue 336,877              444,917              11,725                3,210,235           196,625              44,862                593,438            801,865                 1,483,350           
Deferred Revenue, end of year -                          -                          24,971                723,534              15,152                32,673                13,841              39,382                   -

Revenues
Provincial Grants - Ministry of Education and Child Care 336,877              444,917              196,525              42,962                593,438            766,504                 1,483,350           
Provincial Grants - Other
Federal Grants
Other Revenue 3,210,235           34,761                   
Investment Income 11,725                100                     1,900                  600                        

336,877              444,917              11,725                3,210,235           196,625              44,862                593,438            801,865                 1,483,350           
Expenses

Salaries
Teachers 68,291              
Principals and Vice Principals 45,500                   27,541                
Educational Assistants 355,934              
Support Staff 7,307                  142,846              9,071                  1,041                59,767                   170,000             
Other Professionals 177,197                 120,000             
Substitutes 20,334                15,423                90,544              9,943                     874,500             

-                          355,934              -                          27,641                142,846              24,494                159,876            292,407                 1,192,041           
Employee Benefits 88,983                431                     41,234                5,811                  35,619              64,335                   268,919             
Services and Supplies 336,877              11,725                3,182,163           12,545                14,557                397,943            445,123                 22,390                

336,877              444,917              11,725                3,210,235           196,625              44,862                593,438            801,865                 1,483,350           

Net Revenue (Expense) before Interfund Transfers -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                        -                           -

Interfund Transfers
Tangible Capital Assets - Work in Progress

-                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                        -                           -

Net Revenue (Expense) -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                        -                           -

Year Ended June 30, 2023

Page 36
Version: 8221-7476-5493
 September 12, 2023  15:26

Page 62 of 271



Schedule 3A (Unaudited)School District No. 62 (Sooke)
Changes in Special Purpose Funds and Expense by Object

Deferred Revenue, beginning of year

Add: Restricted Grants
Provincial Grants - Ministry of Education and Child Care
Provincial Grants - Other
Federal Grants
Other
Investment Income

Less: Allocated to Revenue
Deferred Revenue, end of year

Revenues
Provincial Grants - Ministry of Education and Child Care
Provincial Grants - Other
Federal Grants
Other Revenue
Investment Income

Expenses
Salaries

Teachers
Principals and Vice Principals
Educational Assistants
Support Staff
Other Professionals
Substitutes

Employee Benefits
Services and Supplies

Net Revenue (Expense) before Interfund Transfers

Interfund Transfers
Tangible Capital Assets - Work in Progress

Net Revenue (Expense)

Year Ended June 30, 2023
Safe Return Federal Safe

Classroom First Nation Mental Changing to School / Return to Seamless Early Childhood Student &
Enhancement Student Health Results for Restart: Health Class / Day Education Dual Family

Fund - Staffing Transportation in Schools Young Children & Safety Grant Ventilation Fund Kindergarten Credit Program Affordability
$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $

-                          18,919                100,059              26,466                1,507                  118,076              666                     22,152                -

19,617,492         29,044                51,000                6,000                  55,400                1,251,529 

3,700                  1,200                  
19,617,492         29,044                54,700                7,200                  -                          -                          55,400                -                          1,251,529 
19,617,492         33,696                82,466                5,522                  1,507                  118,076              56,066                16,419                1,011,585 

-                          14,267                72,293                28,144                -                          -                          -                          5,733                  239,944

19,617,492         33,496                78,166                4,122                  1,507                  118,076              56,066                1,011,585 

16,419                
200                     4,300                  1,400                  

19,617,492         33,696                82,466                5,522                  1,507                  118,076              56,066                16,419                1,011,585 

15,746,902         

42,849                

24,207                4,119                  536                     
15,746,902         -                          24,207                4,119                  -                          -                          43,385                -                          -

3,870,590           5,130                  889                     10,215                
33,696                53,129                514                     1,507                  118,076              2,466                  16,419                997,795

19,617,492         33,696                82,466                5,522                  1,507                  118,076              56,066                16,419                997,795

-                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          13,790 

(13,790) 
-                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          (13,790) 

-                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -

Page 37
Version: 8221-7476-5493
 September 12, 2023  15:26

Page 63 of 271



Schedule 3A (Unaudited)School District No. 62 (Sooke)
Changes in Special Purpose Funds and Expense by Object

Deferred Revenue, beginning of year

Add: Restricted Grants
Provincial Grants - Ministry of Education and Child Care
Provincial Grants - Other
Federal Grants
Other
Investment Income

Less: Allocated to Revenue
Deferred Revenue, end of year

Revenues
Provincial Grants - Ministry of Education and Child Care
Provincial Grants - Other
Federal Grants
Other Revenue
Investment Income

Expenses
Salaries

Teachers
Principals and Vice Principals
Educational Assistants
Support Staff
Other Professionals
Substitutes

Employee Benefits
Services and Supplies

Net Revenue (Expense) before Interfund Transfers

Interfund Transfers
Tangible Capital Assets - Work in Progress

Net Revenue (Expense)

Year Ended June 30, 2023

SEY2KT ECL
(Early Years to (Early Care Art
Kindergarten) & Learning) Nature K ACE-IT Academies Starts Donations Theaters Horner

$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $
-                          -                          4,953                  -                          320,337              3,665                  60,607                43,447                3,158 

19,000                175,000              

40,000                1,143,167           7,600                  41,710                5,863                  
3,371                  1,200                  

19,000                175,000              -                          40,000                1,143,167           7,600                  45,081                7,063                  -
16,007                98,981                -                          40,000                1,109,059           7,058                  46,308                15,602                3,158 
2,993                  76,019                4,953                  -                          354,445              4,207                  59,380                34,908                -

16,007                98,981                

40,000                1,109,059           7,058                  45,727                14,402                3,158 
581                     1,200                  

16,007                98,981                -                          40,000                1,109,059           7,058                  46,308                15,602                3,158 

48,579                33,750                68,123                
12,007                13,367                

128                     3,091                  65,328                96                       

10,628                9,937                  7,674                  2,193                  993 
10,756                73,614                -                          33,750                154,492              -                          2,193                  96                       993 

1,974                  17,886                6,250                  40,585                381                     30                       138 
3,277                  7,481                  913,982              7,058                  43,734                15,476                2,027 

16,007                98,981                -                          40,000                1,109,059           7,058                  46,308                15,602                3,158 

-                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -

-                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -

-                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -

Page 38
Version: 8221-7476-5493
 September 12, 2023  15:26

Page 64 of 271



Schedule 3A (Unaudited)School District No. 62 (Sooke)
Changes in Special Purpose Funds and Expense by Object

Deferred Revenue, beginning of year

Add: Restricted Grants
Provincial Grants - Ministry of Education and Child Care
Provincial Grants - Other
Federal Grants
Other
Investment Income

Less: Allocated to Revenue
Deferred Revenue, end of year

Revenues
Provincial Grants - Ministry of Education and Child Care
Provincial Grants - Other
Federal Grants
Other Revenue
Investment Income

Expenses
Salaries

Teachers
Principals and Vice Principals
Educational Assistants
Support Staff
Other Professionals
Substitutes

Employee Benefits
Services and Supplies

Net Revenue (Expense) before Interfund Transfers

Interfund Transfers
Tangible Capital Assets - Work in Progress

Net Revenue (Expense)

Year Ended June 30, 2023

BCSSA SUAP
Island Mentorship Here 4 Health BC

Kidsport Chapter Grant Peers Canada CAISE TOTAL
$ $ $ $ $ $ $

1,439                  18,128                -                          -                          -                          -                          1,626,020           

24,998,689         
82,490                50,000                132,490              

9,420                  9,420                  
2,600                  350                     4,505,196           

100                     42,447                
-                          2,700                  82,490                50,000                9,420                  350                     29,688,242         

1,439                  14,390                8,000                  -                          9,420                  305                     29,436,450         
-                          6,438                  74,490                50,000                -                          45                       1,877,812           

24,900,071         
8,000                  8,000                  

9,420                  9,420                  
1,439                  14,390                305                     4,496,953           

22,006                
1,439                  14,390                8,000                  -                          9,420                  305                     29,436,450         

15,965,645         
98,415                

355,934              
501,524              
297,197              

6,153                  1,077,184           
-                          -                          -                          -                          6,153                  -                          18,295,899         

639                     4,460,039           
1,439                  14,390                8,000                  2,628                  305                     6,666,722           
1,439                  14,390                8,000                  -                          9,420                  305                     29,422,660         

-                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          13,790                

(13,790)               
-                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          (13,790)               

-                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          

Page 39
Version: 8221-7476-5493
 September 12, 2023  15:26

Page 65 of 271



Schedule 4 (Unaudited)

2023 2022
Budget Invested in Tangible Local Fund Actual
(Note 20) Capital Assets Capital Balance (Restated - Note 25)

$ $ $ $ $
Revenues

Provincial Grants
Ministry of Education and Child Care 3,149,338      3,143,976                   3,143,976      1,302,354        

Amortization of Deferred Capital Revenue 9,581,173      9,680,922                   9,680,922      8,447,330        
Amortization of Deferred Capital Revenue - for lease 61,477           61,477                        61,477           61,477             
Total Revenue 12,791,988    12,886,375                 -                    12,886,375    9,811,161        

Expenses
Operations and Maintenance 1,312,941      1,266,967                   1,266,967      996,546            
Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets

Operations and Maintenance 9,885,560      9,984,082                   9,984,082      8,748,385        
Transportation and Housing 575,589         618,416                      618,416         565,191            

Total Expense 11,774,090    11,869,465                 -                    11,869,465    10,310,122       

Capital Surplus (Deficit) for the year 1,017,898      1,016,910                   -                    1,016,910      (498,961)          

Net Transfers (to) from other funds
Tangible Capital Assets Purchased 1,654,418      314,357                      314,357         184,481            
Tangible Capital Assets - Work in Progress 446,138                      446,138         235,873            
Local Capital 350,000         350,000         350,000         
Total Net Transfers 2,004,418      760,495                      350,000         1,110,495      420,354            

Other Adjustments to Fund Balances
Tangible Capital Assets WIP Purchased from Local Capital 350,000                      (350,000)        -                    
Total Other Adjustments to Fund Balances 350,000                      (350,000)        -                    

Total Capital Surplus (Deficit) for the year 3,022,316      2,127,405                   -                    2,127,405      (78,607)            

Capital Surplus (Deficit), beginning of year 126,852,058               126,852,058  133,798,684     
Prior Period Adjustments

To Recognize Asset Retirement Obligation (6,868,019)        
Capital Surplus (Deficit), beginning of year, as restated 126,852,058               -                    126,852,058  126,930,665     

Capital Surplus (Deficit), end of year 128,979,463               -                    128,979,463  126,852,058     

School District No. 62 (Sooke)
Schedule of Capital Operations
Year Ended June 30, 2023

2023 Actual

Version: 8221-7476-5493
 September 12, 2023  15:26 Page 40

Page 66 of 271



Schedule 4A (Unaudited)

Furniture and Computer Computer
Sites Buildings Equipment Vehicles Software Hardware Total

$ $ $ $ $ $ $
Cost, beginning of year 118,046,890        299,308,909        16,986,212         5,693,759           -                          264,859              440,300,629        

Prior Period Adjustments
To Recognize Asset Retirement Obligation 6,882,996           6,882,996           

Cost, beginning of year, as restated 118,046,890        306,191,905        16,986,212         5,693,759           -                          264,859              447,183,625        

Changes for the Year
Increase:

Purchases from:
Deferred Capital Revenue - Bylaw 1,938,486           847,093              2,785,579           
Deferred Capital Revenue - Other 491,509              491,509              
Operating Fund 305,027              9,330                  314,357              

Transferred from Work in Progress 76,688,512         4,294,829           80,983,341         
1,938,486           76,688,512         4,294,829           1,643,629           -                          9,330                  84,574,786         

Decrease:
Deemed Disposals 393,882              662,830              215,560              1,272,272           

-                          -                          393,882              662,830              -                          215,560              1,272,272           
Cost, end of year 119,985,376        382,880,417        20,887,159         6,674,558           -                          58,629                530,486,139        
Work in Progress, end of year 4,375,282           668,765              5,044,047           
Cost and Work in Progress, end of year 119,985,376        387,255,699        21,555,924         6,674,558           -                          58,629                535,530,186        

Accumulated Amortization, beginning of year 112,625,634        6,938,961           2,897,153           198,941              122,660,689        
Prior Period Adjustments

To Recognize Asset Retirement Obligation 6,870,016           6,870,016           
Accumulated Amortization, beginning of year, as restated 119,495,650        6,938,961           2,897,153           -                          198,941              129,530,705        
Changes for the Year

Increase:  Amortization for the Year 8,046,448           1,900,355           618,416              37,279                10,602,498         
Decrease:

Deemed Disposals 393,882              662,830              215,560              1,272,272           
-                          393,882              662,830              -                          215,560              1,272,272           

Accumulated Amortization, end of year 127,542,098        8,445,434           2,852,739           -                          20,660                138,860,931        

Tangible Capital Assets - Net 119,985,376        259,713,601        13,110,490         3,821,819           -                          37,969                396,669,255        

School District No. 62 (Sooke)
Tangible Capital Assets
Year Ended June 30, 2023

Version: 8221-7476-5493
 September 12, 2023  15:26 Page 41

Page 67 of 271



Schedule 4B (Unaudited)

Furniture and Computer Computer
Buildings Equipment Software Hardware Total

$ $ $ $ $
Work in Progress, beginning of year 62,253,615       1,064,409         -                       -                       63,318,024       

Changes for the Year
Increase:

Deferred Capital Revenue - Bylaw 16,715,109       3,343,345         20,058,454       
Deferred Capital Revenue - Other 1,489,841         364,931            1,854,772        
Operating Fund 255,229            177,119            432,348            
Special Purpose Funds 13,790              13,790              
Local Capital 350,000            350,000            

18,810,179       3,899,185         -                       -                       22,709,364       

Decrease:
Transferred to Tangible Capital Assets 76,688,512       4,294,829         80,983,341       

76,688,512       4,294,829         -                       -                       80,983,341       

Net Changes for the Year (57,878,333)      (395,644)           -                       -                       (58,273,977)      

Work in Progress, end of year 4,375,282         668,765            -                       -                       5,044,047        

School District No. 62 (Sooke)
Tangible Capital Assets - Work in Progress
Year Ended June 30, 2023

Version: 8221-7476-5493
 September 12, 2023  15:26 Page 42

Page 68 of 271



Schedule 4C (Unaudited)

Bylaw Other Other Total
Capital Provincial Capital Capital

$ $ $ $
Deferred Capital Revenue, beginning of year 166,034,956      19,121,373        795,507             185,951,836      

Changes for the Year
Increase:

Transferred from Deferred Revenue - Capital Additions 847,093             491,509             1,338,602          
Transferred from Work in Progress 79,357,126        1,166,669          80,523,795        

80,204,219        -                        1,658,178          81,862,397        

Decrease:
Amortization of Deferred Capital Revenue 8,818,801          755,589             106,532             9,680,922          
Amortization of Deferred Capital Revenue - for long term lease 61,477               61,477               

8,880,278          755,589             106,532             9,742,399          

Net Changes for the Year 71,323,941        (755,589)            1,551,646          72,119,998        

Deferred Capital Revenue, end of year 237,358,897      18,365,784        2,347,153          258,071,834      

Work in Progress, beginning of year 62,738,024        580,000             63,318,024        

Changes for the Year
Increase

Transferred from Deferred Revenue - Work in Progress 20,058,454        917,501             937,271             21,913,226        
20,058,454        917,501             937,271             21,913,226        

Decrease
Transferred to Deferred Capital Revenue 79,357,126        1,166,669          80,523,795        

79,357,126        -                        1,166,669          80,523,795        

Net Changes for the Year (59,298,672)       917,501             (229,398)            (58,610,569)       

Work in Progress, end of year 3,439,352          917,501             350,602             4,707,455          

Total Deferred Capital Revenue, end of year 240,798,249      19,283,285        2,697,755          262,779,289      

School District No. 62 (Sooke)
Deferred Capital Revenue
Year Ended June 30, 2023

Version: 8221-7476-5493
 September 12, 2023  15:26 Page 43

Page 69 of 271



Schedule 4D (Unaudited)

MECC Other
Bylaw Restricted Provincial Land Other
Capital Capital Capital Capital Capital Total

$ $ $ $ $ $
Balance, beginning of year 141,844             456,050             1,150,132          2,841,957          14,330               4,604,313          

Changes for the Year
Increase:

Provincial Grants - Ministry of Education and Child Care 23,907,681        23,907,681        
Provincial Grants - Other 890,899             890,899             
Other 1,103,182          1,414,634          2,517,816          
Investment Income 10,245               10,245               

23,907,681        10,245               890,899             1,103,182          1,414,634          27,326,641        
Decrease:

Transferred to DCR - Capital Additions 847,093             491,509             1,338,602          
Transferred to DCR - Work in Progress 20,058,454        917,501             937,271             21,913,226        
Transferred to Revenue - Site Purchases 1,938,486          1,938,486          
Transferred to Revenue - Expensed Costs 1,205,490          1,205,490          

24,049,523        -                        917,501             -                        1,428,780          26,395,804        

Net Changes for the Year (141,842)            10,245               (26,602)              1,103,182          (14,146)              930,837             

Balance, end of year 2                        466,295             1,123,530          3,945,139          184                    5,535,150          

School District No. 62 (Sooke)
Changes in Unspent Deferred Capital Revenue
Year Ended June 30, 2023

Version: 8221-7476-5493
 September 12, 2023  15:26 Page 44

Page 70 of 271



2022/23  

FINANCIAL STATEMENT DISCUSSION & 
ANALYSIS 

SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 62 (SOOKE) 

Page 71 of 271



SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 62 (SOOKE) 
FINANCIAL STATEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (FSDA) 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 

1 | P a g e

The discussion and analysis of School District 62’s financial performance provides an overall 
narrative review of the School District’s financial activities for the year ended June 30, 2023. 
The intent of the Financial Statement Discussion and Analysis (FSDA) is to look at the District’s 
performance. The FSDA should be read in conjunction with the financial statements and note 
disclosures to enhance the overall understanding of School District 62’s financial picture for the 
year. 

THE SCHOOL DISTRICT 

The District has over 12,500 students and serves the communities of Sooke, Port Renfrew, 
Metchosin, Highlands, Langford and Colwood. Surrounded by forests, ocean, mountains and 
lakes, we are located a short distance from Victoria, the capital city of the province of British 
Columbia. The District is one of the fastest growing school districts in the province. 

The governing body of the School District is a Board of Education of seven school trustees who 
are each elected for a four-year term. The day-to-day matters are managed by the 
administrative staff of the School District, headed by the Superintendent of Schools.  

More about the District including the traditional territories, the Board of Education, and the 
Strategic Plan can be found on the District website at www.sd62.bc.ca

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

The financial statements provide these insights into the results of this year’s operations:  

Operating Fund 

 For the fiscal year 2022/23, the District Operating Fund had a deficit of $347,279 
($145,775,713 in revenues and $146,122,992 in total expense and capital asset purchases).  
When added to the balance of $5,756,128 at the beginning of the year, the accumulated 
surplus in the Operating Fund ended the year with a balance of $5,228,849. 

 This year-end balance is restricted for the following purposes: 
o Due to the nature of constraints on funds:  $    524,473 
o For operations spanning multiple school years:  $    281,688 
o For anticipated unusual expenses identified by the Board: $ 2,819,927 

 The unrestricted accumulated operating surplus is $1,602,761.  This balance is 1.0% of the 
$160,276,129 Operating Fund expenditures budgeted for the year ending June 30, 2024.  

Special Purpose Funds 
 Special Purpose Funds had $29,436,450 in total expenditures – an increase of 23.9% 

($5,684,833) from the prior year. 

Capital Fund 
 The District had $26,300,809 in tangible capital asset additions in the year – a decrease of 

41.3% ($18.5M) from the prior year.   

Page 72 of 271



SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 62 (SOOKE) 
FINANCIAL STATEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (FSDA) 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 

2 | P a g e

OVERVIEW OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The District’s financial statements include a Statement of Financial Position (Statement 1), 
Statement of Operations (Statement 2), Statement of Changes in Net Financial Assets (Debt) 
(Statement 4), Statement of Cash Flows (Statement 5), and note disclosures. 

These statements present aggregated information and serve as a means by which the District 
demonstrates its accountability for the resources, obligations and financial affairs for which it is 
responsible.  They report information required to make assessments of and judgments on 
government financial operations and management. 

As the Statement of Financial Position and Statement of Operations will be of particular concern 
to the users of the financial statements, the focus of this discussion and analysis will be on 
these two statements.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

The statement of financial position reports the financial position of the District at the financial 
statement date.  Four key figures help describe the financial position of the District at the 
financial statement date: financial assets; non-financial assets; liabilities; and accumulated 
surplus or deficit. 

The financial assets are assets that could be used to discharge existing liabilities or finance 
future operations and are not for consumption in the normal course of operations (such as 
inventory).  As at the statement date, the District had financial assets of $31.8M which is a 15% 
($5.6M) decrease from the $37.4M held the prior year.  The decrease is primarily due to Cash 
and Cash Equivalents ($4.3M) and by a decrease in Due from Province – Ministry of Education 
and Childcare ($0.8M). 

The non-financial assets of the District are assets that are, by nature, normally for use in 
service provision and include purchased, constructed, contributed, developed or leased capital 
assets, and prepaid expenses.  As at the statement date, the District had non-financial assets of 
$401.5M which is a 4% ($15.7M) increase from the $380.9M held the prior year.  The increase 
is due mainly to $26.3M in tangible capital asset additions offset by $10.6M in amortization for 
the year and a decrease in prepaid expenses ($0.3M). 

Page 73 of 271



SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 62 (SOOKE) 
FINANCIAL STATEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (FSDA) 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 

3 | P a g e

The liabilities are present obligations of the District to others arising from past transactions or 
events, the settlement of which is expected to result in the future sacrifice of economic benefits. 
As at the statement date, the District had liabilities of $298.5M which is a 3% ($7.9M) increase 
from the $290.6M held the prior year.  The increase is primarily due to an increase in Deferred 
Capital Revenues ($14.4M) and Asset Retirement Obligation ($6.9M), offset by a decrease of 
other accounts payable ($7.1M).   

The accumulated surplus or deficit of the District is calculated as the sum of the total assets 
less the liabilities of the District.  This indicator represents the net assets of the District.  

As at the statement date, the District had an accumulated surplus of $134.9M which is a 1% 
($1.8M) increase from the $133.1M held the prior year.  The increase is largely a result of the 
costs toward developing the South Langford Elementary School. 

Page 74 of 271



SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 62 (SOOKE) 
FINANCIAL STATEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (FSDA) 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 

4 | P a g e

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION METRICS 

The following are some statement of financial position metrics that indicate the financial health 
of the District.   

Working capital ratio / Current ratio is an indication of the ability of the District to meet its 
current financial obligations from the liquid assets it has at a point in time.  The ratio is 
calculated as current assets divided by current liabilities.   

If the ratio is less than 1.0, then the District may have trouble paying back creditors.  If the ratio 
is greater than 1.0, then the District has working capital and may have the potential to invest 
and grow. 

The District had a ratio of 1.50 as at June 30 2023, which is consistent with the prior year and 
significantly less than the current ratio of 3.10 of all the school districts in the province noted in 
the 2010 Office of the Auditor General Report on Management of Working Capital by Colleges 
and School Districts.  The District’s current ratio is also consistent with neighbouring districts 
SD61 (1.17) and SD63 (1.48) from 2021/22. 

Cash asset ratio is a measure of the District’s ability to pay its short-term obligations.  The ratio 
is calculated as cash and cash equivalents divided by total current liabilities.  The District had a 
ratio of 1.31 as at June 30, 2023, a slight improvement from the prior year (1.18).  The District’s 
ratio is within the Office of the Comptroller General of BC suggested ratio of greater than 1.0 
and is consistent with neighbouring districts SD61 (1.07) and SD63 (1.25) from 2021/22. 

Page 75 of 271



SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 62 (SOOKE) 
FINANCIAL STATEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (FSDA) 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 

5 | P a g e

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

The Statement of Operations reports the surplus or deficit from operations in the accounting 
period.  The statement displays the cost of District services provided in the period, the revenues 
it has recognized in the period and the difference between them. 

The Statement of Operations consolidates all revenues and expenses by function reported for 
the Operating (Schedule 2), Special Purpose (Schedule 3) and Capital funds (Schedule 4). 

The Operating Fund is where the majority of the District’s operations are reported.  As this will 
be of particular concern to the users of the financial statements, considerable focus and 
analysis is provided on the Operating Fund. 

OPERATING FUND 

The Operating Fund is comprised of four components: revenues, expenses, tangible capital 
assets purchased, and operating surplus or deficit.  The summary schedule for the Operating 
Fund can be found in Schedule 2 – the Schedule of Operating Operations in the financial 
statements. 

REVENUES 

The summary schedule for the District operating revenues can be found in Schedule 2A – the 
Schedule of Operating Revenue by Source. 

The most significant District operating revenues are generated from three sources: the 
operating grant, international tuition, and other Ministry of Education grants. 

OPERATING REVENUE ALLOCATION 

PROVINCIAL OPERATING GRANT 
(89.02%)

OTHER PROVINCIAL FUNDING  
(4.55%)

INTERNATIONAL TUITION  
(4.31%)

OTHER  
(2.12%)

Page 76 of 271



SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 62 (SOOKE) 
FINANCIAL STATEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (FSDA) 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 

6 | P a g e

The District’s operating revenues of $145.8 increased by 11% ($14.5M) over the prior year.  
Against a budget of $144.2M, the $145.8M in revenues resulted in savings of 1% ($1.5M). 

The $1.5M in savings was largely from the Operating Grant ($0.7M) and investment Income 
($0.7M). 

Operating Grant 

The Funding Allocation System allocates the General Operating Grants using individual district 
enrolments and specific factors that apply to each school district. 

As highlighted in the graph below, enrolment has increased every year over the past decade. 

Prior to 2021/22 the enrolment growth had slowed from 3.69% in 2017/18 to 1.27% in 2020/21.  
In 2021/22 the district experienced a significant increase in enrolment growth (6.23%) over the 
prior year.  Again, in 2022/2023 the district showed a healthy growth of 5.54%.  At an average 

Page 77 of 271



SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 62 (SOOKE) 
FINANCIAL STATEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (FSDA) 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 

7 | P a g e

enrolment increase of 3.84% over the past 5 years, the District’s growth is significantly higher 
than the provincial average (1.15%) over the same time period.   

The upward trajectory of student enrolment continued in the 2022/23 school year.  As detailed in 
the table below, there was a 7.9% (1,198.67 FTE) increase in total enrolment from the prior 
year.  

The increased enrolment along with funding level increases resulted in a 7% ($8.4M) increase 
in the operating grant from the prior year.  There were savings of $0.7M due to the February 
and May counts being higher than budgeted. 

Other Provincial Funding 

There was an increase of $5.2M in other Ministry of Education grants from the prior year mainly 
because of the provision of Labour Settlement Funding (5.2M).  Against a budget of $6.5M, the 
$6.6M in other provincial funding revenues was primarily on budget for the year. 

Page 78 of 271



SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 62 (SOOKE) 
FINANCIAL STATEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (FSDA) 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 

8 | P a g e

International Tuition 

The International Program stabilized after a significant increase in revenues in 2021/2022 due to 
lifted travel restrictions.  At $6.3M for 2022/23, revenues decreased by $0.26M from the prior 
year. 

The International Program cost $5.0M in expenses to generate the $6.3M in revenues – for net 
revenues of $1.3M in 2022/23.  This is about $0.3M less than the $1.6M in net revenues 
generated in the prior year.  The funds generated from the International Program go to support 
discretionary programs in the District.   

EXPENSES 

The summary schedule for the District operating expenses can be found in Schedule 2B (the 
Schedule of Operating Expense by Object) and Schedule 2C (the Schedule of Operating 
Expense by Function, Program and Object). 

The provincial averages are taken from data available to the public on the Ministry of Education 
financial reporting website.  At the time of issuance of this report, the provincial actuals for fiscal 
2023 were not yet available, as such the provincial budgets for fiscal 2023 were used for 
comparative purposes.  

3.77%

-9.01%

-45.88%

91.76%

-3.98%

-60.00%

-40.00%

-20.00%

0.00%

20.00%

40.00%

60.00%

80.00%

100.00%

 $1,000,000

 $2,000,000

 $3,000,000

 $4,000,000

 $5,000,000

 $6,000,000

 $7,000,000

2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23

Re
ve

nu
es

Revenues from International and Out of Province Students

Percentage Increase / (Decrease) of Revenues from Prior Year

Total Revenues from International and Out of Province Students

Page 79 of 271



SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 62 (SOOKE) 
FINANCIAL STATEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (FSDA) 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 

9 | P a g e

Expenses by Type (Object) 

The District’s spending allocations by object were in line with provincial averages - with 88.5% 
of its expenses on salaries and benefits (Province = 88.6%) and 11.5% on services and 
supplies (Province = 11.4%).   

The chart below further details spending allocations for the District in the year compared to 
provincial averages.  

FY23 EXPENSES BY OBJECT 

 TEACHERS SALARIES (SD62=37.2%; Prov=42.1%) PVP SALARIES (SD62=6.6%; Prov=5.7%) 
  
 EA SALARIES (SD62=9.4%; Prov=8.2%) SUPPORT STAFF SALARIES (SD62=9.3%; Prov=8.7%) 
  
 OTHER PROF. SALARIES (SD62=3.7%; Prov=2.9%) SUBSTITUTE SALARIES (SD62=4.2%; Prov=3.5%) 
  
 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (SD62=18.1%; Prov=17.4%) TOTAL SERVICES AND SUPPLIES (SD62=11.5%; Prov=11.4%) 

Page 80 of 271



SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 62 (SOOKE) 
FINANCIAL STATEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (FSDA) 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 

10 | P a g e

The District’s operating expenditures of $145.0M increased by 11.4% ($14.8M) over the prior 
year.  Against a budget of $145.3M, the $145.0M in expenditures resulted in savings of $0.32M 
(0.2%). 

The $0.32M in savings was largely from teacher salaries ($0.7M), PVP salaries ($0.1M), 
support staff salaries ($0.2M), and total service and supplies ($0.2M) offset by pressures in 
substitutes salaries ($0.7M) and employee benefits (0.1M). 

The $0.6M teacher salaries savings is largely due to hiring lag.  

The $0.1M PVP salaries savings is largely due to teachers in acting PVP roles.  

The $0.2M support staff salaries savings is largely due to staff turnover.  

The $0.7M substitute salaries pressure is largely due to higher teacher on call.  

The $0.23M savings in total services and supplies is largely from international program 
homestay expenditure savings.  

Page 81 of 271



SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 62 (SOOKE) 
FINANCIAL STATEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (FSDA) 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 

11 | P a g e

Expenses by Function 

The Districts expenditures can be categorized by the following functions: Instruction; District 
Administration; Operations and Maintenance; and Transportation.  The functions are defined as 
follows: 

 The Instruction function incorporates all programs related to the instruction of students. 
 The District Administration function incorporates the cost of all programs related to 

district governance and district administration of educational, business, human resource 
and labour relations activities. 

 The Operations and Maintenance function incorporates all programs related to the 
district’s responsibility for the operation, maintenance and safety of sites, buildings, and 
equipment. 

 The Transportation function incorporates programs involving the transportation of 
students. 

Over 84% of the District’s expenses are categorized under the Instruction function.  

FY23 EXPENSES BY FUNCTION 

 

INSTRUCTION  
(SD62=84.3%; Prov=82.7%) 

OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE 
(SD62=8.6%; Prov=11.3%) 

TRANSPORTATION  
(SD62=2.3%; Prov=2.0%) 

DISTRICT ADMINISTRATION  
(SD62=4.8%; Prov=4.0%) 

The District’s expense allocations are generally in line with the Provincial averages; however, 
the District’s expenditures are slightly more heavily allocated towards Instruction and less in 
Operations and Maintenance than other Districts.

Page 82 of 271



SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 62 (SOOKE) 
FINANCIAL STATEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (FSDA) 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 

12 | P a g e

Instruction 

The District’s $122.2M expenditures on Instruction for the year was an increase of $12.4M over 
the prior year. The $12.4M increase was largely from Regular Instruction ($5.6M – mostly 
teacher salaries and benefits), and Special Education ($2.7M – mostly EA salaries and 
benefits). 

Against a budget of $122.7M, the $122.2M expenditures resulted in savings of 0.4% ($0.5M).  
The savings were largely driven savings in International ($0.5M) and Special Education ($0.4M) 
offset by a pressure in English Language Learning ($0.3M). 

District Administration 

The District’s $7.0M expenditures on District Administration for the year was an increase of 20% 
($1.1M) over the prior year.   

The increase is largely due to increased salaries and benefits ($0.6M) in Education 
Administration, Human Resources (HR) Department and Finance Department, and services 
($0.18M) in HR and School District Governance.   

Against a budget of $6.9M, the $7.0M expenditures were primarily on budget for the year.  

Operations and Maintenance 

The District’s $12.4M expenditures on Operations and Maintenance for the year increased of 
8% ($0.9M) over the prior year.  This was largely due to an increase in Maintenance Operations 
($0.5M – mostly support salaries and benefits) and utilities ($0.19M).  

Against a budget of $12.4M, the $12.4M expenditures were primarily on budget for the year. 

Transportation 

The District’s $3.4M expenditures on Transportation for the year was a slight increase over the 
prior year.  Against a budget of $3.4M the $3.4M expenditures were primarily on budget for the 
year. 

Page 83 of 271



SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 62 (SOOKE) 
FINANCIAL STATEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (FSDA) 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 

13 | P a g e

TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PURCHASED AND WORK IN PROGRESS 

The amount of tangible capital assets purchased and tangible capital assets that are a work in 
progress can be found in Schedule 2 – the Schedule of Operating Operations in the financial 
statements.  The District spent $314,357 on tangible capital assets including electric bus 
charging stations, vehicles, and other equipment. 

ACCUMULATED SURPLUS (DEFICIT) 

Pursuant to Section 156(12) of the School Act, school districts must obtain prior approval from 
the Minister before incurring deficits in the operating fund.   The District’s year end position as 
reflected in the table below shows an accumulated operating surplus of $5,228,849 of which 
$3,626,088 is internally restricted and $1,602,761 is unrestricted/contingency.  

The unrestricted accumulated operating surplus of $1,602,761 is 1.0% of the $160,276,129 
Operating Fund budgeted expenditures for the year ended June 30, 2024. 

Page 84 of 271



SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 62 (SOOKE) 
FINANCIAL STATEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (FSDA) 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 

14 | P a g e

SPECIAL PURPOSE FUNDS 

All restricted contributions received, except for capital contributions and unearned revenues 
(tuition, rentals, etc.) must be reported as special purpose funds.  Revenues are recognized 
when the stipulation or restriction the contribution is subject to is met. 

The following table compares the most material expenditures for the year to the prior year of the 
special purpose funds. 

The District’s $29.4M expenditures on Special Purpose Funds for the year was a 24% ($5.7M) 
increase over the prior year.  There was an increase in Classroom Enhancement Fund 
expenditures of ($3.1M), Student and Family Affordability Fund (1.0M) and School Generated 
Funds ($0.9M).   

Page 85 of 271



SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 62 (SOOKE) 
FINANCIAL STATEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (FSDA) 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 

15 | P a g e

CAPITAL FUND 

The District’s tangible capital asset additions of $26,300,809 for the year was a 41% ($18.5M) 
decrease from the prior year.  The decrease is largely due to less purchases in the Expansion 
Program.  

Some of the more significant capital projects include: 
Expansion Program (EXP) – In 2022/23, $16.5M was spent on the continuing construction 
of the West Langford Elementary and Middle School.  In addition, $4.3M was spent on the 
development for the new South Langford Elementary school. 
School Enhancement Program (SEP) - $1.6M was spent on energy upgrade work at John 
Muir, Millstream, Spencer, and Dunsmuir. 
Building Envelope Program (BEP) - $0.2M was spent on building envelope upgrades at 
Hans Helgesen. 
Annual Facilities Grant (AFG) – $0.1M was spent on HVAC upgrades, and $0.09M on 
roofing upgrades.  
Child Care Capital Funding Program - $0.9M was spent on Childcare New Spaces at 
Colwood Elementary. 
Operating Fund – there were $0.75M in Operating Fund tangible capital asset purchases 
including electric charging stations for buses ($0.14M), electric buses ($0.31M), portables 
(0.25M) with the remainder on equipment ($0.05M). 
Special Purpose Fund - $0.01M of the Student Family Affordability Fund was spent on 
kitchen appliances. 

Page 86 of 271



SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 62 (SOOKE) 
FINANCIAL STATEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (FSDA) 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 

16 | P a g e

RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES 

The following list are some of the significant financial risks that the District is aware of that could 
negatively affect operations: 

Enrolment – Enrolment drives the District’s revenues and an inaccurate estimation of 
future enrolment could result in either an over or under deployment of resources.  
Additionally, an inaccurate estimation of future enrolment could further exacerbate the 
capacity issues the District is currently experiencing. 
Classroom Capacity – Continued enrollment increases will provide significant pressure 
on remaining space availability.  
Staff benefit rates – Benefit rates fluctuate from year to year dependent on staff usage 
so are difficult to accurately predict.  In 2022/23, the District benefit rate increased by 
0.92% from the prior year (2022/23 = 25.65%; 2021/22 = 24.72%). A one per cent 
fluctuation in $102M in salaries amounts to $1,020,000. 
Utilities – Expenditures on utilities fluctuate based on usage, and usage typically 
depends on the weather which, even for the Farmers’ Almanac, is impossible to predict.   
Leave liability – Leave balances (such as unused vacation balances) are recorded in 
the year they are earned.  The larger the balance, the larger the expense.  It is difficult to 
predict with accuracy across the District exactly how many vacation days staff plan on 
using in any given year. 
Salary differential – A component of the Operating Grant is the supplement for salary 
differential which provides additional funding to districts with average teacher salaries 
higher than the provincial average.  In 2022/23, the District received $126,952 more than 
the prior year (FY23 = $2,201,842; FY22=$2,074,890). 

Page 87 of 271



1  

 

 

Board Info Note 
September 26, 2023 

Agenda Item: 7.3 Amended 23/24 Capital Plan Bylaw 
 

 
Background 
 

• At their August 29, 2023 meeting, the Board passed the following motion to amend the District’s 23/24 

Capital Plan submission to reflect the request of $113,500 for the Food Infrastructure Capital Fund: 

Passed Motion: That the Board of Education of School District 62 (Sooke) endorse the capital submission 

to the Ministry of Education and Child Care Food Infrastructure Capital Fund in the amount of $113,500.  

 

Amended Capital Plan Bylaw 
 

• In order to be able to spend this funding, the Board is required to pass an Amended Capital Plan Bylaw 

and in the essence of time, staff are requesting that the Board consider all 3 readings of the bylaw at their 

September meeting 

 

• If all 3 readings are to be considered at one meeting, the following motion is required to be passed 

unanimously prior to the motion passing the bylaw is read:  

 

Recommended Motion:  That the Board of Education of School District 62 (Sooke) allow all three readings 
of the 2023/24 Amended Capital Plan Bylaw No. 2023/24 CPSD62-02 at its meeting of September 29, 
2023. 
 

Recommended Motion:  That the Board of Education of School District 62 (Sooke) give first, second and 

third readings to the 2023/24 Amended Capital Plan Bylaw No. 2023/24 CPSD62-02. 

 
 

 

Page 88 of 271



Capital Plan Bylaw 

AMENDED CAPITAL BYLAW NO. 2023/24 –  
CPSD62-02 CAPITAL PLAN 2023/24 

WHEREAS in accordance with section 142 of the School Act, the Board of Education of School District 
No. 62 (Sooke) (hereinafter called the “Board”) has submitted a capital plan to the Minister of Education 
(hereinafter called the "Minister") and the Minister has approved the capital plan or has approved a 
capital plan with modifications, 

NOW THEREFORE in accordance with section 143 of the School Act, the Board has prepared this 
Capital Bylaw and agrees to do the following: 

(a) Authorize the Secretary-Treasurer to execute a capital project funding agreement(s) related to the 
capital project(s) contemplated by the capital plan or the capital plan with modifications; 

(b) Upon ministerial approval to proceed, commence the capital project(s) and proceed diligently 
and use its best efforts to complete each capital project substantially as directed by the Minister; 

(c) Observe and comply with any order, regulation, or policy of the Minister as may be applicable to 
the Board or the capital project(s); and, 

(d) Maintain proper books of account, and other information and documents with respect to the 
affairs of the capital project(s), as may be prescribed by the Minister. 

NOW THEREFORE the Board enacts as follows: 

1. The Capital Bylaw of the Board for the 2023/2024 Capital Plan as approved by the Minister, to 
include the supported capital project(s) specified in the letter addressed to the Secretary-
Treasurer and Superintendent, dated September 15, 2023, is hereby adopted. 

2. This Capital Bylaw may be cited as School District 62 (Sooke) Amended Capital Bylaw No. 2023/24 – 
CPSD62-02. 

READ A FIRST TIME THE 26th DAY OF September 2023; 
READ A SECOND TIME THE 26th DAY OF September 2023; 
READ A THIRD TIME, PASSED THE 26th DAY OF September 2023. 

Board Chair 
APPLY CORPORATE SEAL 

Secretary-Treasurer 

I HEREBY CERTIFY this to be a true and original School District 62 (Sooke) Amended Capital Bylaw 
No. 2023/24 – CPSD62-02 adopted by the Board the 26th day of September 2023. 

Secretary-Treasurer 

Page 89 of 271



Page 90 of 271



Page 91 of 271



Page 92 of 271



Page 93 of 271



Page 94 of 271



Page 95 of 271



 

1  

 

 

               COMMITTEE REPORT OF THE 

EDUCATION-POLICY COMMITTEE 

School Board Office 
September 12, 2023 – 6:00 p.m. 

 
Present: Allison Watson, Trustee (Committee Chair) 

   Cendra Beaton, Trustee (Committee Member) 
   Trudy Spiller, Trustee  
                 Christina Kempenaar, STA 
   Lou Leslie, CUPE 
   Nevada Kaludjar, SPEAC 
   Georgette Walker, SPVPA 
   Paul Block, Deputy Superintendent 
   Scott Stinson, Superintendent/CEO 
   Monica Braniff, Associate Superintendent 
   Dave Strange, Associate Superintendent 
 
 Regrets: Russ Chipps, Trustee (Committee Member) 
 

Guests:  Denise Wehner and Laura Schwertfeger 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER AND ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF FIRST NATIONS TERRITORIES 
We are honoured to be meeting on the traditional territories of the Coast Salish:  T’Sou-ke Nation and 
Sc’ianew Nation and Nuu-chah-nulth: Pacheedaht Nation.  We also recognize some of our schools reside 
on the traditional territory of the Esquimalt Nation and Songhees Nation. 

 
2. Opening Remarks from Chair, Allison Watson 

Chair Watson opened the meeting with acknowledgment of the territory that she visited over the summer 
and invited members of the committee to also share their own travels and the lands upon which they visited. 
Chair welcomed members back to the school year and thanked them for their contributions to the Education- 
Policy Committee.  
 

3. COMMITTEE REPORT of June 6, 2023, Education-Policy Committee meeting 
The committee report for the June 6, 2023 Education-Policy Committee meeting was received by the 
committee.  No errors or omissions were noted. 
 

4. BAA COURSE PROPOSALS 
There are no BAA course proposals for this meeting. 
 

5. REVIEW OF POLICIES/REGULATIONS 
a. Committee Review of Mandate for the Education-Policy Committee – Allison Watson and Paul Block 

 

Page 96 of 271



 

2  

 

Chair Watson suggested that the committee review its mandate at the start of every year. The 
mandate, as outlined in Regulation A-340, was reviewed by the committee.  Members agreed that this 
is an accurate reflection of their work.  There was a comment from the floor concerning the Ministry 
of Education moving to Ministry of Education and Child Care, and that as such, the committee needs 
to also reflect intentionality for the Child Care portion. Other comments were shared regarding the 
need to review outdated language.  
 
Recommended Motion:  
That the Board of Education of School District 62 (Sooke) direct the Governance Committee to review 
Administration Regulation A-340 for the purpose of updating context and language.  
 

b. Draft New Policy and Regulations B-335 “Communicating Student Learning and Reporting” - Dave 
Strange 
Associate Superintendent Strange reviewed the draft new “Communicating Student Learning and 
Reporting” policy and regulations. These changes bring the district into compliance with the revised 
Ministry Reporting Order (July 1, 2023).  Input was gathered through the collective efforts of partner 
groups under the leadership of Denise Wehner, District Principal of Curriculum Transformation.  
Appreciation was given for the work of the committee, including its communication with parents and 
staff.  STA gave feedback about a suggested shift in wording from “learning challenges” to “learning 
progress”, this change has now been reflected in the revised policy and regulations.  There was 
discussion on “IE” and when it may carry on beyond the school year (only in grades 9-12 and when 
certain criteria are met).  There are funding implications to this decision, and it can only happen when 
there is an expectation for completion of the learning outcomes.  

 
Recommended Motion: 
That the Board of Education of School District 62 (Sooke) give Notice of Motion to draft new Policy 
and Regulations B-335 “Communicating Student Learning and Reporting”. 
 

6.  NEW BUSINESS 
a. Presentation - HSHP Table to The Village Initiative – Dave Strange 

Associate Superintendent Strange reviewed the district’s previous work in relation to Comprehensive 
School Health.  The initial intent of this group was to invite representation from partner groups and build 
relationships.  The Healthy Schools, Healthy People table continued to evolve and moved to include senior 
staff from a variety of organizations including MCFD, IH, local municipalities and the school district.  The 
HSHP table formally became The Village Initiative (TVI) with the district as a founding member.  The work 
of this committee is done by staff with information then coming back to the Board.  TVI is reviewing the 
roles of its members and their relationship with the Board’s various agencies.  
 
The mandate of this group is:  

1. To work collaboratively to address space needs. 
2. To better coordinate our services and avoid competition for resources. 

       
SPVPA spoke to the valuable relationships and services coming through this group.  Deputy Superintendent 
Block shared that TVI is meeting to begin the initial conversations that may lead towards a Foundry coming 
to the region.  The partnerships are looked highly upon, and we are seeing powerful results from this 
collaboration.  Appreciation was shared for the leadership of Cindy Andrew.  

 
 
 

Page 97 of 271



 

3  

 

b. Global Stewardship – Denise Wehner and Laura Schwertfeger 
This presentation reviewed the language of Global Stewardship and Global Citizenship, including its 
definition and connection to the District Strategic Plan.  Ms. Wehner and Ms. Schwertfeger looked at 
current initiatives in the district that speak to Global Citizenship and Stewardship, including the Global and 
Intercultural Skills Program (GISP) currently at Royal Bay Secondary School.  Seventeen Global Sustainable 
Development Goals have become the foundation for professional learning and resources in the Sooke 
District. Ms. Wehner and Ms. Schwertfeger shared opportunities that the district is exploring to provide 
educators and students experiences in developing global stewardship and citizenship. Interest in this area 
is continuing to be strong with a keen interest in outdoor learning and in the area of cultural awareness 
and sensitivity.  CUPE asked about the role of support staff and how they will also be brought along in this 
journey of learning.  SPEAC is wondering how this program will bring together children with various English 
language skills.  Appreciation was shared with Ms. Wehner and Ms. Schwertfeger for their work in reviewing 
the variety of available opportunities within the district.  Staff are moving forward with this broad-based 
framework upon which we can attach many opportunities unless the Board wishes staff to pursue a 
different direction.  As work unfolds through this school year, staff will bring back a review of the various 
initiatives, including collaboration with NIE and its voice within global citizenship. 

 
7.  FOR INFORMATION  

a. Research Project Approval – Berenyi, Cynthia – “Investigating Social-Emotional and Mindfulness 
Techniques to Enhance Learning, Development and Well-Being for Children” 
This will be through informed consent and done with a current staff member in the district.  

 
b. Research Project Approval – Gu, Zhimei – “Cat5 National Data Collection Study” 

This is a standardized, norm referenced test. The research project is being shared with teachers to see if 
there is any interest in participation.  

 
8.       FOR FUTURE MEETINGS 

 
9.        ADJOURNMENT AND NEXT MEETING DATE:  Oct. 3, 2023 

  Meeting adjourned at 7:49 
 
 

Page 98 of 271



POLICY AND REGULATIONS ADOPTION 
 
School District #62 (Sooke) 
 
September 26, 2023 
 

 
Draft new Policy and Regulations B-335 ”Communicating Student Learning and Reporting” 
are now ready for Notice of Motion. 
 
NOTICE OF MOTION: 
 
That the Board of Education of School District 62 (Sooke) give Notice of Motion to draft 
new Policy and Regulations B-335 “Communicating Student Learning and Reporting”. 
 

Page 99 of 271



 

 

School District #62 (Sooke) 

 

 
 

COMMUNICATING STUDENT 
LEARNING AND REPORTING 

No.:  B-335 

Effective:  
Revised:  
Reviewed:  Sept. 12/23 

 
SCHOOL BOARD POLICY 
 
The Board believes that consistent, timely and meaningful student reporting supports student learning by 
ensuring parents/caregivers and students are informed about student progress to proactively work together to 
enhance student success. Students are best positioned for success when parents/caregivers are made aware of 
learning challenges and prompted to provide support. To this end, processes and practices related to 
communicating student learning and reporting are to be in alignment with the BC K-12 Reporting Policy and 
Ministerial Orders.  The Policy applies to all students, including students with disabilities and diverse abilities and 
English and French language learners.  
 
Student reports contain the personal information of students and are to be maintained and shared in accordance 
with the School Act and related Sooke Policy D-330 Governance of FOIPPA – Access to Information and the 
Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act. 
 

 
Authority 
 
See the following Ministerial Orders and Regulation:  

• School Regulation, B.C. Reg. 265/89: School Regulation (PDF) 

• Ministerial Order 93/22, the Graduation Program Order (PDF) 

• Ministerial Order 150/89: Special Needs Students Order (PDF) 

• Ministerial Order 190/91: Permanent Student Record Order (PDF) 

• Ministerial Order 184/23: Learning Update Order (PDF) 

• Ministerial Order 192/94: Provincial Letter Grades Order (PDF) 

• Ministerial Order 231/19: Educational Program Guide Order (PDF) 

• Ministerial Order 295/95: Required Areas of Learning in an Educational Program Order (PDF) 

• Ministerial Order 638/95: Individual Education Plan Order (PDF) 

 

Page 100 of 271

https://www2.gov.bc.ca/assets/gov/education/administration/legislation-policy/legislation/schoollaw/d/bcreg_26589.pdf
https://www2.gov.bc.ca/assets/gov/education/administration/legislation-policy/legislation/schoollaw/e/m302_04.pdf
https://www2.gov.bc.ca/assets/gov/education/administration/legislation-policy/legislation/schoollaw/e/m150_89.pdf
https://www2.gov.bc.ca/assets/gov/education/administration/legislation-policy/legislation/schoollaw/e/m082-09.pdf
https://www2.gov.bc.ca/assets/gov/education/administration/legislation-policy/legislation/schoollaw/e/m184-23.pdf
https://www2.gov.bc.ca/assets/gov/education/administration/legislation-policy/legislation/schoollaw/e/m192_94.pdf
https://www2.gov.bc.ca/assets/gov/education/administration/legislation-policy/legislation/schoollaw/e/m333_99.pdf
https://www2.gov.bc.ca/assets/gov/education/administration/legislation-policy/legislation/schoollaw/e/m295_95.pdf
https://www2.gov.bc.ca/assets/gov/education/administration/legislation-policy/legislation/schoollaw/e/m638_95.pdf


School District #62 (Sooke)  

 
 
COMMUNICATING STUDENT 
LEARNING AND REPORTING 

 

No.:  B-335 

Effective:  
Revised:  
Reviewed:  Sept. 12/23 

 

ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATIONS   

The purpose of reporting is to communicate student learning at regular intervals to students, parents and 
caregivers on how well students have achieved the learning outcomes of the various courses or subjects 
they are taking.  Principals and teachers shall ensure that parents and caregivers are provided with 
complete, easily understood, and accurate evaluation of students’ performance. Teachers gather 
evidence of what students are able to do based on criteria from the Learning Standards for each course. 
Reporting procedures are developed in accordance with BC Ministerial Orders and Policies, Guidelines, 
and relevant Sooke School District policies and procedures. 
 

A) Procedures of Communicating Students Learning and Reporting  

 

1. During the school year, K-12 schools will provide parents and caregivers of students with at 

least five Learning Updates describing students’ progress in the formats of: 

a. Two Written Learning updates. 

b. Two Informal Learning updates. 

c. One Summary of Learning.  

d. Written Learning Updates and Summary of Learning are to be completed using 

District approved formats and methods of communication. 

 

2. Written learning updates for students in grades K-9 include the following: 

a. Communication of student learning in all areas of learning in which the student is 

currently studying, in relation to the learning standards or the individualized learning 

goals outlined in their IEP, using the Provincial Proficiency Scale. 

b. Feedback in relation to the Learning Standards describing student strengths, areas for 

future growth, and opportunities for further development. 

c. Descriptive feedback on areas of significant growth and opportunities for further 

development. 

d. Information on student attendance.  

e. Information on where families can access student self-reflection and goal setting:  

i. Teachers provide opportunities during class time for students to self-reflect 

on the core competencies and to set goals. 

 

3. Written Learning Updates for students taking coursework in grades 10-12 must include the 

following:  

Page 101 of 271



a. Communication of student learning in all areas of learning in which the student is 

currently studying, in relation to the learning standards or the individualized learning 

goals outlined in their IEP using letter grades and percentages. 

b. Feedback in relation to the Learning Standards describing student strengths, areas for 

future growth, and opportunities for further development. 

c. Descriptive feedback on areas of significant growth and opportunities for further 

development. 

d. Information about student attendance.  

e. Information on where families can access student self-reflection and goal setting:  

i. Teachers provide opportunities during class time for students to self-reflect 

on the core competencies and to set goals. 

 

4. Two informal learning updates for all students in K-12. These may be provided in a variety of 

formats including:  

a. conferences, in-person or virtual discussions, telephone calls, emails, digital portfolio 

entries, or written summaries.  

b. Teachers must keep a record of Informal Learning Updates noting the date, the topic 

or focus of the communication, and follow-up actions.  Records are to be shared with 

the school Principal and/or Vice-Principals upon request. 

 

5. A Summary of Learning is a written report completed in MyEducation BC that describes and 

summarizes student learning and growth across the year in clear and accessible language, and 

must include the following:  

a. A summary of student learning in all areas of learning in which the student has studied 

during the school year, using the BC Proficiency Scale for students in grades K to 9, 

and using letter grades and percentages for students taking courses in grades 10-12. 

b. Feedback describing student strengths, areas for future growth, and opportunities for 

further development. 

c. Summary information about student attendance.  

d. Information on where families can access student self-reflection and goal setting:  

i. Teachers provide opportunities during class time for students to self-reflect 

on the core competencies and to set goals. 

e. A Graduation Status Update indicating student progress in relation to the graduation 

program requirements (grades 10-12). 

f. A paper copy must be included in the Permanent Student Record file at the end of 

each school year. 

 

B) Ministry Designated Students 

a. Where a student with diverse needs is expected to achieve or surpass the learning 

standards as set out in the provincial curriculum, regular grading practices and reporting 

procedures will be followed.  

b. Where students with significant cognitive disabilities and diverse abilities are assessed 

and evaluated only on individualized learning goals as outlined in their Individual 

Page 102 of 271



Education Plan (IEP), the use of letter grades, percentages for reporting the progress of 

these students may not be appropriate.  

c. Where a student identified as an English Language Learner (ELL) as reported on Ministry 

form 1701 is impeding a student from demonstrating their learning in relation to the 

Learning Standards of the curriculum, for a specific area of learning, the use of the BC 

Proficiency Scale or letter grades may be inappropriate. Descriptive feedback reports will 

be used to describe the student’s progress until the student’s English language 

development enables them to provide evidence of their learning.  

 

C) BC Provincial Proficiency Scale  

a. The four-point Provincial Proficiency Scale is used to communicate student learning in all 

areas of learning and is a requirement for student reporting for grades K to 9. It is 

important to recognize that obtaining proficient is not the end of learning. If a student 

enters a learning experience with proficient understanding or achieves proficient during 

the school year, the aim becomes to dig deeper and reach toward extending their 

understanding. The four points on the scale are: 

i. Emerging - Indicates that a student is just beginning to demonstrate learning in 

relation to the learning standards but is not yet doing so consistently. Emerging 

isn't failing. The student demonstrates an initial understanding of the concepts 

and competencies relevant to the expected learning.  

ii. Developing - Indicates that a student is demonstrating learning in relation to the 

learning standards with growing consistency. The student is showing initial or 

partial understanding but is still in the process of developing their competency in 

relation to the learning standards relevant to the expected learning. 

iii. Proficient- Indicates when a student has demonstrated a complete understanding 

of the concepts and competences relevant to the expected learning expected 

learning in relation to the learning standards. Proficient is not synonymous with 

perfection. Instead, the student is able to demonstrate their learning consistently 

or most of the time.  

iv. Extending - Indicates a student is demonstrating learning in relation to the 

learning standards with increasing depth and complexity. Extending is not a 

bonus or reward and does not necessarily require the students to do a greater 

volume of work or at an advanced grade level. The student demonstrates a 

sophisticated understanding of the concepts and competences relevant to the 

expected learning.  

b. IE (Insufficient Evidence) The student has not provided sufficient evidence of learning in 

relation to the learning standards. IE is used to alert parents, caregivers, and students 

when a student, for a variety of reasons, has not provided sufficient evidence of learning 

in relation to the learning standards. IE may not always be the most appropriate letter 

grade to assign and is only appropriate when students, parents, and caregivers have an 

interest in demonstrating further evidence of learning and would like to have the 

student’s mark eventually translated into a proficiency scale indicator. ‘IE’ may not extend 

beyond the school year in K-9 and is to be converted to “Emerging” for the Summary of 

Learning with descriptive feedback, at the end of the school year. 

Page 103 of 271



c. Examples of when IE might be used:  

i. A student has recently moved to a new school or the district. 

ii.  A student has been away from school for a significant period of time. 

iii. A student who needs to provide further evidence of learning. 
  

D) Letter Grades and Percentages  

a. Letter grades and percentages are used in grades 10-12 to indicate a student’s learning in 

relation to the learning standards. The process for letter grade symbols and 

corresponding percentages and definitions are set out in  Ministerial Order 192/94 The 

Provincial Letter Grades Order.  

b. A - 86% to 100% The student demonstrates excellent or outstanding learning in relation 

to the learning standards. 

c. B – 73% to 85% The student demonstrates very good learning in relation to the learning 

standards. 

d. C+ - 67% to 72% The student demonstrates good learning in relation to the learning 

standards.  

e. C – 60% to 66% The student demonstrates satisfactory learning in relation to the learning 

standards.  

f. C- - 50% to 59% The student demonstrates minimally acceptable learning in relation to 

the learning standards.  

g. F – 0% to 49% The student has not demonstrated or is not demonstrating minimally 

acceptable learning in relation to the learning standards period prior to assigning an F, it 

is important students, parents, and caregivers are made aware of any concerns and given 

a chance to address the needs of the student.  

h. SG (Standing Granted) In cases where completion of normal requirements is not possible, 

sufficient evidence of learning has been demonstrated to warrant, consistent with the 

best interests of the student, the granting of standing for the area of learning and grade. 

SG may be used in cases of serious illness, hospitalization, late entry, or early leaving, but 

may only be granted by an adjudication process authorized by the principal or vice 

principal in charge of a school. 

i. TS (Transfer Standing) TS may be granted by the Principal or Vice-Principal in charge of a 

school on the basis of an examination of records from an institution other than a school 

as defined in the School Act. Alternately, the Principal or Vice-Principal in charge of a 

school may assign a proficiency scale indicator or letter grade and percentage on the basis 

of an examination of those records.  

j. IE (Insufficient Evidence) The student has not provided sufficient evidence of learning in 

relation to the learning standards. IE is used to alert parents, caregivers, and students 

when a student, for a variety of reasons, has not provided sufficient evidence of learning 

in relation to the learning standards. IE may not always be the most appropriate letter 

grade to assign and is only appropriate when students, parents, and caregivers have an 

interest in demonstrating further evidence of learning and would like to have the 

student’s mark eventually translated into a letter grade and percentage. Otherwise, SG 

or F may be more appropriate. Examples of when IE might be used:    

i. A student has recently moved to a new school or the district. 

Page 104 of 271

https://www2.gov.bc.ca/assets/gov/education/administration/legislation-policy/legislation/schoollaw/e/m192_94.pdf
https://www2.gov.bc.ca/assets/gov/education/administration/legislation-policy/legislation/schoollaw/e/m192_94.pdf


ii. a student has been away from school for a significant period of time. 

iii. A student who is below 50% and needs to provide further evidence of learning to 

pass a course. 

 

 

 

Reference Authority: 

• School Regulation, B.C. Reg. 265/89: School Regulation (PDF) 

• Ministerial Order 93/22, the Graduation Program Order (PDF) 

• Ministerial Order 150/89: Special Needs Students Order (PDF) 

• Ministerial Order 190/91: Permanent Student Record Order (PDF) 

• Ministerial Order 184/23: Learning Update Order (PDF) 

• Ministerial Order 192/94: Provincial Letter Grades Order (PDF) 

• Ministerial Order 231/19: Educational Program Guide Order (PDF) 

• Ministerial Order 295/95: Required Areas of Learning in an Educational Program Order (PDF) 

• Ministerial Order 638/95: Individual Education Plan Order (PDF) 

 

Page 105 of 271

https://www2.gov.bc.ca/assets/gov/education/administration/legislation-policy/legislation/schoollaw/d/bcreg_26589.pdf
https://www2.gov.bc.ca/assets/gov/education/administration/legislation-policy/legislation/schoollaw/e/m302_04.pdf
https://www2.gov.bc.ca/assets/gov/education/administration/legislation-policy/legislation/schoollaw/e/m150_89.pdf
https://www2.gov.bc.ca/assets/gov/education/administration/legislation-policy/legislation/schoollaw/e/m082-09.pdf
https://www2.gov.bc.ca/assets/gov/education/administration/legislation-policy/legislation/schoollaw/e/m184-23.pdf
https://www2.gov.bc.ca/assets/gov/education/administration/legislation-policy/legislation/schoollaw/e/m192_94.pdf
https://www2.gov.bc.ca/assets/gov/education/administration/legislation-policy/legislation/schoollaw/e/m333_99.pdf
https://www2.gov.bc.ca/assets/gov/education/administration/legislation-policy/legislation/schoollaw/e/m295_95.pdf
https://www2.gov.bc.ca/assets/gov/education/administration/legislation-policy/legislation/schoollaw/e/m638_95.pdf


9/13/2023

1

Global Stewardship 
and Citizenship

Laura Schwertfeger
Denise Wehner

Global Citizenship
Global citizenship refers to a 
sense of belonging to a broader 
community and common 
humanity. It emphasizes 
political, economic, social and 
cultural interdependency and 
interconnectedness between 
the local, the national, and the 
global.

2

1

2

Page 106 of 271



9/13/2023

2

Current Context

3

Current Context

4

Global and Intercultural Skills 
Program (GISP)

3

4

Page 107 of 271



9/13/2023

3

Next Steps

5

17 Global Sustainable Development Goals

Resources and Professional 
Learning

6

5

6

Page 108 of 271



9/13/2023

4

AKFC: International 
Development Education 
and Awareness (IDEA)

IDEA: Opportunities for Educators

8

7

8

Page 109 of 271



9/13/2023

5

Possible Opportunity –
Students 

9

Next Steps

10

9

10

Page 110 of 271



9/13/2023

6

Feedback? Questions?

11

11

Page 111 of 271



POLICY AND REGULATIONS ADOPTION 
 
School District #62 (Sooke) 
 
September 26, 2023 
 

 
Draft revised Policy B-133 “Online Learning” is scheduled for adoption. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Given that the required period for Notice of Motion has been served, that the Board of 
Education of School District 62 (Sooke) ADOPT draft revised Policy B-133 “Online 
Learning”. 
 
 

Page 112 of 271



 

 

School District #62 (Sooke) 

 

 
 
DISTRIBUTED ONLINE 
LEARNING 
 

No.:  B-133 

Effective:  Feb. 23, 2010 
Revised:  
Reviewed:  Mar. 2/15; June 6/23; 
June 27/23; Sept. 26/23 
 
 

 
SCHOOL BOARD POLICY 
 
Distributed Online learning is a choice of instruction within the current K-12 system that responds to 
the unique learning needs of individual learners. Distributed Online learning takes place outside of 
the traditional school classroom when a learner is primarily at a distance from the educator and 
school. Emerging electronic technologies and the Internet in distributed online learning, offers the 
possibilities for sophisticated, interactive, and engaging learning opportunities. 
 
In online learning students can: 
 

• Connect with their teacher from anywhere using the internet, phone or e-mail. 

• Work with their teacher to reach goals in their learning plan. 
• Take a program or course via an online learning management system, web 

conferencing, teleconferencing, and/or correspondence. 
• Get support through opportunities for in-person learning and interactions with 

other students. 
 
Both public and independent online learning schools offer online learning.  Students in 
Kindergarten to Grade 7 must take a full course load at one school, while students in 
Grades 8 to 12 may learn from home entirely, or learn at school and take some courses 
online. 
 
The Board of Education recognizes that distributed online learning provides the flexibility to meet the 
learning needs of students not served through conventional school programs.  The Board concurs with 
the Ministry of Education and Child Care rationale that distributed online learning can expand 
equitable access to education for students in rural and urban communities that may have difficulty 
accessing a full range of courses and programs, and that distributed online learning can provide 
choice for these students who have restricted access.  The Board recognizes that all or part of an 
educational program may be provided by means of distributed online learning.   
 
The Board agrees to operate a distributed district online learning school and agrees to: 

• meet all of the requirements of the School Act and Legislation, 
• meet all of the requirements of the Distributed District Online Learning (DOL) School as 

per the Ministry of Education and Childcare 1701 instructions and, 
• meet all of the Ministry of Education and Child Care distributed online learning policies and 

standards. 
 
LEGISLATION REGULATIONS 
 
School Act, Section 3.1 
School Act, Section 75 (4.1)  

Page 113 of 271

http://www.bced.gov.bc.ca/legislation/schoollaw/revisedstatutescontents.pdf


 

 

 
 
DISTRIBUTED ONLINE LEARNING DEFINITIONS 
 

▪ Distributed Learning - means a method of instruction that relies primarily on indirect 
communication between learners and educators, including internet or other electronic-based 
delivery, teleconferencing or correspondence. 

▪ Distributed Learning School - means a school within the meaning of the School Act, which 
offers instruction by means of Distributed Learning only. 

▪ “Online learning” means a method of instruction that relies primarily on 
communication between students and teachers by means of the internet; 

▪ “Online learning school” means a school or francophone school that offers 
instruction to its students through online learning only; 

▪ “D.O.L.S.”:  District Online Learning Schools serve students who reside in their 
district only. 

▪ “P.O.L.S.”:  Provincial Online Learning School.   
 

     Student Accessing Online Learning Guidelines:  
 

a) Grades 8-12 students residing within the boundaries of SD62 who are already 
enrolled in a neighbourhood school may take additional courses through SD62’s 
District Online Learning School (DOLS) via dual enrollment.  

 
b) Grades 10 – 12 students who are already enrolled in a neighbourhood school may 

take additional courses through a Provincial Online Learning School.   
 

c) Grades 8 – 9 students who are already in a neighbourhood school may take 
additional courses through a Provincial Online Learning School and in accordance 
with funding rules.  
 

d)  Kindergarten – Grade 7: student must be enrolled in a program full time.  These 
students can enroll full time in a Provincial Online Learning School but cannot take 
only part of a program through a Provincial Online Learning School. 
 

e) International students in Grades 8 – 12 must receive approval through the school 
district’s International Education Office in order to take additional courses through 
SD62’s District Online Learning School (DOLS) or through a Provincial Online 
Learning School (POLS). 
 
 
 
 

Page 114 of 271



1  

 

 

Board Info Note 

Board Meeting 
September 26, 2023 

Agenda Item: 9.1 – Ukrainian Student Visit 
 

 
Background: 

 As a result of the war in the Ukraine, several humanitarian missions have been organized and carried 

out from volunteers in the Westshore. 

 During the first visit in 2021 relationships were established with four municipalities and educational 

jurisdictions (Olyka, Horohiv, Boratyn, and Kamin Kashyrsk). 

 In the Ukraine, education falls under the responsibility of local government. 

 A specific relationship was established between students at Boratyn Lyceum, a school in the Lutsk 

District, and students at Willway Elementary School. 

 On a subsequent trip in 2022, former Board Chair Ravi Parmar joined the team, bringing school 

supplies and letters from local school students.  This trip further established relationships between 

SD62 and towns in the Ukraine. 

 From that trip a promise was made through the volunteer group to host two students for a three 

week period.  Two weeks would be spent with a host student in one of our secondary schools and 

one week would be spent participating in an immersive learning experience at the Bamfield Marine 

Sciences Institute (BMSI).   The costs of transportation and the Bamfield experience would be paid 

from funds raised through the volunteer group. 

 Due to visa complications the students were unable to come last year. 

 

Current Context: 

 The volunteer group has extended an offer to four secondary students, one from each community to 

come to SD62 this school year.  This opportunity would have the students attend one of our 

secondary schools (EMCS) for two weeks and the program at BMSI for one week with their student 

host. 

 EMCS has been selected due to available space within the school and available home stay families. 

 The students from the Ukraine would be hosted with an established homestay family arranged 

through our International Student Program.  

 While the costs of travel and the week-long stay in Bamfield are covered by the volunteer group, a 

request has come forward through staff to provide the homestay coverage as an in-kind donation.  

This would represent an approximate cost to the Board of $2000. 

 This work aligns to the information recently shared through the Education-Policy Committee on 

Global Citizenship. 

 

For Recommendation: 

 That the Board of Education for School District #62 (Sooke) authorize staff to provide homestay costs 

(estimated at $2000) for a two-week period for four student visitors from the Ukraine. 

 

Submitted with Respect, 

 

` Scott Stinson, Superintendent/CEO 

Page 115 of 271



1 
 

 

Information Note 
Board of Education Meeting 

September 26, 2023 
Agenda Item: 10.1 – Strategic Plan Annual Report 

Background:   

 For the district’s Strategic Plan 2021-2025, a comprehensive process of charting accountability 
has been developed that links strategic plan outcomes, annual operational plans and the Ministry of 
Education and Child Care’s student success metric report: the Framework for Enhancing Student 
Learning (FESL). 

 Annually the district takes the direction of the Board through the Strategic Plan and develops an 
operational plan to assist in achieving the goals and objectives of the Strategic Plan.  

 The Annual Report for the 2022/23 school year reports on progress made in the 2022/23 
Operational Plan. 

 The district has devised a strategic plan proficiency rubric, that mirrors language in the student 
reporting policy set by the Ministry of Education and Child Care.  The rubric establishes proficiency 
categories for Emerging, Developing, Proficient and Extending. 

 The district rubric has recently been revised to ensure consistent language across the proficiency 
continuum. 

 

The 2022/23 Annual Report 

 The report reflects overall progress in relation to the strategic plan goals and objectives and covers 
the 38 projects from the 2022/23 Operational Plan. Highlights include:  

o The drafting and development of a new Long-Range Facilities Plan to estimate 
enrolment growth and facility needs into the future. 

o The significant and ongoing development of the district’s K-12 literacy initiative. 

o The adoption and signing of the 2022-2027 Na’tsa’maht Enhancement Agreement at a 
ceremony on Pacheedaht First Nation territory. 

o The completion of a diversity, equity and inclusion review and report to guide related 
future work in the school district. 

 In addition, the report features data from the Student Learning Surveys (SLS) for students and 
parents/caregivers, and the Equity in Action Survey.  

 The Student data from the SLS is from the 2021-22 school year due to the timing of release from the 
Ministry of Education and Child Care. 

 Working with their knowledge of the system and of the work undertaken through the operational 
plan, the Executive Team rated each of the strategic priority goals and objectives using the strategic 
plan rubric. Following several meetings, consensus on the level of progress in the 2022/23 school 
year was achieved based on the evidence provided. 

 In utilizing the strategic plan rubric, evidence for each descriptor was examined to determine 
progress.  Those individual ratings created an overall pattern of progress for each objective and 
goal. 

 Two objectives have improved from proficient to extending when compared to last year’s report:  

o Learning Objective 4: To enhance student choice and voice; and 

Page 116 of 271

https://www.sd62.bc.ca/student-success/strategic-plan-2021-2025
https://www.sd62.bc.ca/sites/default/files/images/SD62%20Operational%20Plan%202022-23.pdf
https://www.sd62.bc.ca/sites/default/files/images/SD62%20Operational%20Plan%202022-23.pdf
https://www.sd62.bc.ca/sites/default/files/docs/SD62%20Rubric%20Improvement%20Aug%202023.pdf


2 
 

o Engagement Objective 3: To develop, expand and implement respectful, effective, clear 
and transparent communications. 

 Two objectives rated as emerging continue to require additional attention, specifically:  

o Engagement Goal: To create a culture of belonging. 

 This was deemed emerging due to the significant gap in graduation outcomes 
(20%) between students with Indigenous ancestry and those without. 

o Engagement Objective 2: To further the goals of the Na’tsa’maht Agreement following 
the objectives of ‘One Mind’ and ‘One Spirit.’ 

 This was deemed emerging due to: 

 the significant gap (20%) in graduation rates between students with 
Indigenous ancestry and those without; and 

 Indigenous language rarely being a central, key and regular part of 
classes and school activities. 

 As we begin the 2023/24 school year, our new operational plan, developed to ensure further 
progress towards meeting the goals of the 2021/25 strategic plan will use the data and evidence 
from this annual report to guide our work.  

 

Requested Motion:  That the Board of Education of School District 62 (Sooke) approve the 22/23 
Strategic Plan Annual Report as presented. 

  
 

Submitted with Respect, 
Scott Stinson, Superintendent 

Page 117 of 271

https://www.sd62.bc.ca/sites/default/files/docs/board-of-education/Operational%20Plan%202023-2024%20(19).pdf


Sooke School District
Annual Report 2022-23

Page 118 of 271



Page 119 of 271



TABLE OF CONTENTS
MESSAGE FROM THE BOARD OF EDUCATION

MESSAGE FROM THE SUPERINTENDENT

1

3

4

6

7

8
13

20
27

34

35

36

40

42

46

 47

48

49

53

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

STRATEGIC PROFICIENCY SCALE

LEARNING

Objective 1
Objective 2
Objective 3
Objective 4

APPENDICES

Appendix 1

Appendix 2

ENGAGEMENT

Objective 1
Objective 2
Objective 3
Objective 4

GROWTH

Objective 1

Objective 2

Objective 3

Objective 4

56

 56

62

Page 120 of 271



MESSAGE FROM THE BOARD OF EDUCATION

Dear Members of the Sooke School District (SD62) Community,

It is with great enthusiasm and a sense of pride that I welcome you to our annual report for the 2022-23 school year. On behalf of the Board of Education, I am
honoured, as Chair, to share with you remarkable highlights and exciting areas for future growth and improvement within our beloved school district.

Highlights of the Year:

Welcoming a New Board:

In the past year, we embarked on a new journey with the addition of five brand-new trustees, following the election and the retirement of long-serving trustees. We
extend our heartfelt thanks to those who dedicated themselves to our district for many years. Additionally, our former Chair, Ravi Parmar, was elected as a Member of
the Legislative Assembly for British Columbia, showcasing the talent within our leadership. We wish Ravi much success as he starts his provincial political career.

Succession Planning and Leadership:

Our commitment to excellence is evident in our meticulous succession planning. The creation of the Deputy Superintendent position, achieved by Associate
Superintendent, Paul Block, exemplifies our dedication to nurturing talent within our district. Furthermore, when the time came to locate a new superintendent for
January 2024, our nationwide search led us back to Paul Block, ensuring the continuity of strong leadership. Paul has been with the district for 30+ years and we wish
him well as he transitions to his new role. We also thank the current superintendent, Scott Stinson, for five years of exemplary service to the community. The district
has advanced into a mature, 21st century organization, under his leadership.

Digital Solutions:

Reflecting on our district's maturation, we transformed our Information Technology department into Digital Solutions. This change recognizes the department's
expanded role, encompassing information technology, data analytics, knowledge sharing, cyber security, and digital literacy. We are committed to staying at the
forefront of technology to better serve our students and support our staff.

Student and Family Affordability Fund:

Our commitment to student well-being is unwavering. The Student-Based Student Wellness (SBSW) team and District leadership, played a pivotal role in effectively
utilizing the government’s Student and Family Affordability Fund, addressing food insecurity and supporting individual students during emergencies. The newly
introduced Feeding Futures Fund will continue this vital work in the 2023-24 school year, ensuring our students and families experience tangible benefits.

Student Voice & Choice:

The Board met with Middle and Secondary students to discuss the students’ views and experiences of diversity, equity and belonging, at EMCS in May 2023.  In line
with our commitment to student engagement, we introduced two new academies – Mountain Biking and Edward Milne Community School (EMCS) Softball – based on
school and community desires.  In addition to our aspiration to further expand these programs, the district is actively working on creating programs for the new
Westshore Post-Secondary, opening in September 2024, in partnership with Royal Roads University, Camosun College (with whom the district currently provides dual
credit and trade courses) and the Justice Institute for British Columbia. 

1

Page 121 of 271



Take a Hike Program:

The first year of the Take a Hike Program in the district was incredibly successful, with a 100% pass rate amongst the students involved. The program focuses on
emotional well-being and empowering students with the skills and resilience needed for success. There are plans to expand this program's reach, positively
impacting even more lives in our district.

Areas for Growth:

Diversity, Equity, Inclusion, and Anti-Racism:

As we move forward, the district recognizes the need to set district standards and develop effective action plans to strengthen our policies and processes with
regards to Diversity, Equity, Inclusion, and Anti-Racism. We also understand that just like our learning journeys, the path of Diversity, Equity, Inclusion, and Anti-
Racism is one that continues throughout our lives. We want all of our students and staff to have positive, enriching experiences within SD62 regardless of
gender identity, sexual orientation, race, or ability. This commitment extends to creating enriched and meaningful programs and pathways for newcomer
families who choose SD62. Together, we are building an inclusive future.

Indigenous Learners:

Our students with an Indigenous background have a lower graduation rate amongst the body of students. We are determined to increase outcomes for our
students with Indigenous ancestry and bridge the gaps in the rate of graduation across the student body. In addition to the many successful programs provided
by the Na’tsa’maht Indigenous Education (NIE) department, educators have this year procured a learner profile tool which is designed to provide
comprehensive data on attendance, achievement, and additional services delivered to Indigenous students, that help to better support their educational
success.

In conclusion, I want to express my gratitude to the entire SD62 community, including our dedicated educators, staff, students, and families, for their
unwavering support and commitment to our district's growth. There is so much exciting work in the years ahead. Together, we will continue to write a bright
future for all.

Sincerely on behalf of the Board of Education,

Amanda Dowhy, Chair
Trustees: Amanda Dowhy, Ebony Logins, Cendra Beaton, Russ Chipps, Trudy Spiller, Allison Watson 2

Page 122 of 271



The construction and opening of a new all-season sports field in North Langford due to the generosity of the City of Langford.
The re-development of the tennis courts at Dunsmuir Middle School into a multi-sport play space thanks to the City of Colwood.
The announcement of two seismic projects, one at Port Renfrew Elementary and one at Sooke Elementary. Both projects represent collaborative
partnerships with Pacheedaht First Nation and the District of Sooke.

Dear Trustees, Colleagues and Community Stakeholders,

Over the past school year, we have accomplished many positive things for the school district. Together, we were able to return to the first
uninterrupted school year since 2018/2019. With the gradual re-establishment of processes and activities it has reinforced the crucial role that
schools play, not only for education but as a key component of our communities. 

Having now completed year two of the Sooke School District Strategic Plan which is focused on three priority areas: Learning, Engagement and
Growth, we are excited with the progress that we have made. As we worked together to execute the first two years of the plan, we were again faced
with significant growth; this continues with a projection for 650 more students in the 2023/2024 school year. Construction has now begun on the
new Elementary School in South Langford which will greatly assist our growing Westshore community. Raising awareness of our growth and getting
new schools built continues to be a priority for our district.

Our mission of helping to develop educated citizens means that how our students see themselves in the community is important. We want our
learning environments to be inclusive and reflective of the needs of our students, staff and the community at large. Last year we announced several
collaborative partnerships with community in mind: 

I am privileged to do this work alongside supportive and committed colleagues as well as a Board of Education who are dedicated to making
significant contributions to the life and outcomes of students. As we prepare to extend our work next year, we reaffirm the importance of thinking
forward through our strategic planning process. 

Sincerely, 

Scott Stinson
Superintendent/CEO

MESSAGE FROM THE SUPERINTENDENT

3

Page 123 of 271



The drafting and development of a new Long-Range Facilities Plan to estimate continued enrolment growth and facility needs into the future.
The significant and ongoing development of the district’s K-12 literacy initiative.
The 2022-2027 Na’tsa’maht Enhancement Agreement was formally adopted and signed at a ceremony on Pacheedaht First Nation territory.
The completion of a diversity, equity and inclusion review and report to guide future work in the school district.
Our secondary students earned over $1.5 million collectively in scholarship funding last year.
Student-Trustee connections were strengthened with a forum focused on diversity, equity, and inclusion and school visits were organized to
explore outdoor learning environments in the district.
Committee work and the development of a plan related to the provision of the new Accessibility Act has been developed and will guide the
district in addressing issues of accessibility within the district.
Several new policies to guide and protect the district were developed with key initiatives for consultation in finance processes and for the
protection of privacy and risk in Digital Solutions.

The Strategic Plan 2021-25 was written to reflect the vision, mission, values, and beliefs of the Board of Education.  Each of the goals and objectives
are designed to assist the district in moving forward in key areas to support the development and learning of our students.

This Annual Report for the 2022-23 school year provides highlights and evidence of the progress that has been made in the three strategic priorities
articulated in the Strategic Plan 2021-25: Learning, Engagement and Growth.  Over the course of the 2022-23 school year, staff have worked to
implement the strategies and activities outlined in the 2022-2023 Operational Plan, developed by the Superintendent and District Executive Team
with input from system leaders. This Operational Plan is developed annually and details what will be done during the year to make progress towards
the goals and objectives outlined in the strategic plan.

Highlights:
Comparing the Annual Report for 2021-22, to this year, shows that progress has been made in each of the goals and objectives.

Key highlights from work done in the district this year include:

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

4

Page 124 of 271

https://www.sd62.bc.ca/sites/default/files/images/Annual%20Report%202021-22%20Board%20Approved.pdf


To demonstrate progress towards our goals, a proficiency scale (rubric) was developed to provide a visual representation to describe and monitor progress on
the strategic objectives outlined in the Strategic Plan. The rubric continues to be refined to improve goal and objective descriptions and to better reflect a
continuum across the four proficiency levels: Emerging, Developing, Proficient, Extending.

The overall goal/objective achievement for the 2022-23 school year as defined on the rubric is:

Overall Interpretation:
The Strategic Plan Proficiency Scale provides a visual representation of the district’s progress in relation to each goal and objective articulated in the Strategic
Plan. 

Learning has seen significant progress over the course of this year with continued work to developed critical and creative thinking skills, grounding literacy
development as a key skill from kindergarten to Grade 12, and developing social thinking skills for students by deepening understanding related to diversity,
equity and inclusion.

Engagement is a key strategy that supports our primary learning goal. Through broad community and stakeholder engagement, students are supported in their
learning, staff members feel connected, and the community feels that they have a voice in educating the next generation of citizens. We continue to work to
ensure that all students feel safe and connected to our schools through the ongoing development of a “culture of belonging”. Support for students with
Indigenous Ancestry to overcome historical prejudices and injustices, continues through the equity work being done in the district. Our hope and ongoing work
are focused on creating a more equitable environment, including stronger results for Indigenous Learners.

Our district continues to grow in many ways, most notably through our student enrolment. Constant attention to manage this growth by ensuring student
learning spaces, as well as the ongoing recruitment and retention of our professional staff, are key elements. In addition, as our system grows and systems
change, the district needs to continue to mature its operations to be efficient, effective and responsive to the needs of students, staff and the community. 5

Page 125 of 271



STRATEGIC PLAN 
PROFICIENCY SCALE 2022-23 (RUBRIC)

To view the full rubric. please see the SD62 website
More details on the determination of proficiency can be found in Appendix 1

6

Page 126 of 271



LEARNING

STRATEGIC PLAN STATUS SUMMARY

Goal: Develop and support adaptable learners who are creative, critical and
social thinkers with the capacity to be educated citizens.

7

Page 127 of 271



LEARNING

OBJECTIVE 1 - TO PROVIDE OPPORTUNITIES FOR LEARNERS TO
UNDERSTAND, RESPECT AND APPRECIATE DIVERSITY AND INCLUSION 

Highlights of progress related to this objective come from a variety of data sources and include:

• Student Learning Surveys (due to data availability from the Ministry of Education and Child Care, the most recent
information is from 2021-2022)

o Student Responses

Question - At school, I am learning to understand and support human rights and human diversity (for example, differences in
culture, gender, physical or mental ability) 

The data indicate that the majority of students in grades 7, 10
and 12 are learning about human rights and diversity. 

More work is required in this area to demonstrate a stronger link
between classroom learning and student connection to this
question.

8

Page 128 of 271



Question - At school do you respect people who are different from you (for example think, act or look differently?) 

Students have a very high (90% average for 2021/22) level of
respect for people who look, think or act differently amongst
those students who responded from across the Grades. 

Question - At school, are you being taught about Indigenous Peoples (First Nations, Inuit, Métis) in Canada?  2021/22

The data indicate that a significant portion (85%) of the students,
across various grade levels, who responded, are being taught
about Indigenous Peoples in Canada at school either “all the
time”, “most of the time” or “sometimes”. 
While neutral “Sometimes” responses were consistently high
across school levels, negative responses were generally low. 
Only 15% of students who responded either “didn’t know” or said
that they “never” or “almost never” learned about Indigenous
peoples.

9

Page 129 of 271



Question - At school, are you being taught about local First Nations?  2021/22

31% of the students who responded report being taught about
local First Nations “most” or “all of the time”, or 47% “some of
the time”. 
Grade 10 students are most likely to report being taught about
local First Nations “most of the time” or “all of the time”.
Grade 12 students are most likely to report “almost never” or
“never” being taught about local First Nations.
Grade 7 students are most likely to be unsure about the
frequency of this education.

The majority of parents who responded to these questions
believe that their children were respectful of people who are
different than them (97%).  
More than three-quarters of parents who responded said that
their child was being taught about local First Nations (83%) and
about human rights and human diversity (78%).  
Two-thirds (67%) of parents who responded to the survey
believed that you could see diverse sexual orientations and
gender identities represented in their children’s school.
Overall, the data suggests positive trends in parental satisfaction
with efforts related to teaching about Indigenous peoples,
understanding human rights and diversity, and fostering an
inclusive environment. 
The data also suggest a growing awareness among parents that
their child's school is addressing these important topics. 
The high percentage of parents indicating that their child is
respectful of diversity and differences suggests a positive
environment being fostered in the schools. 

• Parent Student Learning Survey

10

Page 130 of 271



Question - Do Indigenous Role Models or Elders visit your classroom or school?

The data suggest an overall increasing trend in the presence of
Indigenous role models or Elders visiting classrooms or schools
across the surveyed years. 
The percentage of respondents who reported always having
such visits consistently increased year over year. 

Question - Do you hear the territorial acknowledgement in your classroom, assemblies or announcements? 

The Equity in Action survey data over the last few years shows an
increase in students reporting that they “always” hear the
territorial acknowledgement in classrooms, assemblies or
announcements. 
Of those students who responded to the Equity in Action Survey,
94% reported “always” (76%) or “sometimes” (18%) hearing the
Territorial Acknowledgement in classrooms, assemblies or
announcements.

Equity in Action Survey 2022-23
o Student Responses:

In addition to specific student data, the district sources and provides exceptional resources for diversity and produces frequent communications that reflect the
diverse community in which we live (See Appendix 2).
Diverse resources in the district, noted in the district’s online catalogue include, 147 titles on diversity, 181 on First Nations, 15 on immigration and national
identity and 30 on sexual orientation and gender identity. There are multiple copies of many of these titles. In addition, there are many more resources online. 
The District Teacher Resource Centre holds:  63 literature circle novel packs; 30+ multi-book packs; 9 Language Art kits; 21 Social Studies kits (contain multiple
titles – some upwards of 30+ books) ; 4 SOGI book packs; 139 Indigenous Education items between this location & the Na’tsa’maht office. 

Additional District Resources for Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion

11

Page 131 of 271



Strategy - Operational Plan Strategies Related to this Objective - To provide opportunities for
learners to understand, respect and appreciate diversity and inclusion 

The Board constructed the strategic plan to have diversity, equity and inclusion woven throughout the plan.

Develop a process to explore and act upon issues of diversity, equity, inclusion and anti-racism.
Later in the report when we get to the Growth Objective 4, you will see the crossover work with this item which describes how, during 2022-23, the
district undertook a comprehensive audit to evaluate and improve its practices related to Diversity, Equity, Inclusion, and Anti-Racism (DEIAR). Surveys
and focus groups were designed and executed to collect insights from various stakeholders including staff, students, and parents. The audit will yield a
report with recommendations to the district. (see page 55)

In addition to this work:
The Executive Team joined Trustees in a Trustee Student Forum on the topic of Diversity, Equity and Belonging where middle and secondary
students had the opportunity to speak on their experiences with regards to these issues. To build out the questions for the forum, a Thought
Exchange was held with Middle and Secondary students to discern topics for the forum.

The Na’tsa’maht Indigenous Education department led many initiatives designed to provide learnings to understand, respect and appreciate diversity with
regards to our First Nations and Rights holders. Specific to the 2022-23 Operational Plan were:  Support the Curriculum Transformation Department in the
implementation of the Indigenous graduation credit (see page 41) and to Begin the implementation of the revised Na’tsa’maht Agreement (E1) and undertake
to report to the Board of Education biannually on progress with the Na’tsa’maht agreement (see page 41)
With regards to inclusion there were two items that relate to Learning Objective 1: Support the collaborative work of Inclusive Education Services (IES) with
all District Principals (see page 26);  and, undertake a system scan of IES services, to ensure effective allocation of resources to support students (See page
26).

The following operational plan items are examples of those initiatives that have links to this strategy:

Operational Plan Strategies 2022-2023

12

Page 132 of 271



OBJECTIVE 2 - TO PROVIDE OPPORTUNITIES FOR LEARNERS TO FOR
LEARNINGS TO DEVELOP CRITICAL AND CREATIVE THINKING SKILLS

Highlights of progress related to this objective come from a variety of data sources and include:

• Student Learning Surveys (due to data availability from the Ministry of Education and Child Care, the most
recent information is from 2021-2022)

o Student Responses

Question - Are you taught to show your learning in different ways?  

Data suggest that, overall, a majority of students across different
school years and grades reported positive experiences in being
taught to demonstrate their learning in various ways. 
In the 2021-22 Student Learning Survey, 85% of those who
responded to the question said that they, “sometimes”, “many
times” or “all the time”, were taught to show their learning in
different ways. 
Positive responses were slightly higher for Grade 12 students in
2021-22 in comparison to 2020-21 and slightly lower for Grade
10 students during the same period.

13

Page 133 of 271



Question - At school, are you learning to be a critical thinker? 

The data suggest that most students across different school
years and grades feel they are learning to be critical thinkers
“many times” or “all the time.”
The positive response percentages vary slightly across
different school years and grade levels. 
The relatively low percentages of negative responses indicate
that most students perceive they are being encouraged to
develop critical thinking skills. 
In the 2021-22 Student Learning Survey, an average across
grades of 76% of students who responded to this question, said
that they, “sometimes”, “many times” or “all the time”, were
learning ways to be a critical thinker. 

Question: At school, are you taught to take ownership or control of your learning (for example, marking your own work, making
decisions about what you want to study)? (wording for 2022-3; wasn’t asked of Grade 7) 

The data suggest that across the years, a portion of students across
different grade levels felt they were not consistently taught to take
ownership or control of their learning. However, over time, the
number of respondents saying “at no time” or “few times” has
reduced.
The 2021-22 survey with amended wording showed a higher
percentage of Grade 10 and 12 students feeling positively about
their control over their own learning. 
The variations in responses may reflect different teaching
approaches and experiences over the years. 
Note:The question was previously (2020) asked of Grades 7,10,12: At
school, are you taught to take ownership or control of your learning
(for example, choosing your own homework assignments, marking
your own work, making decisions about what you want to study)? 14

Page 134 of 271



Question - As part of marking your work, are you shown examples of what excellent, good, fair, and poor work look like? 

Consistent, but small, increases across the past four
years show that students agree positively (Gr. 7: 53%;
Gr. 10: 44%; Gr. 12: 44%) that as part of marking their
work, they are shown examples of what excellent,
good, fair, and poor work looks like.
Grade 7 students tend to report more positive
responses than the other grades.
Grade 10 students more frequently report “never” or
“almost never” having examples compared to other
grades. This is something that would benefit from
professional learning opportunities so that teachers
can enhance their ability to provide meaningful
examples and feedback to students.
Note: The response choices in 2018-2021 were “Many
Times” or “All of the time”, “Sometimes”, “At no time,”
“Few times”, “Don’t Know”.

15

Page 135 of 271



Question: At school, are you taught to take ownership or control of your learning (for example, marking your own work, making
decisions about what you want to study)? (wording for 2022-3; wasn’t asked of grade 7) 

The 2022-23 Parent Survey had more respondents than the
previous year.
The responses for 2022-23 compared with 2021-22, had, on the
whole, slightly fewer parents responding positively. 
However, of those who responded, most parents agreed that their
child was: 

being helped to understand how to improve their learning (55%). 
being helped to understand important ideas that are critical for
understanding (e.g., scientific laws, big ideas)? (58%).
learning to become a critical thinker (66%). 
learning basic age-appropriate reasoning skills (64%).
learning emotional self-regulation (how to express emotion, and
deal with emotional problems through self-regulation, empathy,
and compassion)? (55%). 

Fewer parents responded positively to questions on whether their
child was: 

learning to become more creative (for example, creating things
on-the-spot without preparation, reusing things for entirely new
purposes, unstructured exploration)? (49%).
learning basic life skills such as budgeting, independent living,
skills for financial planning and taxes? (24%).

Parent Student Learning Survey 2021-2023

16

Page 136 of 271



Operational Plan Strategies 2022-2023

Strategy - Continue to build and expand ways to improve and measure students’
creative, critical and social thinking.

Critical Thinking Series: Secondary educators were equipped with strategies to cultivate
students' analytical and problem-solving skills through workshops.
Book Club: Continuing the focus on "Building Thinking Classrooms," this club helped
educators refine teaching practices that encourage deep thinking.
Numeracy Programs: Spearheaded by Nikki Lineham for middle-years and targeted
workshops for primary years, this series aimed to make math engaging and build
foundational skills.
Core Competency Learning: Programs focussed on student self-reflection and goal-
setting across core competencies, preparing them for future challenges.
Resource Translation: French translations of core competency resources ensured
language accessibility for immersion students.

Throughout the year, the district prioritized integrating creative, critical, and social thinking
into education. Notable efforts included teacher-leaders, the LLC Philosophy, and the
Building Thinking Classrooms initiative, emphasizing the importance of deep, collaborative
learning.

Key Initiatives:

Strategy - Develop and begin implementing an overall district approach to early learning and child care, supported by a newly created leadership
position.

Facilitated deeper understanding of local needs during active engagement in discussions and meetings with community partners, including the Early Years
Network, FECRN, and Early Learning and Child Care Community of Practice. 
Successfully orchestrated the Ready, Set, Learn sessions, comprising Session 1 across all elementary schools, two online sessions for Session 2, and Session 3
in all elementary schools. These sessions have served as instrumental platforms for forging connections with incoming Kindergarten students and their
families.
Established multiple ways for Education Assistants to provide feedback, ranging from formal evaluations to regular meetings and professional learning
opportunities.

Success this year has included: 

17

Page 137 of 271



Strategy - Develop training for the Leadership Team that includes labour relations,
collective agreements, conflict management.

Throughout the year, a series of leadership development sessions were undertaken,
encompassing a wide array of Human Resources topics. These sessions included in-depth
discussions on subjects such as Roles & Responsibilities within Labour Relations, Grievance
Management, Collective Bargaining, OHS Work Refusals, and Staffing. These sessions were well-
received and contributed significantly to the enhancement of the Leadership Team's
understanding of critical HR matters.

Strategy - Procure a learner profile tool for students with Indigenous ancestry, with the potential to expand to all students to support their
academic success as identified in through the Equity Scan work.

The learner profile tool for students with Indigenous ancestry is designed to provide comprehensive data on attendance, achievement, and additional
services delivered to Indigenous students, that help to support their educational success. The project introduced the concept of the tracking tool to
department staff and school-based PVP, generating awareness and support. Notably, a meticulous procurement process facilitated by Digital Solutions
contributed to the acquisition of a high-quality product that aligned with SD62's technical requirements, ensuring that the tool's deliverables and services
meet the needs of the district's schools. The digital app and program were successfully uploaded to SD62 systems. The Na’tsa’maht Indigenous Education
(NIE) department conducted a successful pilot of the tool with staff in June 2023. This pilot phase serves as a crucial foundation for the full implementation
planned in the upcoming 2023/24 academic year.

Strategy - Begin the implementation of the Middle School Beliefs adopted by the Board, including the development of consistent timetable
principles across all middle schools.

The initiative achieved its objectives by successfully implementing the Principles for Timetabling and making changes to create consistent weekly
schedules in two schools. The collaboration among the principals of the five middle schools played a pivotal role in establishing a shared
understanding of how timetabling aligns with the Middle School Philosophy. Principals worked closely with their respective staff to communicate
upcoming changes for the next academic year.
An essential outcome of this project was the creation of a comprehensive document outlining the Principles of Timetable, directly linked to the
Middle School Philosophy. Moreover, the changes made to the timetables ensured that Band and Applied Design, Skills, and Technologies (ADST)
were prioritized for all grades, reflecting a commitment to a holistic educational experience.
The experience of implementation, which revealed inconsistencies across schools has highlighted the need for more work to ensure greater
consistency across the district to fully align timetabling practices with the Middle School Philosophy.

18

Page 138 of 271



Strategy - Develop a Curriculum Operations Plan with a focus on: (1) K-12 Literacy. Including a focus on building and strengthening the
relationship with literacy development across all levels K-12. (2) K-12 Assessment, evaluation, and a reporting policy.

A vital document supporting the K-3 English Language Arts Assessment and Reporting, aligned with the new reporting policy, was successfully
crafted and shared for teacher input. This document serves as a crucial framework for accurate and consistent assessment and reporting practices.
The culmination of the literacy learning series for various grade levels (K-3, 4-5, 6-8, 9-12) was achieved. These sessions have enriched educators'
understanding of effective literacy instruction and strategies.
Collaborative efforts with Literacy Intervention Teachers (LITs) culminated in the identification of Universal Screening measures. These measures will
be implemented across all elementary schools in the upcoming fall and winter, promising a standardized and comprehensive approach to student
assessment.
Consultation with school psychologists on screening measures and intervention strategies has taken place, enriching the depth and effectiveness of
our intervention approaches.
Analysis of data from a sample of schools revealed promising results in terms of response to intervention for primary students facing literacy
difficulties. This points towards the effectiveness of the strategies and interventions implemented.
The establishment of a professional learning community with Literacy Intervention teachers has significantly deepened their understanding of the
work and enhanced their skills. This development has fostered collective efficacy across the district, underscoring the positive impact of
collaborative learning.
The equitable distribution of resources to intervention teachers across all grade levels (K-12), ensuring a consistent level of support and tools for
effective intervention.
For critical and creative numeracy work the end of year scorecards show progress from the previous year with regards to student proficiency.

Success this year has included: 

Grade 4 Math Proficiency Grade 7 Math Proficiency

2021-22 (green) vs 2022-23 (blue)
19

Page 139 of 271



OBJECTIVE 3 - ENSURE OUR LEARNING ENVIRONMENTS ARE SAFE,
ACCESSIBLE AND WELCOMING.

Highlights of progress related to this objective come from a variety of data sources and include:

• Student Learning Surveys (due to data availability from the Ministry of Education and Child Care, the most
recent information is from 2021-2022)

o Student Responses

In 2021-22, averaged across the four grades,
76% of students reported feeling safe at
school either “all the time” or “most of the
time.”   
On the whole, Grade 12 students feel safer
than the other grades while Grade 7 feel
slightly less safe than the other grades. 

Question – Do you feel safe at school? 

20

Page 140 of 271



Students reported feeling welcome at their
school, “all the time” or “most of the time”
(69%) in the 2021-22 Student Learning
Survey. 
The figures were slightly higher for
students in Grade 4 and Grade 12 who
more frequently reported feeling welcome
at school “most” or “all” of the time.

Question - Do you feel welcome at your school?

Question - Is school a place where you feel like you belong? 

The data suggest that a majority of
students across various grade levels
generally feel like they belong in school
“most of the time” or “all of the time”. 
In the 2021-22 Student Learning Survey,
81% of students who responded to the
survey reported feeling a sense of
belonging in school, either “all the time”, or
“ most of the time” (51%) or “sometimes”
(30%).  
Sense of belonging for Grade 4 students
has dropped from a high of 64% in 2018/19
to a low of 51% in 2021/22.

21

Page 141 of 271



The data suggest that, in general, the
majority of students across various grade
levels report “never” or “almost never”
feeling bullied, teased, or picked on.
Grade 12 consistently had the highest
percentage of students who ”never” or
“almost never” felt bullied.
It is worth noting that for Grade 12 the
difference between the years dropped to
66% in 2021-22 having been 85%, 81% and
83% in previous years - suggesting an
increasing amount of bullying over the
years.
Similarly for Grade 12 students there was
an increase in “sometimes” feeling bullied
at school: 26% in 2021-22  but lower at 8%,
12% and 7% in preceding years. 
Compared to 2020-21, students who
responded to the survey, reported lower
levels of “never” or “almost never” in 2021-
22.  The data showing an increased in
“sometimes” feeling bullied.
Note: Between 2018-21 the question was
phrased differently as “At school are you
bullied, teased or picked on? (Gr 7, 10, 12).”
For Grade 4 students in 2018-21, the
question was worded as it is now.

Question -  Have you ever felt bullied at school? 

22

Page 142 of 271



The data suggest fluctuations in students' observations of racist
remarks or acts of racism in their school environment over the
surveyed years. 
In the 2022-23 school year, the percentage of respondents who
reported never witnessing such incidents decreased to 43%. 
The percentages for “sometimes” (24%) and “rarely” (25%)
witnessing such incidents remained elevated from the previous
years. The was a slight drop to 9% of responses to  “always”
witnessing racism in school. 

Question - Do you witness racist remarks or acts of racism in your school?

Question - Are children in your classroom kind and caring? 

The percentage of students who feel that children in their
classroom are "always" kind and caring has more than doubled
from 15% in 2020-2021 to 35% in 2022-2023. This suggests a
positive trend in classroom behaviour over the years.

Question - Are there times when children in your classroom are unkind or hurt your feelings? 

In the 2022-2023 data on this question, the percentage of
respondents who:

believed that children were “always” unkind or hurtful
increased to 35%, an increase from previous years.
believed that that children “never” engaged in unkind
behaviour decreased to 2%, a decrease from previous years. 
felt that children were "sometimes" unkind or hurtful
increased to 54% from 45% the previous year. 
believed that children were “rarely” unkind or decreased to
9% from 13%.

Equity in Action Surveys

23

Page 143 of 271



The data suggest fluctuations in the perception of experiencing
racism in schools over the surveyed years. 
In 2022-2023, 87% of students report that they “rarely” or “never”
experience racism in their school.  
The rate of “always” or “sometimes” experiencing racism has
dropped from 17% the previous year to 13%,  however, it is still
higher than in 2020-21 when it was 10%.

Question - Do you experience racism in your school?

Question - Do you see your culture reflected in your classroom?

The data highlight a diversity of perceptions regarding the
reflection of students' cultures in the classroom. 
While a quarter of respondents feel that their culture is “always”
reflected, the majority indicated that they are only “sometimes”,
“rarely”, or “never” reflected. 
These data underscore the importance of fostering a culturally-
inclusive classroom that embraces and values the diverse cultural
backgrounds of students. 

Question - Do you see family and/or people from your community in your classroom?

Overall, the increase since 2020-2021 in the percentage of
respondents who reported “always” seeing family and community
representation suggests improved inclusion.  
In the 2022-23 data, the percentage of respondents who indicated
that they “sometimes” see family and community members
increased to 33% and those who “rarely” saw family and
community decreased to 16%. However, those reporting “never”
seeing family and people from their community” rose from 17% in
2021-22 to 21% in 2022-23. 
The variations in perceptions could be influenced by changes in
classroom demographics and school initiatives. 24

Page 144 of 271



Strategy - Lead the consultation and expenditure of the Student and Family Affordability Fund.

The Student and Family Affordability Fund was established by the provincial government to help support support students and families struggling with
rising costs due to global inflation. The fund was intended to improve students’ access to nutritional food and meals, before, during and after the school
day and offset family costs such as school supplies or other cost pressures. The district received an allocation of $1,251,529.
 Throughout the duration of the year, schools have effectively utilized the allocated funds to provide support for students and families. Emphasis was
placed on addressing food security and reducing financial barriers to participation in field trips and other activities. The School-Based Student Wellness
(SBSW) team played a vital role in supporting individual students during emergency situations, ensuring that immediate needs were met. 
By directing resources toward food security and fee reductions, students and families have experienced tangible benefits. The financial relief in these areas
has enabled families to allocate resources to other essential aspects of their budgets, thereby fostering greater financial stability.
As the Student and Family Affordability Fund comes to a close, it's worth noting that the newly introduced Feeding Futures fund will take over the support
for food security concerns in the upcoming year. This transition reflects a dynamic response to evolving needs, ensuring that support mechanisms remain
relevant and effective.

Operational Plan Strategies 2022-2023

25

Page 145 of 271



Strategy - Support the collaborative work of Inclusive Education Services (IES) with all District Principals.

This operational plan initiative greatly expanded and strengthened the collaboration between Inclusive Education Services (IES) and District Principals.
Through the work, the was an establishment of a common language and understanding among departments, which over the year became ingrained and
routine, resulting in a seamless communication process that no longer requires structured conversations.
Key achievements include the transformation of District Principal meetings, where presentations are now centered around overarching themes rather
than focusing solely on individualized departments. Additionally, committee membership has been broadened to encompass not only traditional IES
areas but also other departments, leading to a more comprehensive and holistic approach to working together.

Strategy - Undertake a system scan of IES services, to ensure effective allocation of resources to support students

Through undertaking a system scan of IES services, significant progress has been made in resource
allocation to better support students within the Sooke School District. Resource allocation strategies were
shifted, leading to the implementation of behaviour support time for elementary schools. The realignment
of inclusion coaches and psychologists was done to better meet district needs and caseloads, reflecting a
keen understanding of the local context.
Collaboration with other districts in the Lower Island CAISE (Council of Administrators of Inclusive Support
in Education) has further enriched the initiative. Sharing structures, collaborating on resource allocation,
and learning from other district initiatives have contributed to a broader perspective on effective practices.

Strategy - Support our schools to be safe places by deepening system practices and processes in aid of the increased complexity of student
needs and connecting schools to processes including CIRT and VTRA.

The initiative has led to a reduction in the number of Level 2 Threat Assessments, showcasing increased proactive interventions. Collaborative efforts
with community supports, such as Game Ready, have contributed to a comprehensive safety net for students.
Building stronger relationships with police partners, including Military Police, and consulting with the Ministry, Safe Schools team, and RCMP, have
provided valuable insights for anticipated changes in the upcoming year.
Lockdown and Hold & Secure protocols have been meticulously refined and shared with the system. Debriefs following Lockdown and Hold & Secure
responses have led to enhanced preparedness.
Comprehensive training for the District CIRT team has been conducted, processes have been communicated throughout the system, and collaboration
with law enforcement authorities has been reinforced. 

26

Page 146 of 271



OBJECTIVE 4 - ENHANCE STUDENT CHOICE AND VOICE

Student Learning Surveys (due to data availability from the Ministry of Education and Child Care, the most
recent information is from 2021-2022).

Student Responses

Highlights of progress related to this objective come from a variety of data sources and include:

Question - At school do you get to work on things you are interested in as part of your course work?  

The data suggest that across different school years and
grades, a portion of students feel that they have
opportunities to work on things they are interested in as
part of their coursework. 
Positive responses were consistently higher for Grade 12
students compared to Grade 7 and Grade 10 students. 
The variations in responses might reflect different teaching
approaches and opportunities provided to students over
the years. 
In 2021/22, of the students who responded to the survey,
70% said that they “all of the time”, “most of the time” or
"sometimes" got to work on things they were interested in as
part of their coursework. The response is lowest for Grade 7
students at 62%, higher for Grade 10 students at 75% and
highest for Grade 12 students at 84%. 

27

Page 147 of 271



Question – Do adults in the school treat all students fairly?

The data suggest that across different school years and
grades, the majority of students feel that adults in the
school treat all students fairly. 
Positive response rates were consistently high across all
grade levels surveyed, indicating a positive perception of
fair treatment. 
There is more consistency for Grade 12 than for Grade 10 in
positive responses.
In the 2021/22 school year, the question was asked of Grade
4 students for the first time. Results show a significantly
higher percentage (69%) of students believing that adults in
the school treat all students fairly "many times” or “all of the
time" compared to other grades.
In 2021/22 of those students who responded to the
question, 57% said adults treat all students fairly, “many
times” or “all of the time.” A further 23% responded
“sometimes” to this question.

Question – At school, I provide input into what I learn, and how I learn (for example, suggesting topics that interest me, and
choosing my projects)

The data suggest that across different school years and
grades, a portion of students have opportunities to provide
input into what they learn and how they learn. Positive
response rates ranged from a low of 31% (Grade 10) in
2019/20 to a high of 41% (Grade 12) in 2021/22. 
Grade 12 students generally expressed slightly higher levels
of positive experiences compared to Grade 10 students. 
The relatively low percentages of negative responses might
reflect schools' efforts to incorporate student input into
their educational experiences, fostering a sense of
ownership and engagement. 2021/22 had the fewest
responses of “never” or “almost never”.

28

Page 148 of 271



Question – Are you satisfied that school is preparing you for post-secondary education? 

The data suggest that across different school years and
grades, a portion of students have varying levels of
satisfaction with how well school is preparing them for post-
secondary education. 
Responses from Grade 10 students show a steady increase
in satisfaction in preparation for post-secondary from 29%
in 2018/9 to 39% in 2021/22. The results for Grade 12
students are more fluctuating, going from 40% in 2018/19 to
23% in 2019/20 up to 36% in 2020/21, to 38% in 2021/22. 
The relatively high percentages of negative responses
(ranging from 23%-35%) might reflect students' concerns
about their readiness for higher education and the
perceived alignment of their education with future academic
pursuits. 

Question – Are you satisfied that school is preparing you for a job in the future?

In the 2021/22 school year, there was a notable increase in
Grade 10 students who feel that school is preparing them
for a job "many times” or “all the time," jumping from 22% in
2020/21 to 30%. This could indicate a positive shift in the
perception of educational effectiveness for this grade.
Across all years and grades, the "at no time” or “few times"
category has consistently high percentages, always
exceeding those who feel positively about job preparation.
This could indicate a general skepticism among students
about the effectiveness of their education in preparing them
for future jobs.

29

Page 149 of 271



Question – What are your Plans After Grade 12?

In the 2022/23 Equity in Action survey, students were asked
what they were planning to do after Grade 12. Students
could choose as many of the responses in the list as relevant
to them. 
Of those students who responded to this question the most
frequent plan was to get a job (21%) followed by find my own
place to live (18%) and travel (15%). Only 5% reported that
they wanted to learn a trade.

Around 31% of parents believe that the BC education
system adequately prepares students for the transition to
post-secondary education. 
Approximately 27% of parents feel that the BC education
system effectively equips students for transitions to the
workforce following their graduation. 
While a third of the parents surveyed have positive views,
it's notable that there is a larger percentage who  have
differing opinions or uncertainties about the system's
preparedness for post-secondary education and workforce
transitions. In addition, the low response rate makes it hard
to generalize about parents’ views.

Parent Student Learning Survey 2021-23.  
Parent Responses

• Equity in Action Survey 2022/23

30

Page 150 of 271



Pathways and Choice

In the 2022-23 rubric
proficiency, Learning
Objective 4, was
determined to have an
Extending proficiency
because of the multiple
additional pathways
used for student choice
including routes to
graduation and
opportunities for hands
on learning.  

The diagram (right)
captures key pathways
on offer. More
information can be
found on the SD62
website.

31

Page 151 of 271



Strategy - Explore ways to provide blended learning at the elementary and middle school levels that provides for student choice and
connection to secondary online learning opportunities.

In this strategy, the focus was on providing flexibility, engagement, and equity to students, with an emphasis on the Middle School Blended Program. 
The program has gained popularity and engagement among students. In the 22/23 school year, two cohorts at Dunsmuir and Journey Middle Schools
were fully subscribed, with 26 students each. 
The Blended Program at Journey Middle School has positively impacted Indigenous students from the Pacheedaht Nation. By reducing their bus
travel to one day a week, engagement and participation have increased, promoting equity.
The District Elementary Blended Learning Committee has met four times during the year and has made recommendations for developing structures,
routines, and processes for hosting an elementary program in the latter half of the 23/24 school year.
The Middle School Blended Program has led to a significant improvement in academic success for 40% of enrolled students who were previously
home-schooled or faced attendance challenges. 

Strategy - Implement online learning hubs at secondary schools to enhance blended learning options.

Online learning hubs have been implemented and integrated for the 23/24 school year at Royal Bay, Belmont and
Edward Milne Community School.
WestShore Secondary has seamlessly introduced the Individual Learning Program (ILP) with structures and supports
mirroring those of the mainstream secondary curriculum. The distinction lies in its unique branding, catering to
diverse learning needs.

Strategy: Implement and assess the “Take A Hike” program.

The "Take A Hike" program based at WestShore Colwood has been fully subscribed throughout the school year, showcasing significant student interest and
engagement.
The program has demonstrated remarkable success in various aspects including academics, attendance, and participation. Students have exhibited notable
improvements in these areas due to their participation in the program.
A total of 21 students completed the "Take A Hike" program, each successfully passing all eight of their courses. This achievement underscores the positive
impact of the program on academic outcomes.

Operational Plan Strategies 2022-2023

32

Page 152 of 271



Strategy - Explore a vision for the Milnes Landing Alternative programming.

For this operational plan initiative, an Alternative Education school site was explored from research conducted by a commercial real estate agent
during the first half of the 22/23 school year. The research highlighted the cost barrier associated with leasing space for a larger alternative school
site in the Milne's Landing zone. Consequently, the district has shifted focus away from leasing and is now exploring opportunities to establish a
site on District-owned land, which would help to establish the alternative site, providing the District with greater control and flexibility to run the
program. 

Strategy - Co-create a program vision for implementation at the Westshore Post-Secondary that compliments the
direction of the facility.

The vision created this year is that Westshore Post-Secondary will be a vibrant, inclusive educational hub, offering accessible and impactful
programs that cater to diverse learner needs for academic, career, and personal growth.
Strategic partnerships, particularly with Camosun College, are in active development.
The Post-Secondary is expected to open in fall 2024 and will be able to hold about 1300 full time students, of which SD62 will offer:

Night school options for adult education.
Dual-credit courses in partnership with Camosun College.
English courses for Newcomer adults.

33

Page 153 of 271



ENGAGEMENT

STRATEGIC PLAN STATUS SUMMARY

 Goal: Create a culture of belonging

34

Page 154 of 271



Strategy - Develop an accountability framework that supports a culture of belonging and connection
within the Facilities Department.

This project has created greater engagement with the Facilities staff. Over the year, a joint working group
undertook ongoing meetings to develop and implement the Accountability Framework. There was ongoing
engagement between leadership and staff. A standard work week was implemented for the Facilities
Department. The needs of future building work led to the restructuring of the Facilities Department. A new
Director was appointed for the 2023-2024 school year.

Strategy - Develop and provide protocols and training for system leaders on how to receive and support
claims of sexual assault and sexual harassment. 

To develop the protocols, resources used in other BC schools were reviewed to provide a foundational understanding for system leaders. Planning
was undertaken to create an implementation strategy for protocols and training across the leadership team. District staff worked with other local
school districts to develop a common language. A system scan of resources was undertaken and a one-page document was developed for use to
help support receiving claims of sexual assault and harassment. Training was completed with middle & secondary PVP collaborating with the
RCMP’s Mobile Youth Service Team (MYST) team. District staff consulted with MYST and police around the protocol. The protocol was finalized and
embedded into the work of PVP.

Strategy - Distribute the process of school staffing to create shared accountability amongst the Associate Superintendents. 

To create shared accountability in school staffing, the Associate Superintendents collaborated on various staffing models for the 2023-2024
academic year. For Teacher-Librarian and Inclusive Education staffing, multiple meetings were conducted to explore system limitations and consider
elements of the Collective Agreement. Key changes were made to improve staffing across departments including new allocation ratios which were
developed for Literacy Intervention Teachers. A revised model was proposed for K-12 counseling; and draft ratios were prepared for Inclusive
Education Support and Education Assistants. Efforts made to better distribute English Language Learning staffing, aimed for equitable workload
distribution, have been well-received. The work has built capacity among school management and Executive Team members. Future steps planned
include increasing system transparency and expanding staffing allocation to new areas, aiming for full alignment at Eagle Ridge Secondary by the end
of the 2023-2024 academic year.

Operational Plan Strategies 2022-2023

OBJECTIVE 1 -  DEVELOP, EXPAND AND IMPLEMENT INCLUSIVE AND
COLLABORATIVE PRACTICES AND PROCESSES

ENGAGEMENT

35

Page 155 of 271



Student Learning Surveys (due to data availability from the Ministry of Education and Child Care, the most
recent information is from 2021-2022).

Student Responses

Highlights of progress related to this objective come from a variety of data sources and include:

OBJECTIVE 2 - FURTHER THE GOALS OF THE NA’TSA’MAHT AGREEMENT
FOLLOWING THE OBJECTIVES OF ‘ONE MIND’ AND ‘ONE SPIRIT’

Question - At school, are you being taught about Indigenous Peoples (First Nations, Inuit, Métis) in Canada?  2021/22

A majority of students across all grades report being taught
about Indigenous Peoples in Canada either "most of the
time” or “all of the time" (36%) or "sometimes" (49%). This
suggests a relatively high level of integration of this subject
matter into the curriculum.
While the percentage of students who report "never’ or
‘almost never" being taught is relatively low across all
grades, it increases from 11% in Grades 7 and 10 to 17% in
Grade 12. This suggests a decline in exposure to this subject
as students approach graduation. 

It will be interesting to see the impact on responses to
this question in future years following the start of the
new Indigenous-focused course required for graduation
from 2023-24 school year onwards.

36

Page 156 of 271



Question - At school, are you being taught about local First Nations?   2021/22

Across all grades, 31% of respondents say they are taught
about local First Nations, "most of the time” or “all the time,"
and 47% "sometimes" .
Grade 10 students report the highest level of being taught
"most of the time” or “all the time" at 36%, suggesting that
there may be specific curricular elements or programs at
this stage that focus more on local First Nations' history or
culture.
The data suggest increasing non-exposure in Grade 12 to
local First Nations as the percentage of students who report
"never” or “almost never" being taught increases from 15%
in Grade 7 and Grade 10 to 24% in Grade 12. This suggests a
decline in exposure to this important subject matter as
students approach graduation.

Question - At school, are you being taught the local First Nations’ language(s)?   2021/22

Across all grades, a majority of students (65%) report
"never” or “almost never" being taught local First Nations'
languages. Only a small fraction, 7%, indicate they are taught
these languages "most of the time” or “all of the time." 
Interestingly, Grade 10 shows a slight increase in students
being taught "most of the time” or “all of the time"  (9%),
compared to Grade 7 (5%) and Grade 12 (6%). This could
suggest that there might be specific curricular elements or
programs at this stage that focus on Indigenous languages.
The percentage of students who report "never” or “almost
never"  being taught, ranges from 63% in Grade 7 to 70% in
Grade 12, indicating a consistent lack of exposure to
Indigenous languages throughout the school years,
lessening as students reach the end of secondary school.

37

Page 157 of 271



Question - At school, do you participate in any Indigenous (First Nations, Inuit, Métis) celebrations or activities?   2021/22

Compared to ongoing Indigenous programs, there is a
slightly higher level of participation in Indigenous
celebrations or activities. While 54% of students across all
grades report "never” or “almost never"  participating, a
notable 31% do participate "sometimes," and 8% "most of
the time” or “all the time."

Question - At school, do you participate in any ongoing Indigenous (First Nations, Inuit, Métis) programs or activities?   2021/22

Across all grades, the majority of students (66%) report
"never” or “almost never"  participating in Indigenous
programs or activities. Only 5% participate "most of the
time” or “all of the time," indicating a low level of
engagement with Indigenous education and cultural
activities across the grades.

38

Page 158 of 271



·Equity in Action Student Survey  

In 2021/22 more students completed in 6 years than in
previous years. 2% more students with Indigenous ancestry
graduated in 6 years as did 2% more of students without
Indigenous ancestry.
Notably, grouped together, boys with Indigenous ancestry
increased their year 6 completion rate from 61% to 77%
while the corresponding girls group’s rate of completion
declined from 80% to 69%.

Six year completion rate

The six-year completion rate is the percentage of Grade 8 students who graduate, with a B.C. Certificate of Graduation ("Dogwood")
or a B.C. Adult Graduation Diploma ("Adult Dogwood"), within six years from the first time they enroll in Grade 8, adjusted for
migration in and out of B.C. It is not the inverse of a "dropout rate" as students may graduate after the six-year period. 

The results are an improvement on the progress of
students who started Grade 8 in 2016 which were
reported last year. 
In 2021/22, 75% of students with an Indigenous
background completed their studies, in comparison to 71%
in 2020-21. 
In 2021/22, there was a 93% completion of students
without an Indigenous background compared with 91%
completion in 2020-21.  (How Are We Doing Report, p. 37).

Progress of Students Who Entered Grade 8 in September 2016

If we follow the progress of students Grade 8 Cohort in 2016/17, a decline in progress towards the next grade begins in Grade 10
amongst male students with Indigenous ancestry and also in Grade 10 for female students who do not have Indigenous ancestry. In
Grade 11 the decline starts for female students with Indigenous ancestry. 

Question: Do you hear the territorial acknowledgement in your classroom, assemblies or announcements? 

Of those students who responded to the Equity Survey, 94%
reported “always” (76%) or "sometimes"(18%) hearing the
Territorial Acknowledgement in classrooms, assemblies or
announcements.

• My Education Data

39

Page 159 of 271

https://www2.gov.bc.ca/assets/gov/education/administration/kindergarten-to-grade-12/reports/ab-hawd/ab-hawd-school-district-062.pdf


Articulated Plan: Developed a clear and well-structured communication plan. 
Branding: Created a comprehensive style guide for consistent messaging and visuals. 
Staff Training: Trained staff on plan's objectives and implementation. 

Inclusivity: Designed the plan to be accessible to diverse stakeholders. 
Multi-Platform Strategy: Utilized social media and direct messaging to reach a broader audience. 
Metrics: Collected data to measure the effectiveness of communication methods. 

Support: Commitment to continually supporting school and department communications. 
Unified Messaging: Goal to develop a single narrative that clarifies the district's mission and values. 

The 2022-23 year has seen a deepening of the development of SD62s Communications.  
The progress has placed this objective in the Extending category of the proficiency rubric.

Key accomplishments include: 

Achievements: 

Ongoing Focus: 

The Communication Plan is advancing well, focusing on clarity, branding, and inclusivity. Ongoing efforts aim to support
internal communications and unify the district's messaging. 

See Appendix 2 for more details on the extensive output of the Strategic Communications department and it’s strength
in promoting diversity, equity and inclusion.

OBJECTIVE 3 - DEVELOP, EXPAND AND IMPLEMENT RESPECTFUL,
EFFECTIVE, CLEAR AND TRANSPARENT COMMUNICATIONS

Strategy - Continued Development of SD62 Strategic Communications.

Operational Plan Strategies 2022-2023

40

Page 160 of 271



Strategy - Begin the implementation of the revised Na’tsa’maht Agreement and undertake to report to the Board of Education biannually on
progress with the Na’tsa’maht agreement. 

The revised Na'tsa'maht Agreement focuses on improving the educational
journey of Indigenous students in SD62. The District is committed to
narrowing the gap relating to achievement and accessibility between
Indigenous and non-Indigenous students. Many Indigenous students are
pursuing higher education locally, indicating strong community relationships.
The implementation work has highlighted issues like the 'sense of belonging'
at certain grade levels, insufficient focus on Indigenous languages and
histories, and the need for a dedicated Non-Instructional Day. In addition,
while equity is a core District value, gaps in results persist: the 6-year
graduation rate is 75% for Indigenous students vs. 93% for non-Indigenous
students. The revised agreement can be found on the NIE page on the SD62
website.

Strategy - Support the Curriculum Transformation Department in the implementation of
the Indigenous graduation credit. 

Developed teaching resources in collaboration with the Ministry of Education and the
First Nations Education Steering Committee.
Conducted teacher training on Indigenous perspectives via conferences and
workshops.
Consulted with National Indigenous Education groups and local communities to ensure
cultural sensitivity.
Adopted a phased implementation strategy to increase positive engagement.
Planned for Board Authority Authorized courses to be developed in the 2023/2024
academic year. These courses require extensive consultation and input form local
Nations before approval by Ministry and the Board of Education.
Introduced courses like BC First Peoples 12 to meet new Ministry graduation
requirements.

Key actions undertaken to support the implementation of the Indigenous graduation
credit included: ·

Na’tsa’maht means... being of one mind, one spirit. Together, working side by side,
supporting each other, walking together. Good mind, good spirit for the good of our

children, for the good of Mother Earth sustaining us. 
Elder Dr. Shirley Alphonse

Operational Plan Strategies 2022-2023

41

Page 161 of 271



OBJECTIVE 4 - CONTINUE TO DEVELOP, EXPAND AND IMPLEMENT A
CULTURE OF WELLNESS

Student Learning Surveys (due to data availability from the Ministry of Education and Child Care, the most
recent information is from 2021-2022).

Student Responses

Highlights of progress related to this objective come from a variety of data sources and include:

There is a noticeable decline in positive responses as
students progress from Grade 7 to Grade 12. While 42-43%
of Grade 7 students report learning about mental health
"many times” or “all of the time," this drops to 18-21% by
Grade 12 in the most recent years. 
This suggests that older students may feel less supported in
mental health education, which could be a critical issue
given the increasing mental health challenges often faced by
adolescents. 
Negative responses, indicating that students in Grade 10
and 12 feel they are learning about mental health ‘at no time’
or ‘few times,’ have increased over the years, reaching 50%
for Grade 10 and 56% for Grade 12 in 2021/22.
This is a concerning trend and suggests that mental health
needs a greater focus to meet the needs of older students,
who are closer to leaving school.

Question: At school I am learning how to care for my mental health.

42

Page 162 of 271



The majority of parents who responded to
the SLS Parent Survey in 2022-23 believed
that their child was learning emotional self
regulation (55%) and to care for their
physical health (71%). Some parents (44%)
agreed that their child was learning how to
care for their mental health. 
NOTE: The numbers of students and parents
undertaking SLS Surveys is very low and it is
not clear what the results would be if all of
the students and parents in the district
undertook their respective survey.  

Parent views on student learning about wellness (SLS Parent Survey in 2021-23) 
o  Parent Responses

43

Page 163 of 271



Strategy - Develop and implement a learning series for leadership on cultivating resilience (Onward). 

The "Onward Resilience" project for Leadership has been completed
with substantial progress. The series was built on the book by Elena
Agular entitled: ‘Onward: Cultivating Emotional Resilience in Educators.’
Several sessions were conducted during monthly Leadership Team
meetings to promote understanding, collaboration, and reflection on
staff wellness and educator resilience. The sessions provided valuable
insights and tools for supporting both personal well-being and that of
their teams. During the sessions, Leadership Team members were
provided with time for conversation, collaboration, and reflection. This
allowed them to explore strategies and best practices for supporting
themselves and their colleagues in maintaining resilience and well-
being. PVPs and other members of the Leadership Team indicated
positive responses to the Onward sessions via a short survey: 62% of
respondents rated the learning series as 4 or 5 Star.

Strategy - Strengthen district leadership connections and relationship through ongoing and consistent presence in schools. 

Bi-weekly visits to Milnes Landing schools for direct engagement with staff;
Attendance at key curriculum and wellness events; and 
Monthly meetings with school-based Principals and Vice Principals (PVPs). 

Key activities undertaken in the 2022-23 school year included: 

The initiative has helped address communication gaps between district management and school staff. Overall, consistent
presence and strategic meetings have begun to bridge the gap between district management and school-based staff, aligning
goals and enhancing mutual understanding. These efforts continue into the 2023-24 school year with dedicated weekly time for
fostering District-School connections and relationship building.

Operational Plan Strategies 2022-2023

Star Rating of Onward Training
 from 1 (low) to 5 (high)

44

Page 164 of 271



Strategy - Explore, revise and implement the Healthy Schools Healthy People framework. 

Conducted two Health Canada funded workshops for professional development on
Substance Use, involving key partners like IH Public Health.
Secured $50K grant from Here4Peers to launch a peer mentoring program in partnership
with the Canadian Mental Health Association. Rollout expected in Fall 2023.
Shared monthly newsletters and used social media to keep parents informed about wellness
initiatives.
Supported schools in promoting healthier travel options for students.
Aided English Language Learner (ELL) students and their families through community
partnerships.
Assisted in preparing a grant proposal to secure additional wellness funding.

Key activities undertaken in the 2022-23 school year included: 

Strategy - Develop a program document that outlines a system of attendance support and
disability management, backed by evidence, to enhance the wellness and attendance of
employees. 

Developed consistent data collection methods for tracking attendance and absenteeism.
Hired a dedicated Attendance Support and Wellness Coordinator.
Enhanced the system for capturing and analyzing absenteeism metrics.
Identified employee groups with high absenteeism for targeted action.

Key accomplishments included:

The District maintains an Employee & Family Assistance Program (EFAP), provided by LifeWorks (soon to be known as Telus Health) to offer mental health
support and work/life services for employees and their families. In 2022/23, the Program had a utilization rate of 10.2%. The most used services involved
mental health counselling for stress, anxiety and grief.

The District continues to offer support services to those employees who are away from work for extended periods due to medical challenges. For example,
SD62 partners with the Public Education Benefits Trust (PEBT), via the Joint Early Intervention Service (JEIS) program. This program works with ill/injured
support staff to ensure the provision of a supportive healthcare treatment plan and, in the majority of cases, a successful and timely return to work. 

45

Page 165 of 271



GROWTH

STRATEGIC PLAN STATUS SUMMARY

Goal: Pursue organizational excellence to support a vibrant school district.

46

Page 166 of 271



GROWTH

OBJECTIVE 1 - STRENGTHEN ORGANIZATIONAL PRACTICES TO ENSURE
EQUITY, DIVERSITY AND INCLUSION

Strategy - Use the Employment Equity Survey results to develop an action plan connected to developing equity hiring practices and other
human resources processes. 

The Employment Equity team, involving cross-functional
members such as SPEAC, STA, and CUPE, met multiple
times throughout the school year. The group initially
reviewed the results of the 2022 Employment Equity Survey
and identified key themes to guide action planning.
Subsequent meetings focused on a detailed analysis of
survey data, specifically aiming to enhance equity in hiring
practices.

A draft "Special Program" application was prepared and
submitted for approval to the BC Office of the Human
Rights Commissioner (BCOHRC). Concurrently, extensive
stakeholder consultations were conducted, involving Board
of Education, Executive and Leadership Team members,
Union partners, local Indigenous Communities, and SPEAC.
A dedicated committee was formed to discuss equitable
hiring goals and implement strategies to address
employment barriers for marginalized groups.

Operational Plan Strategies 2022-2023

47

Page 167 of 271



OBJECTIVE 2 - BUILD AND MAINTAIN SPACES AND RESOURCES THAT
SUPPORT OUR CREATIVE AND CRITICAL LEARNING AND OUR CULTURE OF
BELONGING.

Strategy - Develop policies related to Business Continuity Planning and Digital Governance.

The initiative kicked off with the drafting of policies for Business Continuity Planning (BCP) and Digital
Governance, alongside a refresh of the existing BCP to align with new policies. The BCP Policy 
(F-495) was presented to and approved by the Board of Education. The Emergency Management Team
comprising Executives, Directors and Managers participated in a table-top exercise to practice
emergency response to a catestrophic event, the outcome of which will inform future BCP plans.

Strategy - Use the 2022 Design Guidelines for minor and major capital construction to develop universal
district standards that will be systematically applied to all building design and construction.

Development of a set of design standards based on the Board's Guiding Principles.
Communication and sharing of these standards with Facilities and architects.
Establishment of a consistent and universal approach to building design and construction.

This initiative was successful in the following: 

Strategy - Update the Long-Range Facilities Plan (LRFP) including enrolment forecasts.

Using a Request for Proposal, an architect was appointed to create a new LRFP that reflected recent
community growth, with long-range enrolment estimates and multi-year plans. The resulting updated
LRFP was successfully utilized for the annual capital plan submission and became a cornerstone
document for capital planning and decision-making.

48

Page 168 of 271



Student Learning Surveys (due to data availability from the Ministry of Education and Child
Care, the most recent information is from 2021-2022)

Student Responses

Highlights of progress related to this objective come from:

OBJECTIVE 3 - EMBRACE DIGITAL TECHNOLOGIES AND MANAGE
INCREASING COMPLEXITY BY LEVERAGING THE STRATEGIC USE OF
RESOURCES.

The majority of students agree that they have
enough materials.

For Grade 10, the positive responses
increased from 72% in 2018/19 to 79% in
2020/21, then slightly decreased to 75% in
2021/22.
For Grade 12, the positive responses
remained fairly stable, ranging from 71% to
81%.

Question - My school provides enough materials and technology for my learning (for example, things for wood working, metal
working, art work, music, computer technology) .

49

Page 169 of 271



Strategy - Establish a Cyber Risk and Security policy and begin implementation.

The year began with the drafting of a revised Cyber Risk and Security Policy, which was approved by the Board in November 2022. Hiring for the
Manager, Cyber Security and Privacy, a key role in the initiative, was initiated and successfully completed. Regulatory frameworks were also
established, setting the stage for implementation. Significant revisions were made to the Board Policy and protocols related to FOIPPA (Freedom of
Information and Protection of Privacy Act) Governance and ‘Security and Privacy Breach’ protocol.  Investigative work began for procuring Security
and Privacy Education, Training, and Awareness (SETA/PETA) solutions. The budget for Cyber Security Awareness and Training was approved, and
further investigation was undertaken into various cybersecurity tools.

Strategy - Develop a clear vision (including a clear rationale) for digital solutions in the district, which would be supported by rebranding the
Information Technology (I.T.) Department to Digital Solutions.

Conducting external scans and internal consultations to refine the rebranding
proposal.
Developing financial and staffing models to back the new initiative.
Gaining approval from Resources Committee and the Board of Education for
the rebranding, which now encompasses five core service areas: Infrastructure
and Tech Operations, Cyber Security and Privacy, Data Analytics and Records,
Digital Integration, and Digital Literacy.

This initiative’s key activities included:

Strategy - Develop recommendations for digital integration through an
agreed upon oversight process.

Developing recommendations for digital integration through an oversight
process; and
Advancing the creation of a Digital Governance policy, ensuring the Board's
role and the organization's strategic alignment.

The year saw focused efforts on clarifying the vision for digital governance and
integration, initiating planning, and developing a foundational Digital Governance
policy. The initiative was guided by industry best practices, particularly from
ISACA (Information Systems Audit and Control Association), and closely aligned
with the organization's strategic goals. 

Key achievements included:

50

Page 170 of 271



Strategy - Explore the focus of I.T. as it relates to digital literacy across educational departments. 

Identified two core areas and objectives for Digital Literacy. 
Gained Executive and Board approval for capacity-building within Digital Solutions, reflected in the 23/24 budget. 
Developed a job description for a new Digital Literacy Coordinator position, marking the start of the implementation phase. 

Create a comprehensive multi-year plan for Digital Literacy. 
Facilitate staff training and support for effective use of digital tools. 

The year was pivotal in setting the vision and planning for bridging the gap between technology and education. The initiative focused on two core areas:
Student and Staff Digital Literacy. Through extensive consultation with executives, partner groups, and district principals, key objectives were
identified, including enhancing staff capacity in digital tools for both administrative and pedagogical purposes. 

Key Achievements: 

Next Steps: 

The initiative made significant strides in recognizing the importance of Digital Literacy within the educational context. The approval for a new full-time
position and upcoming budget allocation demonstrate organizational commitment to this critical area. 

Strategy - Build a financial framework that reduces the inflationary
impacts to the district’s operating budget.

Completion of a financial framework to counter inflationary
effects, quantifying an annual impact of $1.2 million.
Partial implementation of non-cash recommendations, with the
remainder scheduled for the next school year.

This year focused on establishing a dedicated team and developing a
financial framework to mitigate inflationary impacts on the annual
operating budget. The framework was successfully drafted and is
aligned with the district's strategic plan for efficient resource
utilization. 

Key achievements were:

51

Page 171 of 271



Strategy - Extend and implement work on a recruitment and onboarding
model, supported by digital processes and resources, and plan to
implement training modules for recruitment that can be undertaken by the
Leadership Team. 

Successful integration of key processes in recruitment and onboarding.
Smooth deployment of the onboarding module, setting the stage for
broader eDoc capabilities within HR/Payroll.

This year saw the successful completion of a project aimed at digitally
enhancing recruitment and onboarding within SD62. Kicking off with a detailed
project plan and Statement of Work, the initiative then moved into process
implementation and testing phases. The project successfully achieved the
following outcomes:

Strategy - Implement the approved Program Review recommendations
specific to the Finance, Facilities, and Transportation Departments.

This year focused on implementing a structured work plan based on
recommendations provided to various departments, including Business
Services, Finance, Transportation, and Facilities. The work plan outlined
timelines and milestones aimed for completion by the end of the year.

Key achievements were:

Comprehensive review and phased implementation of
recommendations.
Regular tracking of progress across 29 key projects in diverse
departments.

52

Page 172 of 271



OBJECTIVE 4 - EXPAND OUR CULTURE OF SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY AND
IMPLEMENT LONG-TERM COMMITMENTS THAT STRIVE TO SUPPORT
SOCIETY AND PROTECT THE ENVIRONMENT

Evidence of progress in this section is drawn from the Climate Change
Accountability Report

SD62 emitted 2,008 tCO2e in 2022, across buildings, mobile (fleet), and paper consumption.
Figure 1 shows the breakdown per type for the 2022 year. Of this consumption, 359 tCO2e is
exempt under the Carbon Neutral Government guidelines. To achieve carbon neutrality, SD62
paid $41,213 + GST to offset the remaining 1,649 tCO2e of carbon for 2022. 

The chart shows SD62’s historic annual Green House Gas
(GHG) emission trends including the 2030 climate action goal.
Overall reductions for 2022 with respect to the 2010 baseline
are 31%. This reduction spans the categories by 41%, 3%, and
19% for buildings, mobile (fleet), and paper respectively. The
illustration shows that despite the increase in student
population and facilities, SD62 continues to reduce its carbon
footprint.

53

Page 173 of 271



SITE UPGRADE
ANNUAL

REDUCTION 
(tCo2e, %)

 Spencer Middle 

Electrification of
heating system with
an Air Source Heat

Pump. Phase
 2 of 3 completed.

72t, 54%

Edward Milne
Community

Building Automation
replacement

53t, 28%

Royal Bay
Secondary

Serviced ASHP and
HRV

17t, 40%

David Cameron
Elementary

Boiler Replacement
  9t,

  22%

Buildings constitute SD62’s largest GHG emissions, and therefore
require the largest capital investment to achieve desired reductions.
SD62 continues its success in securing ministry funding through the
School Enhancement Program and Carbon Neutral Capital Program.
The figures (right) summarize completed projects in 2022 including
actual GHG reductions in 2022 compared to 2021. 

BUILDINGS

Summer 2023 saw the completion of Phase 3 at Spencer Middle School.
This phase included the upgrade of the chiller circulators and a Building
Automation System upgrade.  Multiple small lighting upgrades to LED
technology were also completed.

FLEET

2023 saw an expansion of SD62’s yellow fleet with the addition of
seven electric buses. Planning for a white fleet EV transition is  
underway.

PAPER

A reduction in paper consumption was advocated by an ongoing
“digital” vs printing campaign.  The purchase of 30%-100%
recycled content paper continues to increase.

54

Page 174 of 271



Strategy - Implement, as part of transportation safety, enhanced safety
recommendations as identified in the 2019 Transportation Safety Committee Report .

Successful implementation of the safety recommendations from the 2019
Transportation Safety Committee Report, covering aspects such as traffic crossing
improvements and the integration of the Traversa App for student tracking.
Funding for safety initiatives was secured through the Transportation Safety Fee. This
funding has been thoughtfully allocated to projects like traffic crossing enhancements
and the development of comprehensive driver training programs.
A pilot program has been planned to enhance student safety during transportation
through the Traversa App's student tracking feature. This feature offers real-time
monitoring and tracking of students during their transit.
Devised a clear plan to develop comprehensive driver training course content. This
development process will ensure that our bus drivers receive the necessary training
to strengthen transportation safety.

The project team made significant strides in enhancing transportation.

Key Achievements:

Strategy - Develop a process to explore and act upon issues of diversity, equity,
inclusion and anti-racism. 

Initiated a comprehensive audit with Bakau Consulting, focused on DEIAR.
Conducted a staff equity survey. 
Conducted anti-oppression workshops for leadership.
Completed focus groups and surveys.

Over the course of the year, the organization undertook a comprehensive effort to
evaluate and improve its practices related to Diversity, Equity, Inclusion, and Anti-Racism
(DEIAR). The process began with the initiation of an organizational audit conducted by
Bakau Consulting, aligned with ongoing Human Resources initiatives. Surveys and focus
groups were designed and executed to collect insights from various stakeholders including
staff, students, and parents.

Key achievements:

Operational Plan Strategies 2022-2023

55

Page 175 of 271



APPENDIX 1 
2022-23 Rubric Proficiency Progress

56

Page 176 of 271



57

Page 177 of 271



58

Page 178 of 271



59

Page 179 of 271



60

Page 180 of 271



61

Page 181 of 271



APPENDIX 2 
2022-23 Communications Achievements

Communications
The work of the Communications Department: 

62

Page 182 of 271



63

Page 183 of 271



64

Page 184 of 271



65

Page 185 of 271



66

Page 186 of 271



67

Page 187 of 271



68

Page 188 of 271



69

Page 189 of 271



70

Page 190 of 271



71

Page 191 of 271



72

Page 192 of 271



73

Page 193 of 271



Page 194 of 271



1 
 

  
Board Info Note 

Public Board Meeting 
September 26, 2023 

Agenda Item: 10.2 – 2022/2023 Framework for Enhancing Student Learning Report 
  
 

 

BACKGROUND 

 The Framework for Enhancing Student Learning (FESL) formalizes the annual public reporting expectations for 

school districts to provide evidence and analysis on actions to enhance student learning and success.  

 

 FESL reflects the public commitment by Indigenous right holders and Indigenous peoples, education partners and 

communities to work together to continuously improve student learning.  

 

 FESL requires alignment of the province’s K-12 accountability and evidence informed practices that enhance 

student learning, inclusivity and equity of student outcomes.  

 

Statutory Requirements: 

 

Framework for Enhancing Student Learning Policy (provincial):  

https://www2.gov.bc.ca/gov/content/education-training/k-12/administration/legislation-policy/public-

schools/framework 

 

Enhancing Student Learning Reporting Order (provincial):  

https://www2.gov.bc.ca/assets/download/FA247BBA2CB24ED0BDDFE343E488C2D6 

 

     RATIONALE 

 This is the third year the district has completed the FESL report.  Staff continue to use the data collected and 

required by the Ministry as the standard data inputs for all districts in the province. Those data sets are primarily 

Foundation Skills Assessments (FSA test), and the Ministry’s Student Learning and Parent Satisfactions surveys. As 

we continue to develop our own assessments and student achievement data, the inclusion of data sets collected 

within district from our locally developed Equity Surveys and the incorporation of student report card and 

attendance data has greatly enhanced and improved the overall picture of student achievement in SD62.  

 

 

Page 195 of 271

https://www2.gov.bc.ca/gov/content/education-training/k-12/administration/legislation-policy/public-schools/framework
https://www2.gov.bc.ca/gov/content/education-training/k-12/administration/legislation-policy/public-schools/framework
https://www2.gov.bc.ca/assets/download/FA247BBA2CB24ED0BDDFE343E488C2D6


2 
 

 

 The Executive team continues to build coherence and alignment between the District’s Strategic Plan and the data 

generated for the FESL Report. We will draw the Board’s attention to the blend of information from the FESL Report 

into the Strategic Plan Annual Report and conversely, data from the Annual Report now embedded in the 2023 FESL 

Report. The clear connections between our Strategic Plan, District Operational Plans, Department Operational and 

School Plans demonstrates to the Board of Education, Ministry of Education and the public, the value staff place on 

meeting our commitments to student achievement and well-being and to our greater community on progress 

towards our Strategic goals and objectives.    

 

Prepared by:  Paul Block, Deputy Superintendent 

                  

Page 196 of 271



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

FRAMEWORK FOR ENHANCED 

STUDENT LEARNING (FESL) 
Report to Ministry of Education and Child Care        

     SEPTEMBER 2023 

Respectfully submitted to the Sooke School District Board 

of Education on September 26, 2023. 

Page 197 of 271



    September 2023 

1 

 

 

Table of Contents 

Introduction: District Context ............................................................................. 2 

Section A: Reflecting Back 2022-23 Student Learning Outcomes ......................... 3 

Intellectual Development ...............................................................................3  

  Educational Outcome 1: Literacy .....................................................................3  

Relevant Additional/Local Data and Evidence ............................................... 9  

Analysis and Interpretation: What Does this Mean? ................................... 12  

Educational Outcome 2: Numeracy ............................................................. 13  

Relevant Additional/Local Data and Evidence ............................................. 20  

Analysis and Interpretation: What Does this Mean? ................................... 21 

Grade to Grade Transition…………………………………………………………………………22 

Analysis and Interpretation: What Does this Mean? ................................... 26 

Human and Social Development .................................................................... 26 

Educational Outcome 3: Students Feel Welcome, Safe, and Connected ...... 26 

Analysis and Interpretation: What Does this Mean? ................................... 38 

Career Development...................................................................................... 40 

Educational Outcome 4: Students will Graduate ......................................... 40 

Analysis and Interpretation: What Does this Mean?....................................44 

Educational Outcome 5: Life and Career Core Competencies ...................... 45 

Analysis and Interpretation: What Does this Mean? ................................... 47 

 

Section B: Moving Forward Planning and Adjusting for Continuous Improvement…48 

Current Strategic Plan Priorities ..................................................................... 48 

District Successes / Points of Pride Summary  ................................................ 60 

Conclusion ........................................................................................................ 63 

 

 

Page 198 of 271



    September 2023 

2 

 

District Context 
Adjacent to Victoria on southern Vancouver Island, Sooke School District is the fastest growing school district on 

Vancouver Island and one of the fastest growing districts in British Columbia. The District serves five municipalities: 

Langford, Colwood, Metchosin, Sooke and the Highlands and is on the traditional territories of the Coast Salish: T’Sou-ke 

Nation and Sc’ianew Nation and Nuu-chah-nulth: Pacheedaht Nation. Some of our schools are located on the traditional 

territory of Esquimalt Nation and Songhees Nation. The District is a major employer in our region, with over 2,000 

educators and support staff serving over 13,000 students. The Board of Education has developed a future-oriented 

Strategic Plan that focuses on three priority areas: learning, engagement and growth.  

In the Sooke School District 62, our reciprocal relationships with our local nations and all Indigenous peoples are an 

indicator of our identity and beliefs, demonstrating our collective commitment to our district values of diversity, equity 

and inclusion. As stated in our Strategic Plan, a collective commitment to an intentional and active role in actualizing the 

Calls of Action and Truth and Reconciliation for Indigenous Peoples that will support all students in exiting our system 

with dignity, purpose and options for the future.  

In Sooke School District, we acknowledge the traditional territories to honour and respect: 

 the nations on which our schools are built, including T’Sou-ke Nation, Sc’ianew Nation, Pacheedaht Nation, and 

all South Island Coast Salish Nations, specifically Esquimalt Nation and Songhees Nation. 

 our direct working relationships with T’Sou-ke Nation, Sc’ianew Nation – Coast Salish, and Pacheedaht Nation – 

Nuu-chah-nulth and the Metis Nation of Greater Victoria.  

We are proud of the relationships we have with our four local nations, and use the words gifted by them in our territory 

acknowledgements. Posters of the Douglas Treaty, local map, and Territory Acknowledgements can be found in Sooke 

Schools. The Douglas Treaty area is unceded territory or land that has never been surrendered historically. Pacheedaht 

Nation does not have a treaty and is unceded territory. 

We acknowledge the traditional territories of the Coast Salish: T'Sou-ke Nation and Sc'ianew Nation and Nuu-chah-nulth: 

Pacheedaht Nation. We also recognize some of our schools reside on the traditional territory of the Esquimalt Nation 

and Songhees Nation 

A summary of demographics to help illustrate the profile of our student population and by extension the communities 

we serve:  

 49.5% Female students, 50.5 % male students; 

 15.2 % of our students are directly supported by our Inclusive Education Services Department; 

 9.5% of our students have Indigenous Ancestry; 

 0.6% of our students are supported through the Nominal role; 

 2.2% of our students are engaged in our International Student Programs; 

 0.1% of are students hold refugee status; 

 7.1 of our students receive support in our English Language Learners programs.  

The Sooke School District is the fastest growing district per capita in the province. We are experiencing enrolment 

growth of 4.5% growth annually, resulting in 500+ new students per year or the addition of 1 elementary school a year. 

This “growth factor” places unique pressures on the district. The district’s ability to respond to growth pressures while 

meeting our community’s expectations for 21st Century learning environments and opportunities is a challenge that our 

Board of Education and Senior team takes seriously in support of our students and community. We work diligently to 

build partnerships with our municipal governments, community organizations and advocates to provide the best 

services, amenities and learning environments for our entire community.   

 

Page 199 of 271



    September 2023 

3 

 

Section A: Reflecting Back 2022-23 Student Learning Outcomes 

Student Performance Interpretation 
Intellectual Development 
Educational Outcome 1:  Literacy 
Measure 1.1: Grade 4 & Grade 7 Literacy Expectations 
1.1.1 GRADE 4 READING and LITERACY (FSA) 

  2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 

Label Writers OT/E OT/E % Writers OT/E OT/E % Writers OT/E OT/E % 

ALL STUDENTS 248 198 80% 375 275 73% 557 383 69% 

Indigenous 24 19 79% 36 21 58% 52 28 54% 

Not on Reserve 247 198 80% 372 273 73% 554 381 69% 

On Reserve MSK  MSK MSK MSK MSK MSK MSK MSK MSK 

Special Needs 15 10 67% 19 11 58% 42 25 60% 

OT/E – On Track / Extending Rate 

 

All Students    
Year Write Count OT/E Percentage 

2020-21 248 198 80% 

2021-22 375 275 73% 

2022-23 557 383 69% 

 
Indigenous Students    
Year Write Count OT/E Percentage 

2020-21 24 19 79% 

2021-22 36 21 58% 

2022-23 52 28 54% 

 
 

248

375

557

198
275

383

0

200

400

600

2020-21 2021-22 2022-23

Grade 4 FSA Literacy/Reading (All Students)

Write Count OT/E

24

36

52

19 21
28

0

20

40

60

2020-21 2021-22 2022-23

Grade 4 FSA Literacy/Reading (Indigenous Students)

Write Count OT/E

Page 200 of 271



    September 2023 

4 

 

 

Please note: we have not included the data tables or graphs for Indigenous On-Reserve students.  Due to low participation rates, 

specifically when student participation is less than 10, the data does not adequately reflect the whole population. Additionally, the 

protection of privacy of students must be ensured when reporting data, as such, these specifics are masked.   

Indigenous Students Off Reserve     

     
Year Write Count OT/E Percentage  
2020-21 247 198 80%  
2021-22 372 273 73%  
2022-23 554 381 69%  

     

 

Indigenous Students with Disabilities/Diverse Abilities   

Year 
Write 
Count OT/E Percentage 

2020-21 15 10 67% 

2021-22 19 11 58% 

2022-23 42 25 60% 

CYIC 
 

Year Percentage 

2020-21 0% 

2021-22 50% 

2022-23 50% 

 

 

247

372

554

198

273

381

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

2020-21 2021-22 2022-23

Grade 4 FSA Literacy/Reading (Indigenous Students Off Reserve)

Write Count OT/E

50%
50%

0%

20%

40%

60%

2021-22 2022-23

Grade 4 FSA Numeracy CYIC OT/E Rate 

Page 201 of 271



    September 2023 

5 

 

1.1.3 GRADE 7 READING and LITERACY (FSA) 
OT/E – On Track / Extending Rate 

 

All Students    
Year Write Count OT/E Percentage 

2020-21 208 135 65% 

2021-22 259 162 63% 

2022-23 469 273 58% 

 
Indigenous Students    
Year Write Count OT/E Percentage 

2020-21 30 18 60% 

2021-22 38 15 39% 

2022-23 51 23 45% 

 

 

 

Please note: we have not included the data tables or graphs for Indigenous On-Reserve students.  Due to low participation rates, 

specifically when student participation is less than 10, the data does not adequately reflect the whole population. Additionally, the 

protection of privacy of students must be ensured when reporting data, as such, these specifics are masked.   

208
259

469

135 162

273

0

200

400

600

2020-21 2021-22 2022-23

Grade 7 FSA Literacy/Reading (All Students)

Write Count OT/E

30
38

51

18 15
23

0

20

40

60

2020-21 2021-22 2022-23

Grade 7 FSA Literacy/Reading (Indigenous Students)

Write Count OT/E

  2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 

Label Writers OT/E OT/E % Writers OT/E OT/E % Writers OT/E OT/E % 

ALL STUDENTS 208 135.2 65% 259 163.17 63% 469 272.02 58% 

Indigenous 30 18 60% 38 14.82 39% 51 22.95 45% 

Not on Reserve 207 134.55 65% 255 160.65 63% 465 269.7 58% 

On Reserve MSK MSK MSK MSK MSK MSK MSK MSK MSK 

Special Needs 30 18 60% 44 18.04 41% 54 19.98 37% 

Page 202 of 271



    September 2023 

6 

 

 

 
Indigenous Students with Diverse Abilities   
Year Write Count OT/E Percentage 

2020-21 32 20 63% 

2021-22 45 19 42% 

2022-23 62 23 37% 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CYIC  
Year Percentage 

2020-21 33% 

2021-22 Msk 

2022-23 Msk 

 

207
255

465

134
161

272

0

100

200

300

400

500

2020-21 2021-22 2022-23

Grade 7 FSA Literacy/Reading (Indigenous Students Off Reserve)

Write Count OT/E

 
 
 
 
Indigenous Students Off Reserve    
Year Write Count OT/E Percentage 

2020-21 207 134 65% 

2021-22 255 161 63% 

2022-23 465 272 58% 
 

Page 203 of 271



    September 2023 

7 

 

 

1.2.1 GRADE 10 LITERACY (Graduation Assessment - Participation) 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 

Label Writers OT/E OT/E % Writers OT/E OT/E % Writers OT/E OT/E % 

ALL STUDENTS 248 198 80% 375 275 73% 557 383 69% 

Indigenous 24 19 79% 36 21 58% 52 28 54% 

Not on Reserve 247 198 80% 372 273 73% 554 381 69% 

On Reserve 1 0 0% 3 2 67% 3 2 67% 

Special Needs 15 10 67% 19 11 58% 42 25 60% 

  2020/21 2021/22 

Label Writers PTC PT/R % Writers PTC PT/R% 

ALL STUDENTS 529 328 62% 704 563 80% 

Indigenous 60 27 46% 71 40 57% 

Not on Reserve 526 326 62% 700 567 81% 

On Reserve 3 1 38% 4 1.4 36% 

Special Needs 80 40 50% 113 71 63% 

Indigenous Students    
Year Write Count PTC Percentage 

2020-21 114 57 50% 

2021-22 122 34 28% 

2022-23 0 0 0 

Page 204 of 271



    September 2023 

8 

 

 

Please note: we have not included the data tables or graphs for Indigenous On-Reserve students.  Due to low participation rates, 

specifically when student participation is less than 10, the data does not adequately reflect the whole population. Additionally, the 

protection of privacy of students must be ensured when reporting data, as such, these specifics are masked.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Indigenous Students Off Reserve    
Year Write Count PTC Percentage 

2020-21 106 52 49% 

2021-22 108 32 30% 

2022-23 
Not 

Available  
Not 

Available  
Not 

Available  

Indigenous Students with Diverse Abilities   

Year 
Write 
Count PTC Percentage 

2020-21 153 81 53% 

2021-22 176 56 32% 

2022-23 
Not 

Available  
Not 

Available  
Not 

Available  

Page 205 of 271



    September 2023 

9 

 

CYIC  
Year Percentage 

2020-21 31% 

2021-22 50% 

2022-23 0% 

 

 

 

Relevant Additional/Local Data and Evidence 
 

Literacy Trends 2021-2023 Grade 4 and Grade 7 – From Summary of Learning Report Card marks, Grade 7 English 

Language Arts percentage of students ‘On-track’ or ‘Extending’ dropped slightly from 66% to 65% over the past three 

years.  In Grade 4, likewise, there is a drop in the percentage from 65% to 59.8% of students ‘On-track’ or ‘Extending’ in 

English Language Arts from 2021 to 2023. For students with Ministry of education IEPs only 29.4% of students are 

PRF/EXT, and 41.9% of Indigenous students achieved PRF/EXT.   

Grade 4 ELA – all students

 

31%

50%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

2020-21 2021-22

Grade 10 Grade Assesement Literacy CYIC PTC Rate 

Page 206 of 271



    September 2023 

10 

 

Grade 4 ELA - Indigenous students 

 Grade 

4 ELA - Diverse abilities 

 

Grade 7 ELA – all students

 

Page 207 of 271



    September 2023 

11 

 

Grade 7 ELA – Indigenous students 

 

Grade 7 ELA Diverse abilities 

 

  

Graduation Assessments - Overall - 55% students on-track with Literacy and Numeracy graduation 

assessments grades 10 and 12 (47.9% Proficient + 7.1% Extending).  

 

Page 208 of 271



    September 2023 

12 

 

 

Analysis and Interpretation: What Does this Mean? 
 
Literacy Commentary:  
 
While the participation rate in FSA assessments increased, the number of students who are 'On/Track or Extending' 
dropped from the previous year.  An accurate representation of how our students are doing may be better determined 
once we have year-end Summary of Learning reports from teachers.   
 
We know we have work to do to bring all of our students to parity or better than provincial averages.  2022-23 marked 
the first year of the District Literacy Plan, which targets Tier 1 and Tier 2 instruction and intervention supported by 
evidence-aligned resources and strategies.  In its first year, universal screening and progress monitoring was 
inconsistently implemented across schools.   
 
In the 2023-24 school year all schools will implement universal screening and intervention practices with fidelity in the 
primary grades K-3.  With a continued focus of on-going professional learning, resources and support for interventionists 
and classroom teachers across all grade levels, we anticipate that each year our number of students 'on-track or 
extending' will grow and be reflected in course proficiency scales and in the annual FSA results. 
 
In 2022-23, the number of students Proficient or Extending in the Literacy Graduation Assessment decreased from the 
previous years overall to 69.1% from 67.7%.  The BC Literacy Assessment requires students to engage in critical thinking 
skills and analysis which spans cross-curricular competencies.  As a part of the District Literacy Plan, secondary educators 
will continue to be offered opportunities for professional learning in intervention appropriate for adolescents with 
literacy difficulties, as well as whole class critical thinking literacy skills.  We anticipate the numbers of students 
'Emerging /Developing' on this assessment to drop year over year, and an increasing number of students 
Proficient/Extending. 
 

What’s Next: Curriculum’s Literacy goals and strategies in alignment with the District Operational Plan is in year one.  

This includes universal screening and progress monitoring measures for all students in grades K-3.  2023 marked the first 

year of Literacy Intervention Teachers (LITs) in each elementary school to provide supplemental targeted skills 

intervention, coupled with research-based resources and monthly professional learning.   To support the on-going 

support and development of equity-deserving populations, collaboration with Na’tsa’maht Indigenous Education and 

Inclusive Education departments are included in the professional learning as we endeavour to increase proficiency rates 

for these students.  To complement the work of the LITs, cohorts of primary classroom teachers participated in a 

learning series with learning rounds to support Tier 1 literacy instruction.  It is the hope that a focused early intervention 

and preventive approach will reduce the number of students who are ‘Emerging/Developing’ in English Language Arts in 

the higher grades over time.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 209 of 271



    September 2023 

13 

 

Educational Outcome 2:  Numeracy 
Measure 2.1: Grade 4 & Grade 7 Numeracy Expectations 

2.1.1 GRADE 4 NUMERACY (FSA) 

  2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 

Label Writers OT/E OT/E % Writers OT/E OT/E % Writers OT/E OT/E % 

ALL STUDENTS 244 194 80% 374 227 61% 556 273 49% 

Aboriginal 22 14 64% 34 15 44% 54 17 31% 

Status-Off 243 194 80% 371 225 61% 553 271 49% 

Status-On MSK MSK MSK MSK MSK MSK MSK MSK MSK 

Special Needs 14 12 86% 18 7 39% 45 17 38% 

OT/E – On Track / Extending Rate 
 

All Students    
Year Write Count OT/E Percentage 

2020-21 244 194 80% 

2021-22 374 227 61% 

2022-23 556 273 49% 

 

 
 

Indigenous Students    
Year Write Count OT/E Percentage 

2020-21 22 14 64% 

2021-22 34 15 44% 

2022-23 54 17 31% 

 
 

 

244

374

556

194 227
273

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

2020-21 2021-22 2022-23

Grade 4 FSA Numeracy (All Students)

Write Count OT/E

22
34

54

14 15 17

0

20

40

60

2020-21 2021-22 2022-23

Grade 4 FSA Numeracy (Indigenous Students)

Write Count OT/E

Page 210 of 271



    September 2023 

14 

 

Please note: we have not included the data tables or graphs for Indigenous On-Reserve students.  Due to low participation rates, 

specifically when student participation is less than 10, the data does not adequately reflect the whole population. Additionally, the 

protection of privacy of students must be ensured when reporting data, as such, these specifics are masked.   

 

 

 

 
 

 

Indigenous Students with Diverse Abilities   
Year Write Count OT/E Percentage 

2020-21 14 12 86% 

2021-22 18 7 39% 

2022-23 45 17 38% 

 

 

 
 

CYIC  
Year Percentage 

2020-21 0% 

2021-22 50% 

2022-23 25% 

 

 

 

243

371

553

194 225
271

0

200

400

600

2020-21 2021-22 2022-23

Grade 4 Numeracy (Indigenous Students Off Reserve)

Write Count OT/E

14 18

45

12 7
17

0

20

40

60

2020-21 2021-22 2022-23

Grade 4 FSA Numeracy (Indigenous Students with Diverse Abilities)

Write Count OT/E

Indigenous Students Off Reserve    
Year Write Count OT/E Percentage 

2020-21 243 194 80% 

2021-22 371 225 61% 

2022-23 553 271 49% 

Page 211 of 271



    September 2023 

15 

 

 
 

 

Measure 2.1: Grade 4 & Grade 7 Numeracy Expectations 

2.1.2 GRADE 7 NUMERACY (FSA) 

  2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 

Label Writers OT/E OT/E % Writers OT/E OT/E % Writers OT/E OT/E % 

ALL STUDENTS 205 130 63% 249 131 53% 457 190 42% 

Aboriginal 28 16 57% 33 7 21% 47 10 21% 

Status-Off 204 130 64% 247 131 53% 454 191 42% 

Status-On MSK MSK MSK MSK MSK MSK MSK MSK MSK 

Special Needs 33 17 52% 42 10 24% 59 16 27% 
OT/E – On Track / Extending Rate 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

50%

25%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

2021-22 2022-23

Grade 4 FSA Numeracy CYIC OT/E Rate 

205
249

457

130 131

190

0

100

200

300

400

500

2020-21 2021-22 2022-23

Grade 7 FSA Numeracy (All Students)

Write Count OT/E

All Students    
Year Write Count OT/E Percentage 

2020-21 205 130 63% 

2021-22 249 131 53% 

2022-23 457 190 42% 

    

Page 212 of 271



    September 2023 

16 

 

Indigenous Students    
Year Write Count OT/E Percentage 

2020-21 28 16 57% 

2021-22 33 7 21% 

2022-23 47 10 21% 

 

 
 
Please note: we have not included the data tables or graphs for Indigenous On-Reserve students.  Due to low participation rates, 

specifically when student participation is less than 10, the data does not adequately reflect the whole population. Additionally, the 

protection of privacy of students must be ensured when reporting data, as such, these specifics are masked.   

 

 

 

 
 

Indigenous Students with Diverse Abilities   
Year Write Count OT/E Percentage 

2020-21 33 17 52% 

2021-22 42 10 24% 

2022-23 59 16 27% 

 

28
33

47

16

7
10

0

10

20

30

40

50

2020-21 2021-22 2022-23

Grade 7 FSA Numeracy (Indigenous Students)

Write Count OT/E

204
247

454

130 131
191

0

100

200

300

400

500

2020-21 2021-22 2022-23

Grade 7 Numeracy (Indigenous Students Off Reserve)

Write Count OT/E

Indigenous Students Off Reserve    
Year Write Count OT/E Percentage 

2020-21 204 130 64% 

2021-22 247 131 53% 

2022-23 454 191 42% 

Page 213 of 271



    September 2023 

17 

 

 
 

 

CYIC  
Year Percentage 

2020-21 33% 

2021-22 MSK 

2022-23 Msk 

 

Measure 2.2: Grade 10 Numeracy Expectations 

2.2.1 GRADE 10 NUMERACY (Graduation Assessment - Participation) 

 2021/21 2021/22 

Label Writers PTC PT/R % Writers PTC PT/R % 

ALL STUDENTS 452 240 53% 665 505 76% 

Aboriginal 59 27 45% 74 44 60% 

Status-Off 450 239 53% 661 502 76% 

Status-On MSK MSK MSK MSK MSK MSK 

Special Needs 76 36 48% 98 54 55% 
PTC – Participation Count, PT/R – Participation Rate 
 

 

All Students    
Year Write Count PTC Percentage 

2020-21 849 458 54% 

2021-22 868 305 35% 

2022-23 
Not 

Available  
Not 

Available  
Not 

Available  

 

33
42

59

17
10

16

0

20

40

60

80

2020-21 2021-22 2022-23

Grade 7 FSA Numeracy (Indigenous Students with Diverse Abilities)

Write Count OT/E

Page 214 of 271



    September 2023 

18 

 

 
 

 

 

Indigenous Students    
Year Write Count PTC Percentage 

2020-21 114 57 50% 

2021-22 122 33 27% 

2022-23 0 0 #DIV/0! 

 

 

 
 
Please note: we have not included the data tables or graphs for Indigenous On-Reserve students.  Due to low participation rates, 

specifically when student participation is less than 10, the data does not adequately reflect the whole population. Additionally, the 

protection of privacy of students must be ensured when reporting data, as such, these specifics are masked.   

Indigenous Students Off Reserve    
Year Write Count PTC Percentage 

2020-21 106 53 50% 

849 868

458

305

54%

35%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

0

200

400

600

800

1000

2020-21 2021-22

Grade 10 Grade Assessment Numeracy (All Students)

Write Count PTC Percentage

114
122

57

33

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

2020-21 2021-22

Grade 10 Grade Assessment Numeracy (Indigenous Students)

Write Count PTC

Indigenous Students    
Year Write Count PTC Percentage 

2020-21 114 57 50% 

2021-22 122 33 27% 

2022-23 0 0 #DIV/0! 

Page 215 of 271



    September 2023 

19 

 

2021-22 108 31 29% 

2022-23 0 0  
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 
CYIC  
Year Percentage 

2020-21 31% 

2021-22 50% 

2022-23 0% 

 

106 108

53
31

0

50

100

150

2020-21 2021-22

Grade 10 Grade Assessment Numeracy (Indigenous Students Off Reserve)

Write Count PTC

176

76
50 50

0

50

100

150

200

2020-21 2021-22

Grade 10 Grade Assessment Numeracy (Indigenous Students with Diverse Abilities)

Write Count PTC

Indigenous Students with Diverse Abilities   
Year Write Count PTC Percentage 

2020-21 176 50 28% 

2021-22 76 50 66% 

2022-23 0 0 #DIV/0! 

Page 216 of 271



    September 2023 

20 

 

 

 

Relevant Additional/Local Data and Evidence 
 
Grade 4 Math – all students

  

Grade 7 Math – all 

 
Grade 7 Math – Indigenous students  

31%

50%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

2020-21 2021-22

Grade 10 Grade Assesement Numeracy CYIC PTC 
Rate 

Page 217 of 271



    September 2023 

21 

 

     

Grade 7 Math – Diverse Abilities 

 

 

Analysis and Interpretation: What Does this Mean? 
 
 
Numeracy Commentary:  
 
Numeracy Trends 2021-2023 Grade 4 and Grade 7 - In Grade 4, the percentages remain consistent at 67% year over 

year with an increase of 0.01% from the previous year. Indigenous and Diverse Ability students have demonstrated 

PRF/EXT at lower achievement rates (41.2% and 33.9% respectively). However, for all students, there is a notable 

increase of 3% at the grade 7 level from 62.2% to 65.2%.  This may be connected to the implementation of the 

Numeracy Goal and Strategies in the Curriculum Transformation Operational Plan, which includes a focused learning 

series for Middle school teachers coupled with the purchase of ‘Educating Now’ resource for all Intermediate and 

Middle school teachers.  

 
What’s Next: Continue to implement and support the use of ‘Educating Now’ for classrooms in grade 4-8; Continue to 
support and promote ‘Building Thinking Classrooms’ as a pedagogical approach to incorporating thinking tasks and 
conceptual understanding in math classrooms across all grade levels; Explore the ‘MathUP’ K-3 resource in a limited 
number of schools to assess for efficacy in increasing students’ numeracy proficiency and conceptual understanding. 
These selected numeracy resources have interwoven and explicit Indigenous content and are developed for diversity 

Page 218 of 271



    September 2023 

22 

 

and supporting all learners including students with diverse abilities and ELL learners for whole class instruction. These 
approaches, connected to the district's Strategic Plan, are research-based instructional pedagogy which emphasizes the 
importance of real-life numeracy tasks and having students think, reason and ask questions to solve problems. 
 

In K-8, ongoing professional learning sessions for teachers based on formative assessment and instructional response 
learning sequences have been offered.  To support a shift in practice, pedagogically sound and culturally responsive 
print, physical and digital resources have been made available equitably to every school.  Recommended class-wide 
diagnostic assessments and responsive practices will be promoted as a part of these learning series. 
 
We expect that as more educators become familiar with this style of pedagogy in numeracy and all subjects, student 
performance data will improve in FSAs, math report card marks, and on the Grade 10 Numeracy Assessment results.   
Happily, a 'Building Thinking Classrooms' approach does not require worksheets or notebooks, which may result in fewer 
photocopies in our schools to align with SD62's commitment to environmental conservativism.   
 
Grade 10 numeracy--PT/R % has increased its gap from "all students” and "special needs", also noting that less students 
met PT/R in numeracy than literacy--need a focus on numeracy next year.  
 

Measure 2.3: Grade to Grade Transitions 
Measure 2.3: Grade to Grade Transitions 

2.3.1a Grade to Grade Transition Count (Success Count) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

  2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 

Label Grade 10 Grade 11 Grade 10 Grade 11 Grade 10 Grade 11 

ALL STUDENTS 96% 87% 98% 83% 96% 92% 

Aboriginal 86% 81% 95% 84% 96% 86% 

Status-Off 96% 87% 98% 83% 96% 93% 

Status-On 80% 70% 88% 80% 100% 83% 

Special Needs 90% 77% 98% 83% 93% 87% 

  2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 

Label Grade 10 Grade 11 Grade 10 Grade 11 Grade 10 Grade 11 

All Resident Students 747 729 837 760 846 857 

Aboriginal 101 89 123 101 119 128 

Status-Off 743 722 830 756 835 852 

Status-On MSK MSK MSK MSK MSK MSK 

Special Needs 162 158 178 190 187 191 

All Students Success 
Count    

Year 
Grade 10 Grade 11 

G2G Rate 
G10 

G2G Rate 
G11 

2019/20 747 729 96% 87% 

2020/21 837 760 98% 83% 

2021/22 846 857 96% 92% 

Page 219 of 271



    September 2023 

23 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Indigenous 
Students     

Year 
Grade 10 Grade 11 

G2G Rate 
G10 

G2G Rate 
G11 

2019/20 101 89 86% 81% 

2020/21 123 101 95% 84% 

2021/22 119 128 96% 86% 

 

 

747

837 846

729

760

857
96%

98%
96%

75%

80%

85%

90%

95%

100%

650

700

750

800

850

900

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22

Grade 10 to 11 Transition (All Students)

Grade 10 Grade 11 G2G Rate G10 G2G Rate G11

101

123 119

89
101

128

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22

Grade 10 to 11 Transition (Indigenous Students)

Grade 10 Grade 11

Page 220 of 271



    September 2023 

24 

 

 

Please note: we have not included the data tables or graphs for Indigenous On-Reserve students.  Due to low participation rates, 

specifically when student participation is less than 10, the data does not adequately reflect the whole population. Additionally, the 

protection of privacy of students must be ensured when reporting data, as such, these specifics are masked.   

Indigenous Students Off Reserve    

Year 
Grade 10 Grade 11 

G2G Rate 
G10 

G2G Rate 
G11 

2019/20 743 722 96% 87% 

2020/21 830 756 98% 83% 

2021/22 835 852 96% 93% 

 

 

101

123 119

89
101

128

86%

95%

96%

81%

84%
86%

70%

75%

80%

85%

90%

95%

100%

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22

Grade 10 to 11 Transition (Indigenous Students)

Grade 10 Grade 11 G2G Rate G10 G2G Rate G11

743

830 835

722
756

852

650

700

750

800

850

900

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22

Grade 10 to 11 Transition (Indigenous Students Off Reserve)

Grade 10 Grade 11

Page 221 of 271



    September 2023 

25 

 

 

 

Indigenous Students with Diverse Abilities  

Year 
Grade 10 Grade 11 G2G Rate G10 

G2G Rate 
G11 

2019/20 150 138 91% 80% 

2020/21 157 162 98% 91% 

2021/22 166 162 93% 91% 

 

 

 

 

743

830 835

722

756

852
96%

98%

96%

75%

80%

85%

90%

95%

100%

650

700

750

800

850

900

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22

Grade 10 to 11 Transition (Indigenous Students Off Reserve)

Grade 10 Grade 11 G2G Rate G10 G2G Rate G11

150 157 166

138
162 162

0

50

100

150

200

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22

Grade 10 to 11 Transition (Indigenous Students with Diverse Abilities)

Grade 10 Grade 11

150 157 166
138

162 162

91%

98% 93%80%

91%
91%

0%

50%

100%

150%

0

50

100

150

200

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22

Grade 10 to 11 Transition (Indigenous Students with Diverse Abilities)

Grade 10 Grade 11 G2G Rate G10 G2G Rate G11

Page 222 of 271



    September 2023 

26 

 

 
CYIC 

 

Year 
Grade 10 Grade 11 G2G Rate G10 

G2G Rate 
G11 

2019/20 Msk 12 67% 67% 

2020/21 16 11 100% 85% 

2021/22 Msk 13 67% 76% 

 

 

 

Analysis and Interpretation: What Does this Mean? 
 

Grade to Grade Transitions Commentary:  

Grade to grade transition rates for Aboriginal learners have improved over time.  This includes Aboriginal learners on-
reserve. To support transitions, the Pathways To Graduation framework was piloted this school year and will continue 
next year to ensure as many students as possible move to the next grade.  Additionally, a deepened relationship with 
Indigenous partner groups and a district-wide greater understanding of Jordan’s Principle will also support transition 
rate.   

The Pathways & Choice Department (Alternate, Career Education, Continuing Education, Online Learning) is providing an 
increased number of pathway choices through program review and renewal, increased staffing, and continued 
community partnerships.  With student enrolment and engagement increasing in all pathway programs, our belief is our 
grade to grade transitions will increase supported by engaging pathways of choice for students in grades 9-12.  With one 
of our focuses being on our K-8 Careers and Applied Skills, Design, and Technology (ADST), engaging students through 
Gearbots, Make Do Kits, Coding, Jr. Skills Canada events, Ignite sessions, Try a Tool, Tool Carts, and See it Be it field trips, 
we believe inspiring younger students with awareness and activities will also increase grade to grade transitions in 
secondary schools in the years to come.   

In addition, hosting our District Online School as “HUBS” at Belmont, EMCS, and Royal Bay Secondary will increase 
flexibility in course offerings as well as the timing of them which in return should also have a positive impact on our 
grade to grade transitions.    

12

11

13

10

10.5

11

11.5

12

12.5

13

13.5

Msk 16 Msk

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22

Grade 10 to 11 Transition CYIC

Grade 11

Page 223 of 271



    September 2023 

27 

 

 Based on the 21/22 data in comparison to the previous two years, our grade-to-grade transitions continues to increase 
overall for all students. Worth noting the grade 11 grade to grade transition rate increased from 83% in 20/21 to 92% in 
21/22 for ALL Students. This could be the result of the supports and connections put in place post-COVID to address the 
health & well-being of our schools and community.  

Human and Social Development 

Educational Outcome 3: Students Feel Welcome, Safe, and Connected (Grade 4,7,10 & 12) 

Measure 3.1: Student Sense of Belonging 

3.1.1 Feel Welcome 

  2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 

Label Res Pos Res Pos Rate Res Pos Res Pos Rate Res Pos Res Pos Rate 

ALL STUDENTS 1912 1338 70% 2166 1487 69% 2228 1569 71% 

 

3.1.1 Feel Welcome        
  2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 

Label 
Total 

Response 
Count 

Positive 
Response 

Count 

Total 
Response 

Count 

Positive 
Response 

Count 

Total 
Response 

Count 

Positive 
Response 

Count 

All Resident Students 1912 1338 2166 1487 2228 1596 

Aboriginal 212 123 226 139 225 149 

Status-Off 1908 1336 2150 1475 2221 1590 

Status-On MSK MSK MSK MSK MSK MSK 

Special Needs 262 160 339 214 315 204 

 

All Students    

Year 
Total 

Response 
Count 

Positive 
Response 

Count 

Positive 
% 

2019/20 1912 1338 70% 

2020/21 2166 1487 69% 

2021/22 2228 1596 72% 

 

*SLS – Student Learning Survey  

 

 
 

1912
2166 2228

1338 1487 1596

0

1000

2000

3000

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22

SLS Feel Welcome (All Students)

Total Response Count Positive Response Count

Page 224 of 271



    September 2023 

28 

 

 
 

*SLS – Student Learning Survey  

 

Indigenous Students    

Year 
Total 

Response 
Count 

Positive 
Response 

Count 

Positive 
% 

2019/20 212 123 58% 

2020/21 226 139 62% 

2021/22 225 149 66% 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

1912
2166 2228

1338
1487 1596

70%

69%

72%

67%

68%

69%

70%

71%

72%

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22

SLS Feel Welcome (All Students)

Total Response Count Positive Response Count Positive %

212 226 225

123 139 149

0

50

100

150

200

250

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22

SLS Feel Welcome (Indigenous Students)

Total Response Count Positive Response Count

212 226 225

123 139 149

58%

62%
66%

50%

55%

60%

65%

70%

0

100

200

300

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22

SLS Feel Welcome (Indigenous Students)

Total Response Count Positive Response Count Positive %

Page 225 of 271



    September 2023 

29 

 

Please note: we have not included the data tables or graphs for Indigenous On-Reserve students.  Due to low participation rates, 

specifically when student participation is less than 10, the data does not adequately reflect the whole population. Additionally, the 

protection of privacy of students must be ensured when reporting data, as such, these specifics are masked.   

Indigenous Students Off Reserve   

Year 
Total Response 

Count 

Positive 
Response 

Count 

Positive 
% 

2019/20 1908 1336 70% 

2020/21 2150 1475 69% 

2021/22 2221 1590 72% 

 

 
*SLS – Student Learning Survey  

 

 

 
 

Indigenous Students with Diverse Abilities 

Year 
Total 

Response 
Count 

Positive 
Response 

Count 
Positive % 

2019/20 262 160 61% 

2020/21 339 214 63% 

2021/22 315 204 65% 

 

1908
2150 2221

1336 1475 1590

0

1000

2000

3000

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22

SLS Feel Welcome (Indigenous Students Off Reserve)

Total Response Count Positive Response Count

1908 2150 2221

1336 1475 1590
70%

69%

72%

66%

68%

70%

72%

0

1000

2000

3000

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22

SLS Feel Welcome (Indigenous Students Off Reserve)

Total Response Count Positive Response Count Positive %

Page 226 of 271



    September 2023 

30 

 

 
 

*SLS – Student Learning Survey  

 

 
 

 

 

CYIC 

Year 
Total 

Response 
Count 

Positive 
Response 

Count 
Positive % 

2019/20       

2020/21     58% 

2021/22     89% 

 

262

339 315

160
214 204

0

100

200

300

400

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22

SLS Feel Welcome (Indigenous Students with Diverse Abilities)

Total Response Count Positive Response Count

262

339
315

160

214 204

61%

63%

65%

59%

60%

61%

62%

63%

64%

65%

66%

0

100

200

300

400

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22

SLS Feel Welcome (Indigenous Students with Diverse Abilities)

Total Response Count Positive Response Count Positive %

Page 227 of 271



    September 2023 

31 

 

 

3.1.1 Feel a Sense of Belonging 
     

  2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 

Label 
Total 

Response 
Count 

Positive 
Response 

Count 

Total 
Response 

Count 

Positive 
Response 

Count 

Total 
Response 

Count 

Positive 
Response 

Count 

All Resident Students 1903 934 2159 1089 2216 1231 

Aboriginal 211 95 222 94 225 105 

Status-Off 1899 932 2144 1082 2209 1227 

Status-On 4 2 15 7 7 4 

Special Needs 260 102 340 142 314 151 

CYIC     Msk Msk Msk Msk 

 

All Students 
   

Year 
Total 

Response 
Count 

Positive 
Response 

Count 

Positive 
% 

2019/20 1903 934 49% 

2020/21 2159 1089 50% 

2021/22 2216 1231 56% 

 

 

 

 

*SLS – Student Learning Survey  

 

58%

89%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

2020/21 2021/22

SLS Feel Welcome CYIC Positive Rate

Page 228 of 271



    September 2023 

32 

 

 
 

 
Please note: we have not included the data tables or graphs for Indigenous On-Reserve students.  Due to low participation rates, 

specifically when student participation is less than 10, the data does not adequately reflect the whole population. Additionally, the 

protection of privacy of students must be ensured when reporting data, as such, these specifics are masked.   

 
 

*SLS – Student Learning Survey  

 

1903 2159 2216

934 1089 1231

0

1000

2000

3000

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22

SLS School Belong (All Students)

Total Response Count Positive Response Count

1903
2159 2216

934
1089

1231

49% 50%

56%

44%

46%

48%

50%

52%

54%

56%

58%

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22

SLS School Belong (All Students)

Total Response Count Positive Response Count Positive %

1899
2144 2209

932
1082

1227

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22

SLS School Belong (Indigenous Students Off Reserve)

Total Response Count Positive Response Count

Indigenous Students Off Reserve   

Year 
Total Response 

Count 

Positive 
Response 

Count 

Positive 
% 

2019/20 1899 932 49% 

2020/21 2144 1082 50% 

2021/22 2209 1227 56% 

Page 229 of 271



    September 2023 

33 

 

 
 

Indigenous Students with Diverse Abilities 

Year 
Total 

Response 
Count 

Positive 
Response 

Count 
Positive % 

2019/20 260 102 39% 

2020/21 340 142 42% 

2021/22 314 151 48% 

 

 

 

 
 

 

CYIC 

1899
2144 2209

932
1082 1227

49%

50%

56%

44%
46%
48%
50%
52%
54%
56%
58%

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22

SLS School Belong (Indigenous Students Off Reserve)

Total Response Count Positive Response Count Positive %

260

340
314

102
142 151

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

400

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22

SLS School Belong (Indigenous Students with Diverse Abilities)

Total Response Count Positive Response Count

260

340
314

102
142 15139%

42% 48%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

0

100

200

300

400

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22

SLS School Belong (Indigenous Students with Diverse Abilities)

Total Response Count Positive Response Count Positive %

Page 230 of 271



    September 2023 

34 

 

Year 
Total 

Response 
Count 

Positive 
Response 

Count 
Positive % 

2019/20       

2020/21     41% 

2021/22     42% 

 

 

 
 

3.1.3 Feel Safe 

  2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 

Label Res Pos Res Pos Rate Res Pos Res Pos Rate Res Pos Res Pos Rate 

ALL STUDENTS 1939 1504 77% 2199 1665 77% 2263 1788 80% 

 

All  Students    

Year 
Total 

Response 
Count 

Positive 
Response 

Count 

Positive 
% 

2019/20 1939 1504 78% 

2020/21 2199 1665 76% 

2021/22 2263 1788 79% 

 

 
 

41%

42%

40%

41%

41%

41%

41%

41%

42%

42%

42%

42%

2020/21 2021/22

SLS School Belong CYIC Positive Rate

1912
2166 2228

1338 1487 1596

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22

SLS Feel Safe (All Students)

Total Response Count Positive Response Count

Page 231 of 271



    September 2023 

35 

 

 

 
 

3.2.1 Adults Who Care 

  2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 

Label Res Pos Res Pos Rate Res Pos Res Pos Rate Res Pos Res Pos Rate 

ALL STUDENTS 1905 1246 66% 2169 1276 60% 2226 1313 62% 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
All Resident Students    

1912
2166 2228

1338
1487 1596

70%

69%

72%

67%

68%

69%

70%

71%

72%

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22

SLS Feel Safe (All  Students)

Total Response Count Positive Response Count Positive %

3.2.1 Adults Who Care       
  2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 

Label 
Total 

Response 
Count 

Positive 
Response 

Count 

Total 
Response 

Count 

Positive 
Response 

Count 

Total 
Response 

Count 

Positive 
Response 

Count 

All Resident Students 1905 1246 2169 1276 2226 1313 

Aboriginal 213 131 226 131 226 127 

Status-Off 1901 1243 2153 1265 2219 1308 

Status-On MSK MSK MSK MSK MSK MSK 

Special Needs 260 184 340 201 313 197 

Page 232 of 271



    September 2023 

36 

 

Year 
Total 

Response 
Count 

Positive 
Response 

Count 

Positive 
% 

2019/20 1905 1246 65% 

2020/21 2169 1276 59% 

2021/22 2226 1313 59% 

 

 

Indigenous Students    

Year 
Total 

Response 
Count 

Positive 
Response 

Count 

Positive 
% 

2019/20 213 131 62% 

2020/21 226 131 58% 

2021/22 226 127 56% 

 

 

1905 2169 2226

1246 1276 1313

0

1000

2000

3000

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22

SLS Adult Care (All Students)

Total Response Count Positive Response Count

1905
2169 2226

1246 1276 1313

65%

59% 59%

54%

56%

58%

60%

62%

64%

66%

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22

SLS Adult Care (All Students)

Total Response Count Positive Response Count Positive %

213 226 226

131 131 127

0

100

200

300

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22

SLS Adult Care (Indigenous Students)

Total Response Count Positive Response Count

Page 233 of 271



    September 2023 

37 

 

 

 

Please note: we have not included the data tables or graphs for Indigenous On-Reserve students.  Due to low participation rates, 

specifically when student participation is less than 10, the data does not adequately reflect the whole population. Additionally, the 

protection of privacy of students must be ensured when reporting data, as such, these specifics are masked.   

Indigenous Students Off Reserve   

Year 
Total Response 

Count 

Positive 
Response 

Count 

Positive 
% 

2019/20 1901 1243 65% 

2020/21 2153 1265 59% 

2021/22 2219 1308 59% 

 

 

 

213 226 226

131 131 127

62%

58%

56%

52%

54%

56%

58%

60%

62%

0

50

100

150

200

250

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22

SLS Adult Care (Indigenous Students)

Total Response Count Positive Response Count Positive %

1901
2153 2219

1243 1265 1308

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22

SLS Adult Care (Indigenous Students Off Reserve)

Total Response Count Positive Response Count

Page 234 of 271



    September 2023 

38 

 

 

Indigenous Students with Diverse Abilities 

Year 
Total 

Response 
Count 

Positive 
Response 

Count 
Positive % 

2019/20 260 184 71% 

2020/21 340 201 59% 

2021/22 313 197 63% 

 

 

  
 

1901

2153 2219

1243 1265 1308

65%

59%

59%

54%

56%

58%

60%

62%

64%

66%

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22

SLS Adult Care (Indigenous Students Off Reserve)

Total Response Count Positive Response Count Positive %

260

340
313

184 201 197

0

100

200

300

400

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22

SLS Adult Care (Indigenous Students with Diverse Abilities)

Total Response Count Positive Response Count

260

340
313

184 201 197

71%

59%
63%

50%

55%

60%

65%

70%

75%

0

100

200

300

400

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22

SLS Adult Care (Indigenous Students with Diverse Abilities)

Total Response Count Positive Response Count Positive %

Page 235 of 271



    September 2023 

39 

 

 

CYIC 

Year 
Total 

Response 
Count 

Positive 
Response 

Count 
Positive % 

2019/20       

2020/21     59% 

2021/22     64% 

 

 
 
 

Analysis and Interpretation: What Does this Mean? 
 
Students Feel Welcome, Safe, and Connected Commentary:  

The initiatives of the Equity Scan contribute to Aboriginal students feeling welcome and safe in school.  For instance, at 
the school level, a focus on Indigenizing the learning environment has resulted in more Indigenous culture and language 
being visible.  Many schools have completed, or are in process of, indigenizing their logos or school symbols. District 
level work of the Equity Scan had resulted in more Indigenous Administrators being hired in schools or in the VP pools. 
Human Resources has applied for the Human Rights Tribunal to preferentially hire more Indigenous employees across all 
sections of the district.  More Indigenous staff means more indigenous students will see themselves reflected in their 
learning environment. 
 

We have seen a significant increase in the percentage of children and youth in care who feel welcome in their schools, 

however it should be noted that this percentage is represented by a relatively small number of students so increases will 

experience large swings in percentages.  Regardless, 90% of our children and youth in care feel welcome, which is 

something to be celebrated.  Our district has a unique partnership with MCFD with the secondment of 3 school-based 

workers, who have the mandate of ensuring that students in care have a point person and an advocate.  These 3 

positions work seamlessly between the two systems and provide support through attendance at school meetings, help 

with transitions and advocating for the needs of the student. 

Overall, however, our rate for All Students has remained quite stable around 70% and is an area of continued concern.  

Work will continue in this area to build a sense of community and welcoming for all students.  One initiative we have 

undertaken is engaging the services of Chuck Geddes and the HeART assessment tool with two pilot schools this past 

year, which focuses professional learning on trauma informed practices and how to provide a warm, welcoming 

environment for all students, and particularly our students coming from a background of trauma. 

59%

64%

56%

57%

58%

59%

60%

61%

62%

63%

64%

65%

2020/21 2021/22

SLS Adult Care CYIC Positive Rate

Page 236 of 271



    September 2023 

40 

 

Our results in all 3 areas of safety, belonging and adults that care remain quite stable with minor increases and 

decreases and the rates we are sitting at are a definite source of concern.  Initiatives we are undertaking to address this 

concern involve the aforementioned Trauma Sensitive Schools training but also, the creation of three new positions 

through our Safe Schools Department.  One is a .4 Outreach Teacher to work with some of our most vulnerable students 

who have had involvement with the Justice system and may be in a position where conditions or charges are making 

school attendance difficult.  The other two are 1.0 FTE Student Advocate positions (although we were only able to fill 

one this year due to labour shortage – the second will start in September), who have been working with students in the 

middle/secondary age group that are on the path to disengagement from school.  These may be students who are 

struggling with substance use, school avoidance, instability in home life, difficulties with peer interactions/social-

emotional development and/or struggling with academic concerns.  Their job is to connect with students on or off 

campus and to help bridge the world between home and school in order to keep communication open.  The ultimate 

goal for these positions is to get students more strongly connected to their school teams so that school is seen as a safe, 

welcoming place to be.  Our staffing goal is to increase these positions to 3.0 for the Fall 2023. 

We have seen a small increase in each category related to Safety and Belonging.  What is important to note is that while 
the percentage increase is relatively small, ranging from 2-5% increase, the actual number of students who are reporting 
positively is quite considerable due to our overall growth, that is ranging from 37-142 students who feel a higher sense 
of safety, welcoming and sense of belonging.  Typically, when a district experiences extraordinary growth such as ours, 
one would expect these results to dip slightly as students adjust to new surroundings and settle into new relationships, 
so this is a particularly positive stat for us to reflect on.  Our district has had a strong focus on mental health literacy and 
social emotional learning in the last few years and our hope would be that the above results are starting to reflect that 
work.    

In addition, we have added new structural roles of the Student Engagement Facilitator, Student Advocate and Outreach 
Teacher to create a strong safety net for students.  These additional adult roles in the system have contributed to 
relationship-building and have provided more adult allies that students can turn to in times of need.  The adults who fill 
these roles come with a unique set of skills related to mental health and wellbeing and their focus is strictly related to 
students’ social emotional health.  

One final note regarding mental health would be that our District has secured a $47K grant through Island Health to pilot 
the Here4Peers Mental Health program this year.  Training will take place on Oct. 11/12 with a group of adult mentors 
and about 20 students who will then work to deliver the program together to Grade 8 and 9 students across the whole 
district.  We are the first district on the Island to pilot the program, which has run successfully in the Lower Mainland for 
several years through the Canadian Mental Health Association.  

 Pathways & Choice programs provide safe and welcoming opportunities for all learners.  We strive to engage students 
in K-12 and post graduation with environments that are inclusive and caring. Reflecting on the 22/23 data, 
with approximately 17% of our total student population responding, 71% indicated they felt welcome while only 55% of 
student’s report feeling a sense of belonging which is a continued focus for our District. Through our increased pathways 
and choices for students, we hope to see this number improve over the coming years through continued awareness and 
opportunity for students and their families. Although having 80% of the students reporting that they feel safe, 
understanding why the other 20% don’t feel safe is a focus for ongoing work.  Finally, considering only 62% of students 
responded that they had Adults Who Care at school, sharing this data with school based staff will highlight the necessity 
to strengthen relationships with students which could increase their sense of belonging, feeling welcome, and safe.  

  

 
 
 

Page 237 of 271



    September 2023 

41 

 

Career Development 

Educational Outcome 4:  Students will Graduate 
Measure 4.1: Achieved Dogwood Within 5 Years 

4.1.1 5-Year Dogwood Completion 

         
  2019/20   2020/21 2021/22 

Label 
Cohort 
Count 

Success 
Count 

Rate 
Cohort 
Count 

Success 
Count 

Rate 
Cohort 
Count 

Success 
Count 

Rate 

ALL STUDENTS 874 639 73.10% 859 653 76.00% 901 707 78.50% 

Aboriginal 104 68 65.40% 114 72 63.20% 98 63 64.30% 

Status-Off 860 634 73.70% 850 648 76.20% 891 705 79.10% 

Status-On 15 5 33.30% 9 5 55.60% 10 2 20.00% 

Special Needs 172 107 62.20% 164 98 59.80% 183 124 67.80% 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

874 859 901

639 653 707

0

200

400

600

800

1000

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22

5- Year Completion Rate (All  Students)

Cohort Count Success Count

874 859 901

639 653 707

73%

76%

78%

70%

72%

74%

76%

78%

80%

0

200

400

600

800

1000

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22

5- Year Completion Rate (All Students)

Cohort Count Success Count Rate

All  Students    

Year 
Cohort 
Count 

Success 
Count 

Rate 

2019/20 874 639 73% 

2020/21 859 653 76% 

2021/22 901 707 78% 

Indigenous Students    

Page 238 of 271



    September 2023 

42 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Please note: we have not included the data tables or graphs for Indigenous On-Reserve students.  Due to low participation rates, 

specifically when student participation is less than 10, the data does not adequately reflect the whole population. Additionally, the 

protection of privacy of students must be ensured when reporting data, as such, these specifics are masked.   

 

 

 

 

 

104 114
98

68 72 63

0

50

100

150

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22

5- Year Completion Rate (Indigenous Students)

Cohort Count Success Count

104
114

98

68 72 63

65%

63%
64%

62%

63%

64%

65%

66%

0

50

100

150

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22

5- Year Completion Rate (Indigenous Students)

Cohort Count Success Count Rate

Year 
Cohort 
Count 

Success 
Count 

Rate 

2019/20 104 68 65% 

2020/21 114 72 63% 

2021/22 98 63 64% 

Indigenous Students Off Reserve   

Year Cohort Count 
Success 
Count 

Rate 

2019/20 860 634 74% 

2020/21 850 648 76% 

2021/22 891 705 79% 

Page 239 of 271



    September 2023 

43 

 

 

 

Indigenous Students with Diverse Abilities 

Year 
Cohort 
Count 

Success 
Count 

Rate 

2019/20 172 107 62% 

2020/21 164 98 60% 

2021/22 183 124 68% 

 

 

 

 
 
 

860 850 891

634 648 705

0

200

400

600

800

1000

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22

5- Year Completion Rate (Indigenous Students Off Reserve)

Cohort Count Success Count

860 850 891

634 648
705

74%
76%

79%

70%

72%

74%

76%

78%

80%

0

200

400

600

800

1000

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22

5- Year Completion Rate (Indigenous Students Off Reserve)

Cohort Count Success Count Rate

172 164
183

107 98
124

0

50

100

150

200

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22

5- Year Completion Rate (Indigenous Students with Diverse Abilities)

Cohort Count Success Count

Page 240 of 271



    September 2023 

44 

 

 
 

 
 
 
CYIC 

Year 
Cohort 
Count 

Success Count Rate 

2019/20     28% 

2020/21     47% 

2021/22     33% 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

172
164

183

107
98

124

62%

60%

68%

54%

56%

58%

60%

62%

64%

66%

68%

70%

0

50

100

150

200

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22

5- Year Completion Rate (Indigenous Students with Diverse Abilities)

Cohort Count Success Count Rate

28%

47%

33%

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

35%

40%

45%

50%

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22

5- Year Completion Rate CYIC Success Rate

Page 241 of 271



    September 2023 

45 

 

 

Analysis and Interpretation: What Does this Mean? 
 
The BC Graduation Program sets the requirements to exit the K-12 education system with a BC Certificate of Graduation 
(Dogwood Diploma) and ensures that students are graduating from secondary school as educated citizens, with the 
knowledge, competencies, and skills they will need to transition successfully into post-secondary education, training, or 
the workforce. Students can also benefit from the Adult Graduation Program, available to students aged 18 and older, as 
well as the BC School Completion (Evergreen) Certificate.  

The Pathways and Choice department provides a variety of pathways towards graduation.  With the Ministry of 
Education’s mandate of developing the “educated citizen” through Intellectual Development, Human and Social 
Development, and Career Development, the SD62 Career Education team continues to support student and family 
engagement through a focus on employment, post-secondary, skilled trade programs and opportunities. In addition, the 
renewal of our District Online school, by transitioning our online school from a storefront location to now embedded 
into all four of our Secondary schools, Sooke students through the course selection process can access the options of 
face to face, online or blended course delivery in their daily timetables, students are provided with more options, choice 
and flexibility in designing their own graduation programs. As reported through the 21/22 data in comparison to the 
previous two years, our graduation rate continues to hold steady at close to 85%.  We strongly believe with an increase 
in pathways to graduation district-wide increasing, we will see this trend improve with a goal of getting more than 90% 
of all students graduating.  

 The five-year graduation rate for learners with Indigenous ancestry has plateaued.  While students who have status 
living off reserve has shown an improvement of 7% over the last 3 years, the rate of learners living on reserve has 
declined from 56% to 20% in the last school year.   Looking forward, the pathways to graduation framework as well as 
the Learner Profile tool will enable schools to better track learners.  Additionally, more intentional focus will be given to 
the Local Education Agreements which support accountability for most of the on-reserve learners.   

 Definitions to Support Commentary: 

Pathways to Graduation:  The intent of the framework is that through safe and focused conversations we will have 

a clearer understanding of who is on their pathway to graduation and who may require additional care. Envisioning 

a grandparent in the space ensures we enter each circle conversation with a good heart and mind remembering 

that families entrust their children with us each day with hopes that they will be both successful and happy at 

school. 

SD62 has begun the Pathways to Graduation Circle framework this year to honour the efforts towards reaching the 

goals of the NA’TSA’MAHT Enhancement Agreement. Between November and May, we plan to visit each Elementary 

School once and all Middle and Secondary Schools twice. Next year there will be bi-annual visits to all schools. 

 
Learner Profile tool: (Indigenous Information Management Systems also known as “IIMS”):  an application that works 
on laptop, Chromebook or mobile phone for staff to collect Indigenous student achievement and success indicators on a 
daily/weekly basis. The tool has filters (set by staff) that will analyze data such as attendance, culture and language 
programming & learning, academic support and NA’TSA’MAHT Indigenous Education (NIE) staff support logs. The data 
will be used to be to illustrate audit compliance in addition to assessing risk factors that reflects a student’s resiliency 
and connection (Health & Wellness, Relationships & belonging, attendance and engagement). This information 
facilitates NIE staff and school staff to respond in “real time” to the holistic needs of students, positively impacting their 
overall well-being, connection ad academic success.   

 

 

 

Page 242 of 271



    September 2023 

46 

 

 
Educational Outcome 5: Life and Career Core Competencies 

Measure 5.1: Transitioning to Post-Secondary 

5.1.1 Transition to post-secondary: Immediate Transition (All Students) 

 

School Year District Cohort Count PSI Transition Count PSI Transition Rate 

2017/18 062-Sooke 560 227 41% 

2017/18 099-Province 35,318 19,424 55% 

2018/19 062-Sooke 626 253 40% 

2018/19 099-Province 35,336 19,243 54% 

2019/20 062-Sooke 627 255 41% 

2019/20 099-Province 35,523 19,049 54% 

2020/21 062-Sooke 671 304 45% 

2020/21 099-Province 36,179 18,271 51% 

 

 

 
 

 

 
Please note: we have not included the data tables or graphs for Indigenous On-Reserve students.  Due to low participation rates, 

specifically when student participation is less than 10, the data does not adequately reflect the whole population. Additionally, the 

protection of privacy of students must be ensured when reporting data, as such, these specifics are masked.   

 

39% 39%

44%

36%

37%

38%

39%

40%

41%

42%

43%

44%

45%

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22

Post Secondary Transition Immediate (All Students)

Rate

Page 243 of 271



    September 2023 

47 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

860 850 891

634 648 705

0

500

1000

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22

5- Year Completion Rate (Indigenous Students Off Reserve)

Cohort Count Success Count

860 850
891

634 648
705

74% 76%

79%

71%

72%

73%

74%

75%

76%

77%

78%

79%

80%

0

200

400

600

800

1000

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22

5- Year Completion Rate (Indigenous Students Off Reserve)

Cohort Count Success Count Rate

172 164
183

107 98
124

0

50

100

150

200

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22

5- Year Completion Rate (Indigenous Students with Diverse Abilities)

Cohort Count Success Count

172 164
183

107 98
124

62%
60%

68%

55%

60%

65%

70%

0

50

100

150

200

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22

5- Year Completion Rate (Indigenous Students with Diverse Abilities)

Cohort Count Success Count Rate

Page 244 of 271



    September 2023 

48 

 

 

5.1.2 Transition to post-secondary within 3 years (All Students) 

  

School Year District Cohort Count PSI Transition Count PSI Transition Rate 

2017/18 062-Sooke 560 344 61% 

2017/18 099-Province 35,318 24,073 68% 

2018/19 062-Sooke 626 362 58% 

2018/19 099-Province 35,336 23,604 67% 

2019/20 062-Sooke 627 330 53% 

2019/20 099-Province 35,523 22,189 62% 

2020/21 062-Sooke 671 304 45% 

2020/21 099-Province 36,179 18,271 51% 

 

Analysis and Interpretation: What Does this Mean? 

In analysis of the transition to post-secondary-immediate transition versus our 3-year transition data, our students 

continue to take more time in order to begin their post secondary journey.  With the opening of the Westshore Post-

Secondary facility in September of 2024, we’re excited for our students to have access to post-secondary courses and 

programs within our District’s own boundaries. As we continue to address the barrier of distance travelled to attend 

post-secondary, we anticipate an increase in participation and immediate starts in post-secondary engagement for our 

graduates.   In addition, the renewal of our Alternate programs, with our increased emphasis and supports for youth 

employment and skilled trades opportunities supported by our District Career Ed team and through our community 

partnership with Camosun College and the South Island Partnership we are optimistic the supports, structures and 

resources are in place to make significant positive shifts for post-secondary outcomes for Sooke School District students.  

 South Island Partnership: The South Island Partnership (SIP) between Camosun College, the five School Districts of Southern 

Vancouver Island and local industry leaders aims to provide opportunities for students to jump-start their post-secondary education 

and workplace careers by participating SIP programming while they are still enrolled in Secondary School. 

Transition to post secondary for Aboriginal students is being supported by the Aboriginal Service Plan Initiatives, which 

include visits to campuses, trade sampler days, and post-secondary visits to Grade 12 school events such as the Tri-

district (61/62/63) Grade 12 day hosted in the Sooke School District this past June 2023.   

 The gap between Sooke students and the provincial average for PSI Transition Rate is brought closer in the 3 years’ data 

summary. More of our students are enrolling immediately in Post-Secondary and the gap between the provincial 

average and Sooke continues to close. Further in the 22/23 school year we have seen an increase in enrollment of dual-

credit courses and skilled trades pathways that indicate as future years’ data is available that we will continue to see this 

trend improve.    

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 245 of 271



    September 2023 

49 

 

Section B: Moving Forward Planning and Adjusting for Continuous Improvement  

Current Strategic Plan Priorities  

The SD62 Annual Report for the 2022-23 school year, provides highlights and evidence of the progress that has been 

made in the three strategic priorities articulated in the Strategic Plan 2021-25: Learning, Engagement and Growth. Over 

the course of the 2022-23 school year, staff have worked to implement the strategies and activities outlined in the 2022-

2023 Operational Plan, developed by the Superintendent and District Executive Team with input from system leaders. 

This Operational Plan is developed annually and details what will be done during the year to make progress towards the 

goals and objectives outlined in the strategic plan. 

To demonstrate progress towards our goals, a proficiency scale (rubric) was developed to provide a visual 

representation to describe and monitor progress on the strategic objectives outlined in the Strategic Plan. The rubric 

continues to be refined to improve goal and objective descriptions and to better reflect a continuum across the four 

proficiency levels: Emerging, Developing, Proficient, Extending. 

Learning has seen significant progress over the course of this year with continued work to developed critical and 

creative thinking skills, grounding literacy development as a key skill from kindergarten to Grade 12, and developing 

social thinking skills for students by deepening understanding related to diversity, equity and inclusion. 

Engagement is a key strategy that supports our primary learning goal. Through broad community and stakeholder 

engagement, students are supported in their learning, staff members feel connected, and the community feels that they 

have a voice in educating the next generation of citizens. We continue to work to ensure that all students feel safe and 

connected to our schools through the ongoing development of a “culture of belonging”. Support for students with 

Indigenous Ancestry to overcome historical prejudices and injustices, continues through the equity work being done in 

the district. Our hope and ongoing work are focused on creating a more equitable environment, including stronger 

results for Indigenous Learners. 

Our district continues to grow in many ways, most notably through our student enrolment. Constant attention to 

manage this growth by ensuring student learning spaces, as well as the ongoing recruitment and retention of our 

professional staff, are key elements. In addition, as our system grows and systems change, the district needs to continue 

to mature its operations to be efficient, effective and responsive to the needs of students, staff and the community. 

Progress shown on the Strategic Plan Proficiency Scale (as of June 2023) 

 

  

Page 246 of 271

https://www.sd62.bc.ca/sites/default/files/docs/board-of-education/Sep%2026_10.1_Annual%20Report%2022_23_Compressed.pdf


    September 2023 

50 

 

Strategic Plan Status Summary 

Learning Goal: Develop and support adaptable learners who are creative, critical and social thinkers with the capacity 

to be educated citizens. 

Objective 1 – To understand, respect and appreciate diversity and inclusion 

Student Learning Survey 2021-2 (22-23 data unavailable at time of reporting) 

 

 

 

Page 247 of 271



    September 2023 

51 

 

 

Parent Student Learning Survey 2022-3 (interim report) 

 

Equity in Action Survey 2022-23

 

 

Page 248 of 271



    September 2023 

52 

 

Learning Objective 2 - To Provide opportunities for learners to for learnings to develop critical and creative thinking 

skills 

Student Learning Survey 2021-2  

 

 

Page 249 of 271



    September 2023 

53 

 

 
Parent Student Learning Survey 2022-3 (interim report) 

 
Learning Objective 3 - Ensure our learning environments are safe, accessible and welcoming. 

Student Learning Survey 2021-22 

 

Page 250 of 271



    September 2023 

54 

 

 

 
 

 

 

Page 251 of 271



    September 2023 

55 

 

Equity in Action Survey 2022-23

 

Learning Objective 4 – To enhance student choice and voice 

Student Learning Survey 2021-2 

 

Page 252 of 271



    September 2023 

56 

 

 

 

 

Page 253 of 271



    September 2023 

57 

 

Engagement Objective 2 

Parent Student Learning Survey 2022-3 (interim report) 

 

Equity in Action Survey 2022-23 

 

Engagement Objective 1 Develop, expand and implement inclusive and collaborative practices and processes  

The district continues to make progress to develop, expand and implement collaborative practices and processes – see 

the Annual Report for details of work undertaken in the 2022-23 school year. 

Engagement Objective 2 – Father the Goals of the NA’TSA’MAHT Agreement Following the Objectives of ‘One Mind’ 

and ‘One Spirit’ 

See also the NA’TSA’MAHT Agreement Report (June 2023) which showcases some of the exemplary work underway in 

the District. 

Student Learning Survey 2021-2 

 

Page 254 of 271

https://www.sd62.bc.ca/sites/default/files/docs/board-of-education/Sep%2026_10.1_Annual%20Report%2022_23_Compressed.pdf
https://www.sd62.bc.ca/sites/default/files/docs/programs/NA'TSA'MAHT%20Enhancement%20Agreement%20Report%20-%20FINAL%20JUNE%202023.pdf


    September 2023 

58 

 

 

 
Equity in Action Survey 2022-23 

 

 

Page 255 of 271



    September 2023 

59 

 

My Education Data 2022-23 

 

Engagement Objective 3 - Develop, expand and implement respectful, effective, clear and transparent 

communications 

The district continues to make progress to develop, expand and implement respectful, effective, clear and transparent 

communications – see the Annual Report for details of work undertaken in the 2022-23 school year. In addition to 

communications and engagement work noted in the Annual Report, the NA’TSA’MAHT Agreement Report (June 2023) 

highlights some of the engagement work undertaken by the NA’TSA’MAHT Indigenous Education department which 

included a number of community gatherings bringing 400 students and community members together.  

Engagement Objective 4 - Continue to develop, expand and implement a culture of wellness 

Student Learning Survey 2021-2 

 

Parent Student Learning Survey 2022-3 (interim report) 

 

Page 256 of 271

https://www.sd62.bc.ca/sites/default/files/docs/board-of-education/Sep%2026_10.1_Annual%20Report%2022_23_Compressed.pdf
https://www.sd62.bc.ca/sites/default/files/docs/programs/NA'TSA'MAHT%20Enhancement%20Agreement%20Report%20-%20FINAL%20JUNE%202023.pdf


    September 2023 

60 

 

Growth Objective 1 - Strengthen organizational practices to ensure equity, diversity and inclusion 

The district continues to make progress to strengthen organizational practices to ensure equity, diversity and inclusion – 

see the Annual Report for details of work undertaken in the 2022-23 school year. 

Growth Objective 2 - Build and maintain spaces and resources that support our creative and critical learning and our 

culture of belonging.  

The district continues to build and maintain spaces and resources that support our creative and critical learning and our 

culture of belonging - see the Annual Report for details of work undertaken in the 2022-23 school year. 

Growth Objective 3 - Embrace digital technologies and manage increasing complexity by leveraging the strategic use 

of resources. 

Student Learning Survey 2021-2 

 

Growth Objective 4 - Expand our culture of social responsibility and implement long-term commitments that strive to 

support society and protect the environment   

 

 

 

Page 257 of 271

https://www.sd62.bc.ca/sites/default/files/docs/board-of-education/Sep%2026_10.1_Annual%20Report%2022_23_Compressed.pdf
https://www.sd62.bc.ca/sites/default/files/docs/board-of-education/Sep%2026_10.1_Annual%20Report%2022_23_Compressed.pdf


    September 2023 

61 

 

District Successes/Points of Pride Summary  
 
Relationships & Engagement: Culture, Language & Connections  
 
The 6 Na’tsa’maht Indigenous Education community dinners brought together Indigenous communities in ways never 
seen before.  Each community was celebrated: T’Souke, Sc’ianew, Pacheedaht, Urban Indigenous and Métis, using a 
distinctions based approach that contributed to stronger relationships, sense of belonging in the district and reciprocity.   
 

Camp Thunderbird – Tri-District Grade 12 event brought together students, staff, elders and community to recognize the 

powerful relationships between the Coast Salish Nations and communities on the South Island and to foster an emerging 

and collaborative relationship between the three South Island districts (61,62,63) and the Nations that we partner with 

and serve.  Everyone was welcomed by the T’Souke Nation to their traditional unceded territory where students, staff 

and elders were led through various land-based activates and learning opportunities to inspire and celebrate the 

educational journey and success of our youth and collaborative partnerships over the past school year.  

In response to the data that illustrates more targeted support is needed for Indigenous learners (specifically on-reserve 

learners), the NA’TSA’MAHT team has created a new Position of Special Responsibility.  This position is part of the 

NA’TSA’MAHT Team and will provide support Indigenous learners and families who have been identified through a 

referral process.   The position is intended to fill a gap between the NA’TSA’MAHT Staff, School-based teams, District 

teams and community-based supports.  The teacher will work with students and families of Indigenous ancestry with a 

focus/priority on First Nation on-reserve learners who are not yet fully engaged with their schools.    

  

Literacy: Data to Demonstrate Efficacy of Literacy Intervention and Supports  

Illustrative in elementary school A, students who received intervention made the same or comparable growth to their 
age-based peers.   

 

Grade 1 Phonemes Segment Fluency    Gr 1 Letter Sounds  

 

Demonstrate students receiving intervention are making gains on par with classmates (median). 

 

With the removal of the few students who were 'non-responders' from the data, grade one students reached parity with 
their classmates and 'closed the gap' with their literacy skills.   
 

 

 

Page 258 of 271



    September 2023 

62 

 

 

Grade 1 Phonemes Segment Fluency   Gr 1 Letter Sounds  

 

With non-responders removed from the data, the gap is closed.  

Numeracy:  

Teachers who participated in “Building Thinking Classrooms” professional discussions reported anecdotal increases in 
student engagement, collaboration, critical thinking and real-world -problem solving.  In Elementary School B, a few 
classrooms have moved away from the traditional ‘I do – We do - You do’ structure of math lessons.   Learning 
structures now involve random student groupings, thinking tasks, vertical mounted whiteboards for constructivist 
thinking and student collaborative synergistic learning.  
 
 
In Secondary, math educators for each secondary school gathered as a collaborative learning community to explore 
proficiency at grade 9 in light of the new Reporting Policy’s requirement to switch from letter grades to Proficiency 
Scale. This evolved into an exploration of assessment, instructional strategies and approaches and grew in numbers as 
enthusiasm spread. Teachers’ experienced paradigm shifts from a content to a competency approach throughout their 
teaching in the senior grades.  Given that the Graduation Numeracy Assessment is competency based, we expect that 
this shift in pedagogical approaches will result in increased numbers of students who are ‘Proficient or Extending’ on the 
assessment.  
 

Grade to Grade Transitions: Actions & Achievement in Support of Dignity, Purpose and Options 

Pathways to Graduation:  The intent of the framework is that through safe and focused conversations we will have 

a clearer understanding of who is on their pathway to graduation and who may require additional care. Envisioning 

a grandparent in the space ensures we enter each circle conversation with a good heart and mind remembering 

that families entrust their children with us each day with hopes that they will be both successful and happy at 

school. 

SD62 began the Pathways to Graduation Circle framework in the 2022/23 year to honour the efforts towards reaching 

the goals of the NA’TSA’MAHT Enhancement Agreement. Between November and May, we plan to visit each 

Elementary School once and all Middle and Secondary Schools twice. In successive years, there will be bi-annual visits 

to all schools. 

Students Feel Welcome, Safe, and Connected: Actions & Achievement in Support of Dignity, Purpose and Options 

We were very fortunate to receive a large (120K) grant from Health Canada’s Substance Use and Addictions Program to 

support release time for teachers to explore and implement more of the new PHE competencies related to Healthy 

Relationships, particularly through the lens of substance use.  Our goal with the project is that by having opportunities to 

discuss concerns and questions related to this topic, it will increase the confidence and comfort level of all adults in our 

system to have these valuable conversations with students on a daily basis, which in turn, will create an environment of 

safety and belonging. 

Page 259 of 271



    September 2023 

63 

 

In addition, we continued with staff development training using the EASE program, increasing everyone’s understanding 

of how to work with managing anxiety.  We offered .4 release time to take the EASE program to any interested teacher.  

Our Social Emotional Learning (SEL) coach continued to work in elementary schools supporting classrooms to implement 

SEL lessons, routines and strategies. 

Alternate:  Westshore Secondary School Colwood & Sooke campuses:  

 The 2nd year for Take a Hike program (Colwood campus); establishing “Shared Practices” with all TaH 

programs (13 in B.C.)  

 The 2nd year for our Individual Learning Program (ILP) using Brightspace as a learning platform (both 

campuses)  

 A focus on establishing a platform for tracking additional services and supports  

 SD62 Alternate staff will attend the annual BC Alternate Education Conference  

 A renewal of our Inclusion Support Team philosophy and structure   

 Hosted our Commencement Ceremony for Graduates at Royal Roads University  

 Continued success of our Elder in Residence program with Elder Earl Claxton  

 A focus in community and learning on the land/water  

 Continued partnership with Colwood Elementary  

 Feeding Futures program is very successful  

 Monthly student feasts anchored to special events   

 SD62 Career Education:  

 Initiated 1.0 FTE K-8 District Career Ed lead supporting Career & ADST curriculum  

• Added Auto Trades Awareness, Skills & Knowledge (TASK) to Belmont Secondary School (BSS) for the 

23/24 school year  

 A focus on Dual Credit Academic offerings and consistent processes for Secondary students   

 Onboarded a new Secondary District Career Ed lead  

 Standardized WEX processes and shifted to District centered claiming cycles   

 Youth Work in Trades (WRK) staffing increased to 1.0 to support student growth in WRK courses 

 District Lead for myBlueprint as great resource for all students & teachers in grades 6-12  

 Program development for Westshore Secondary Building opening in September 2024  

 SD62 Online & SD62 Continuing Education  

 Middle School Blended program doubled in enrolment in 22/23 adding a cohort to the Milne’s Landing  
  Continue to offer Middle School Blended programs in 23/24   

• Inaugural year for SD62 Online creating “hubs” at Belmont Secondary, Edward Milne Community School, 
and Royal Bay Secondary School for the 23/24 year  

• Inaugural year for SD62 Continuing Education with a vision for opening school based face to face and 
blended opportunities for the 23/24 school year  

• Full credit Summer Learning student enrolment continues to increase again in the summer of 2023 – 241 
students with a success/completion rate of 97.5%  
 

Program development for Westshore Post-Secondary Building opening in September 2024  

Page 260 of 271



    September 2023 

64 

 

Students will Graduate: Actions & Achievement in Support of Dignity, Purpose and Options 

Alternate – Westshore Secondary School Colwood & Sooke campuses: 

 Opened the new year with a new name and logo - Home of the Stkaye - incredible pride for staff and students 
Inaugural year for Take a Hike program (Colwood campus) – 3 graduates 

 Approximately 40 graduates between the Colwood & Sooke campuses 

 Inaugural year for our Individual Learning Program (ILP) using Brightspace as a learning platform (both 

campuses) 

 Inaugural year in hosting our Commencement at RRU 

 Improved success of students and their attendance supported by the “Quinta” model of scheduling 

Life and Career Core Competencies: Actions & Achievement in support of Dignity, Purpose and Options 

SD62 Career Education: 
 Honoured 26 WRK students from our district at our 1st annual WRK awards  
 Successfully expanded TASK programs to include Auto TASK at Belmont (September 2023)  
• Shifted our WEX district approach from school based to centralized district approach using CE to capture 

claims throughout the school year for 23/24  
 Hosted a Career Ed Audit Compliance workshop supported by the ministry (May 2023)  
 Successful Jr. and Sr. Skills Canada competitions  
• Rebranded our department from Careers & Transitions to SD62 Career Education - Employment, Post-

Secondary, Skilled Trades  
 Solidified our ongoing partnership with SIP, Skilled Trades BC, and the Ministry team  
 Continued success with our Dual Credit cohort models at both BSS and RBSS  
 Focused on ‘Make Do’ Kits, ADST Carts, Jr. Skills Canada School wide events, Find Your Fit at Journey  
 Hosted Ignite sessions in partnership with Camosun College  
 Youth Work in Trades (WRK) staffing increased to 1.0 to support student growth in WRK courses  
 Initiated 1.0 FTE K-8 District Career Ed lead supporting Career & ADST curriculum  
 A focus on Dual Credit Academic offerings and consistent processes for Secondary students   
 Onboarded a new Secondary District Career Ed lead  
 District Lead for myBlueprint as great resource for all students & teachers in grades 6-12  
 Program development for Westshore Secondary Building opening in September 2024  

 

Conclusion:  

SD62’s Framework for Enhancing Student Learning report continues to evolve with it’s depth of information and 

evidence documenting the planning, strategies & actions undertaken in our district to improve the life outcomes of 

students and foster the growth and development of educated and wholly capable citizens, the foundation of our 

community.  

Further evidence and detailed analysis of the work we do in SD62 in support of student learning and community building 

can be found in the District reports and plans listed below: 

Sooke Schools SD62 Strategic Plan 2021-2025 

Sooke School District Annual Report to the Board of Education 2022-23 

NA'TSA'MAHT ENHANCEMENT AGREEMENT 2022-2027 

NA'TSA'MAHT ENHANCEMENT AGREEMENT ĆENŦEḴI MOON YEAR-END Final Report 2023 

 

Page 261 of 271

https://www.sd62.bc.ca/sites/default/files/docs/board-of-education/Strategic_Plan_2021-2025-Web-1UP.pdf
https://www.sd62.bc.ca/sites/default/files/docs/board-of-education/Sep%2026_10.1_Annual%20Report%2022_23_Compressed.pdf
https://www.sd62.bc.ca/sites/default/files/images/NEAR%20Agreement%202022.pdf
https://www.sd62.bc.ca/sites/default/files/docs/programs/NA'TSA'MAHT%20Enhancement%20Agreement%20Report%20-%20FINAL%20JUNE%202023.pdf


1  

 

 

Board Info Note 

Board Meeting 
September 26, 2023 

Agenda Item: 10.3 – Board Work Plan 
 

 
Background: 

 Annually, the Board reviews and sets its work plan for the school year. 

 Additionally, it must set its calendar of Board and Standing Committee Meetings. 

 The majority of items on the list denote the regular flow of the year with key milestones and 

undertakings of the Board noted. 

 

Current Context: 

 With the election of a new Board of Education in October, 2022 the work plan undertaken for the 

balance of the 2022-2023 year was established by the previous Board. 

 The current Board determined it necessary to ensure that the 2023-2024 work plan was reflective of 

their desires, vision and working style. 

 To support this desire, a draft work plan was developed and further clarified through a trustee survey 

to determine specific working styles, key events, engagements and areas of Board interest. 

 Feedback from trustees provided direction for: 

o Board planning sessions; 

o Professional learning focus for the Board; 

o Mechanisms for student voice and input; and 

o Engagement processes and opportunities. 

 As a result of the feedback from trustees a revised work plan has been developed in two formats, 1) a 

list of key events by month, and 2) a calendar view that shows a monthly view of the committee and 

agenda setting processes, a yearly view that shows four Board actions (approval, review, completion, 

and engagement, and a multi-year view that shows upcoming milestones for long-range planning. 

 It should be noted that the work plan will be adjusted as the school year unfolds and emergent issues 

come forward. 

 Finally, a calendar of Board and Standing Committee Meetings dates has been developed to align 

with school and statutory holidays.  In some months (denoted by an asterisk on the Board and 

Committee Meetings 2023-2024 page), the regular timing of meetings is interrupted due to school 

breaks. 

 

For Recommendation: 

 Draft motion: 

o “That the Board of Education for School District #62 (Sooke) adopt the Board and Committee 

Meeting schedule and Board of Education Work Plan as presented”. 

 

Submitted with Respect, 

 

 

Scott Stinson, 

Superintendent/CEO 

Page 262 of 271



 

 

Board and Committee Meetings 

2023-2024 
 

Board Meetings (fourth Tuesday of each month) 

*Denotes date other than fourth Tuesday 

 August 29, 2023 

 September 26, 2023 

 October 24, 2023 

 November 28, 2023 

 December 19, 2023* 

 January 30, 2024* 

 February 27, 2024 

 March 12, 2024* 

 April 30, 2024* 

 May 28, 2024 

 June 25, 2024 

 

Standing Committee Meetings 

 

Educa�on-Policy Commi�ee 
(First Tuesday of each month) 
*Denotes date other than first 
Tuesday 

Resources Commi�ee 
(Second Tuesday of each month) 
*Denotes date other than 
second Tuesday 

Audit Commi�ee 
*To Be Confirmed 

 September 12, 2023* 

 October 3, 2023 

 November 7, 2023 

 December 7, 2023 

 January 9, 2024* 

 February 6, 2024 

 March 5, 2024 

 April 9, 2024* 

 May 7, 2024 

 June 4, 2024 

 September 19, 2023* 

 October 19, 2023 

 November 14, 2023 

 December 12, 2023 

 January 16, 2024* 

 February 13, 2024 

 March 6, 2024* 

 April 16, 2024* 

 May 14, 2024 

 June 11, 2024 

 September 20, 2023 

 January 17, 2024* 

 April 22, 2024* 

 June 17, 2024* 

 

 

Page 263 of 271



 
 

BOARD ANNUAL WORK PLAN 
2023-2024 School Year 

 
 

AUGUST/SEPTEMBER 

 Review Strategic Plan Annual Report 

 Join Leadership Team Luncheon 

 Submit Executive Compensation Disclosure to Public Sector Employers’ Council 

 Review the audit committee report and approve the audited financial statements 

 Approve Annual Board Work Plan - including schedule of Board/committee meetings, partner meetings, 
and related functions 

 Receive summer Capital work report  

 Welcome Back Message - from the Chair on behalf of the Board (first day of school) 
 

OCTOBER 

 Recognize World Teachers’ Day (Oct. 5) 

 VISTA – Nanaimo (Oct. 13-14) 

 Board Learning Session (Oct. 17) 

 BCSTA Provincial Council meeting (Oct 20) – Board represented by BCSTA representative 

 Board/MLA Meeting (Oct. 24 TBC)  

 Host student event (Oct. 27) 

 Review enrolment report and school organizations 

 Digital Solutions report 
 

NOVEMBER 

 Strategic Plan Q1 Report 

 Receive report on District enrolment 

 Receive and review Fiscal monitoring report (financial forecast) 

 Represent Board at BCPSEA Symposium (Nov. 2 and 3) 

 Board Planning Session (Nov. 10) – DEI learning session 

 BCSTA Trustee Academy (Nov. 23-25) 

 Municipal Partner Meetings – Board/Council (Dates TBD) 
 

DECEMBER 

 Elect Chair, Vice-Chair, BCSTA rep and BCPSEA rep (Dec. 19) 
o Make Trustee appointments to committees and community liaison groups 

 Participate in SBO Winter Luncheon (Chili Cook-off) (Dec. 22) 

 Circulation of Draft Plan Budget Process for input by stakeholders 

 Attend school holiday functions and send cards on behalf of the BoE 

 Receive information on Budget recalculation 

 Recieve Superintendent Growth Plan (transition planning)  

 Municipal Partner Meetings – Board/Council (Dates TBD) 

 Winter Break (Dec. 25 - Jan5) 
 

JANUARY 

 Finalize budget principles and assertions, plan and timelines  

 Board Planning:  Rights/Stakeholder/ Partner engagement on updated Vision/Mission/Values (Jan. 23) 

 Represent Board at BCPSEA AGM – Trustee BCPSEA Rep (Jan. 25-26 TBC) 

 Review policy positions for submission to BCSTA AGM 

 Board/Minister Meeting (TBD) 
 

FEBRUARY 

 Approve Amended Budget for current fiscal year (23/24) 

 Receive and review Fiscal monitoring report (financial forecast) 

 Review and adopt school fees for 24/25 school year 

 Board Planning:  Rights/Stakeholder/ Partner engagement on updated Vision/Mission/Values (Feb. 5) 

 Stakeholder Budget Presentations (Feb. 20) 

 BCSTA Provincial Council meeting (Feb. 24) 

 Provide direction through the Board’s representative to BCSTA Provincial Council meeting regarding 
provincial policy matters. 

 Receive enrolment update 

 Strategic Plan Q2 Report  

Page 264 of 271



 Municipal Partner Meetings (Chair/CEO/S-T) 
 

MARCH 

 Nominate candidates for Premier’s Award of Excellence and BCSTA Innovation Award 

 Receive preliminary budget revenue information for the upcoming year’s preliminary budget – Ministry 
of Education funding announcement 

 Approve Local School Calendar 

 Annual Facilities Grant (AFG) planning 

 Spring Break (March 18-28) 

 
APRIL 

 Review draft budgets for the upcoming year and give first reading (if available) 

 Review draft Capital Plan bylaw and give first reading 

 Attend and participate in BCSTA AGM 

 Municipal Partner Meetings – Board/Council (Dates TBD) 

 Host student/trustee school visit (Apr. 12) 

 Board Planning:  Complete Strategic Plan Vision – Mission - Values (April 23) 

MAY 

 Approve audit terms and appoint/reappoint auditor 

 Approve preliminary budget for upcoming budget year 

 Approve 5-year Capital Plan for submission to BC Ministry of Education 

 Strategic Plan Q3 report 

 Receive and review fiscal monitoring report (financial forecast)  

 Board Annual Self-Assessment 

 Municipal Partner Meetings – Board/Council (Dates TBD) 

 Host Retirement/Long Service Recognition Event (May 29) 
 

JUNE 

 Receive and review fiscal monitoring report (year-end estimates) 

 Complete Superintendent Growth Plan Review 

 Written acknowledgement of contributions by PACs and SPEAC and others as appropriate 

 Attend graduations and school year-end celebrations 

 Receive Na’tsa’maht Annual Report 

 Approve Vision Mission Values for 2025-2029 Strategic Plan 

 Review 2024-2025 District Operations Plan 

 National Indigenous Peoples Day Event (June 21 @ Royal Roads University) 
 

ONGOING 

 Attend trustee development/planning sessions 

 Attend school functions (as invited) 

 Hear appeals as needed 

 Respond to media requests regarding governance matters in consultation with the CEO 

 Ratify memoranda of agreement with bargaining units 

 Approve disposition/acquisition of real property (lands and buildings) 

 Recognize school and community highlights 

 Attend Board Liaison meetings as outlined in the Trustee calendar 

 Advance Board positions through BCSTA 

 Represent Board at BCSTA Branch meeting (VISTA) 

 Nominate staff for awards and other recognition for their contributions 

 Approve out-of-province/country student trips 

 Review and approve policy changes 

 Review Long-Range Facilities Plan 
 

Page 265 of 271



 

 

School District 62 (Sooke) 

Board of Education 2023-24 Annual Work Plan Summary  

Monthly Calendar 

WK MONDAY TUESDAY WEDNESDAY THURSDAY FRIDAY 

 

1 

- Trustee Weekly Update 

– “Monday Memo” 

- Resources Agenda & Material  

submission 

- Education Policy Committee  

Meeting 

 

- Resources Agenda Setting 

 

- Meeting material  

deadline  

- Planning & Priorities  

Committee (Chair, Vice-

Chair, Supe, S-T, DS) 

 

- Resources Meeting Materials      

released 

 

2 

- Trustee Weekly Update 

– “Monday Memo” 

- Resources Committee Meeting - Ad Hoc Committees: Agenda 

Setting (as needed) 

- Governance Committee 

- Personnel Committee 

- SBO Renewal Committee 

 

- Meeting material  

Deadline 

- Planning & Priorities  

Committee 

 

- Ad Hoc Committee Meeting  

Materials released 

 

3 

- Ad Hoc Committee  

Meeting (as needed) 

- Trustee Weekly Update 

– “Monday Memo” 

- Audit Committee (Quarterly) 

- Board Meeting Agenda & Material  

submissions 

- Board Meeting Agenda Setting 

- SPEAC Meeting 

 

- Meeting material deadline 

- Planning & Priorities  

Committee 

 

- BoE Meeting Materials released 

 

4 
- Trustee Weekly Update 

– “Monday Memo” 

- BoE Meeting  

- Education-Policy Committee: 

Agenda item submission  

- Education-Policy Committee 

Agenda Setting 

 

- Meeting material     

Deadline 

- Planning & Priorities  

Committee 

 

- Education Policy Materials  

released 

      

      

      

 

Page 266 of 271



School District 62 (Sooke) 

Board of Education 2023-24 Annual Work Plan Summary  

Year at a Glance 

Action January February March April May  June 

Approve - Budget Principles & 

Assertions, Plan & 

Timelines 

- Amended Budget 

- School Fees 

- School Calendar 
-  

- 1st reading of 

Budget Bylaw (if 

available) 

- 1st reading of 

Capital Plan Bylaw 

- Final readings of 

Budget Bylaw (if availa-

ble) 

- Final readings of  

Capital Plan Bylaw (if 

available) 

- Auditor 

engagement/plan 

- Adopt Vision, Mission, 

Values for ‘25-‘29 Strat 

Plan 

- Annual Plan Package: 

- FESL targets 

- Strategic plan targets 

- Na’tsa’maht Annual 

Report 

- Superintendent Growth 

Report  

Review - Policy positions for 

submission to 

BCSTA AGM 

- 2nd Quarter Reports: 

- Strategic Plan Q2  

- Financial forecast 

- Enrolment update 

- Minor & Major Capital 

Work 

- Estimated Enrol-

ment Update 

- Budget Instructions 

- Annual Facilities 

Grant Planning 

 - 3rd Quarter Report 

Package: 

- Strategic Plan Q3 

- Financial forecast 

- District Operations Plan 

for 2024-2025 

- Review all Board Motions 

for the year 

- Approve Vision, Mission, 

Values 

Complete - BCSTA Policy/Mo-

tions for AGM 

- BCPSEA Annual  

General Meeting (Jan 

25-26 TBC) – Trus-

tee Rep 
 

- Partner/Liaison Mtg – MECC 

(Chair/ST/Supe) (Feb. 9) 

- Partner Budget Presenta-

tions (Feb.20) 

- BCSTA Provincial Council 

(Feb 24) 

- Municipal Partner Meetings 

(Chair, S-T & CEO) 

- Nominate candi-

dates for Premier’s 

Awards in Educa-

tion. 

 

- BCSTA AGM (Apr. 

27-28) 

- Municipal Partner 

Meetings (Board/ 

Council) - TBD 

- Update Strat Plan 

VMV  

- Update Strat Plan VMV 

- Host Retirement/Long 

Service Event. 

- Municipal Partner 

Meetings (Board/ 

Council) - TBD 

- Board Annual Self-

Assessment 

 

Engage  Rights/Stakeholder/ 

Partner engagement 

on updated Vi-

sion/Mission/Values 

 Board/Minister Mtg 

(TBD) 

- Board Planning Session Vi-

sion, Mission, Values and 

Beliefs (Feb. 5) 

 - Host Student/ Trus-

tee school visit (Apr. 

12) 

- Board Planning Ses-

sion Complete Vi-

sion, Mission, Values 

and Beliefs (April 23) 

- Host Retirement/Long-

Service Event (May 29) 

- Grad/Year End 

Ceremonies 

- Acknowledgement 

Letters to Partner Groups 

- National Indigenous 

Peoples Day (June 21) 

 

Page 267 of 271



School District 62 (Sooke) 

Board of Education 2023-24 Annual Work Plan Summary  

Year at a Glance 

Action July August September October November December 

Approve   - Annual Reports (for approval): 

- FESL 

- Audit Committee Report - 

Financial Statements 

- Annual BoE Work Plan & 

Board/Committee meetings 

calendar 

-   -  

Review  - Estimated Enrolment 

Update 

- Annual District 

Communications Plan 

- Annual Reports (for review): 

- Strategic Plan  

- Exec Compensation Disclosure 

Report 

- District Operations Report  

- Enrolment report 

- Minor & Major Capital Summer 

Work 

- Initial enrolment & 

school organization 

report 

- Digital Solutions Report 

- Strategic Plan Quarter 1 

Report Package 

- District enrolment report 

- Fiscal Monitoring Report 

- Annual Budget 

Recalculation and 

Draft Budget Process 

- Superintendent 

Growth/Transition 

Plan 

Complete  - BoE/Executive 

Planning Retreat 

- Municipal Partner Meeting (Chair, 

S-T & CEO) (Sept. 6 – Sooke) 

 

- BCSTA Provincial 

Council (Oct. 20) 
 

- BCPSEA Symposium 

(Nov. 2-3) 

- BCSTA Academy (Nov. 

23-25) 

- Organizational 

Meeting of the Board 

– Board Elections 

- BoE Committee 

Assignments 

Engage  - Join Leadership Team 

Luncheon 

- Welcome back Message to the 

system  

- Chair to families on behalf of the 

Board (1st day of school). 

- Recognize World 

Teachers Day (Oct. 5) 

- VISTA (Oct 13-14) 

- Board Learning Session 

(Oct. 17)  

- Board/MLA Meeting 

(Oct. 24 TBC) 

- Host Student/Trustee 

Event (Oct. 27) 

- BoE Planning session 

(Nov. 10) 

- Municipal Partner Mtgs 

(Board/Council to be 

arranged)  

- SBO Winter Luncheon 

– Chili Cookoff (Dec. 

22) 

- Attend school holiday 

functions 

- Municipal Partner 

Mtgs (Board/Council 

to be arranged) 

 

 

Page 268 of 271



School District 62 (Sooke) 

Board of Education 2023-24 Annual Work Plan Summary 

Multi-Year View 

 

Action 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27 
Approve - Capital Plan and interim space re-

quirements 

- The updated VMV for the ’25-’29 

Strat Plan 

- ’25-’29 Strategic Plan 

- Catchment Review - North Langford 

Elementary 

- Superintendent Performance 

Review 

 

- Catchment Review – North Lang-

ford Secondary 
 

- Catchment Review – South 

Colwood Elementary 

Review - Strategic Plan 2021-2025 – 

Quarterly and Annual Reports 

- Issue Based Reviews – TBD 

 

Issue Based Reviews - TBD - Issue Based Reviews - TBD 

Complete   - Open SĆIȺNEW̱ SṮEȽIṮḴEȽ 

Elementary 

 

Engage - Municipal and provincial 

relationships (mayor/council and 

MLAs) 

- Strategic Plan Consultation 

   

 

Page 269 of 271



  

 

1 
 

 

Board Information Note 

Public Board Meeting 

Sept 26, 2023 

Agenda Item 11.1: Superintendent’s Update 

 

School Start-Up  
As with all new school years, it is a busy time for staff, families and students. As we re-establish routines and 
review organizational details, the regular flow of the school year gradually resumes. For SD62, we continue to 
face the challenges of enrollment growth and ensuring instructional spaces for students and workspaces for 
staff. While we believe we have the number of classrooms to accommodate all of our students for this year, 
staff have already turned their attention to planning for the next school year to ensure new classrooms are 
organized and in place prior to the start of the school year. 

The Executive Team has been out visiting schools over the past few weeks; it is great to see the happy faces 
and feel the energy once again in our schools.  

2023-2024 School Year 
This will be a year of, what will hopefully be, smooth transition with changes to senior staff as Paul Block 
becomes the new Superintendent and Monica Braniff becomes Deputy Superintendent on January 1, 2024. We 
are currently in the process of recruiting a new Associate Superintendent to support the district. 

With the by-election settled and Christine Lervold acclaimed as Trustee, the Board of Education is once again 
at full strength and ready to take on the governance work for the district. The Executive Team is excited about 
Christine’s new role and looks forward to supporting the 
Board over the course of their term. 

Full Credit Summer Learning for Secondary Students  
This past summer, starting on July 20th and ending on 
August 20th, 2023, the Sooke School District offered full 
credit courses for secondary student’s, district-wide at 
Belmont. We are pleased to share that student registration 
was at a record high with 241 students enrolled in 
academic courses. The courses are offered in a blended 
learning environment, where the course content and 
materials are all available online. However, daily 
connection time with our teachers is a key element to the 
success of the students. Based on our student’s 
completion rate (97% completion), it is evident that our 
students are experiencing immense value and success in 
the summer semester and our appreciation to our 

Page 270 of 271



  

 

2 
 

teaching and administrative staff who continue to offer quality service and engaging learning in our 
classrooms year around.    

As a district, we have two options (schools) that we can use to claim student courses with the Ministry, 
respectful of compliance criteria and funding levels. Generally speaking, students aged 15 or less are claimed 
in SD62 Online; students aged 16 or older are claimed in SD62 Continuing Education because a student must 
be 16 to be eligible and the district receives a higher level of funding per course funding in Continuing 
Education vs Online Learning.  

 

 

BC Human Rights Code and the Board’s Obligations 

Over the past year and specifically this past Wednesday, there has been an increase in 
opposition to LGBTQ2S+ rights and freedoms, which I have found to be personally 
disheartening.   

Our job as educators and as a Board of Education, is to ensure that when students attend 
our schools, they feel a sense of safety, belonging, and acceptance. This is the only way 

that student attendance, academic achievement, and feelings of attachment and connectedness can be 
fostered. Ensuring that our schools support experiences of safety, dignity, and respect for ALL students is a 
shared responsibility for every adult in the K-12 system. 

I appreciate the Board’s ongoing support for the safety of our students and to create and foster environments 
that are free from discrimination, harassment and racism. The BC Human Rights Code is clear in terms of our 
obligations to protect historically marginalized groups. We continue to build our understanding of how best to 
do that in SD62 schools while we also build understanding and connection in our schools. 

 

 

Enrolment  

While final enrollment numbers are not confirmed until September 30, when they are submitted to the Ministry 
of Education and Child Care, our preliminary numbers are indicating significant growth again this year: 

  The September 30, 2022, 1701 Ministry reporting form, the Full Time Equivalent (FTE) count was 12,401 
Headcount and 12,251 FTE.  

  The initial estimate of K-12 enrolment in February 2023 was 12670 Headcount and 12900 FTE.  

  For September 2023, enrollment is likely to be over 12,811 Headcount and 12,941 FTE, showing year-to- 
year growth of 5.6%.  

Laptop Rollout for Elementary Schools 

Digital Solutions is continuing the laptop rollout program for our teachers. This fall, laptops are being refreshed 
for all Elementary school teachers, TTOC spares, Clerical, and PVP beginning in early October. Approximately 
500 laptops will be distributed. The refresh for High schools and Middle schools was completed last year.   

Page 271 of 271


	6.1 Correspondence
	a. Email from Dominque Jacobs RE: Welcome to the 2023/24 School Year, dated September 5, 2023.
	7.1 Resources Committee – Meeting of September 19, 2023 – Ebony Logins (page )
	8.1 Education-Policy Committee – Meeting of September 12, 2023 – Allison Watson (page )
	6.1 Correspondence
	a. Letter from the staff of Ruth King Elementary School dated June 26, 2023, RE:  Changes to School
	b. Letter from the STA dated June 27, 2023, RE: Revised Policy and Regulations B-330 Learning Assessment
	c. Letter from MLA Elect Ravi Parmar, dated July 12, 2023: RE: Resignation
	d. Email request from Michelle Vingo RE: Request for Implementation of Academy   Programs at CML, dated July 25, 2023
	e. Letter from the Minster of Education and Child Care, dated August 1, 2023, RE: Purchase of Portables for Growing Districts.
	f. Letter from the Minister of Education and Child Care, dated August 1, 2023, RE: School Trustee Codes of Conduct Criteria
	138. MOVED Cendra Beaton/Allison Watson
	That the Board of Education of School District 62 (Sooke) receive the above noted correspondence items a through e.
	CARRIED
	139 MOVED Cendra Beaton/Allison Watson
	That the Board of Education of School District 62 (Sooke) receive the above noted correspondence item f and refer it to the Governance Committee.
	CARRIED
	6.2 Standing Delegations (STA, CUPE, PVP, SPEAC) – 5 minutes each
	Committee Report of
	1. CALL TO ORDER AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF FIRST NATIONS TERRITORIES
	2. COMMITTEE REPORT
	3. PRESENTATIONS
	4. BUSINESS

	District Context
	Intellectual Development
	Educational Outcome 1:  Literacy
	Measure 1.1: Grade 4 & Grade 7 Literacy Expectations

	Relevant Additional/Local Data and Evidence
	Analysis and Interpretation: What Does this Mean?
	Educational Outcome 2:  Numeracy
	Measure 2.1: Grade 4 & Grade 7 Numeracy Expectations
	Measure 2.2: Grade 10 Numeracy Expectations

	Relevant Additional/Local Data and Evidence
	Analysis and Interpretation: What Does this Mean?
	Measure 2.3: Grade to Grade Transitions
	Measure 2.3: Grade to Grade Transitions

	Analysis and Interpretation: What Does this Mean?

	Human and Social Development
	Educational Outcome 3: Students Feel Welcome, Safe, and Connected (Grade 4,7,10 & 12)
	Measure 3.1: Student Sense of Belonging

	Analysis and Interpretation: What Does this Mean?

	Career Development
	Educational Outcome 4:  Students will Graduate
	Measure 4.1: Achieved Dogwood Within 5 Years

	Analysis and Interpretation: What Does this Mean?
	Measure 5.1: Transitioning to Post-Secondary

	Analysis and Interpretation: What Does this Mean?





